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PREFACE

Currency + Context = Motivation

Motivation

From the smallest mom-and-pop retailer to the largest multinational corporation,
businesses of all sizes are recognizing that accounting professionals are no longer simply
“number crunchers” but, rather, essential partners in achieving the fundamental goals
of their organization. When people understand accounting’s critical role in managing a
business and making business decisions, they are motivated to learn accounting. That is
why Intermediate Accounting, 19¢ provides a powerful connection between accounting
and business today with:

e Business strategy cases at the start of each chapter that describe how a real-world firm
such as MicroStrategy struggled with revenue recognition and the pressures on man-
agement to interpret revenue as positively as possible.

e Coverage of high-interest and current topics such as earnings management, fair value,
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as well as other issues that are
driving accounting in today’s business environment.

e FASB codification activities that link FASB research with real business situations and
help readers understand how to research and use authoritative guidance as well as
why that guidance is important.

e Real-world end-of-chapter case activities that use the financial results of companies
such as The Walt Disney Company, The Boston Celtics, Hewlett-Packard, and Dell to
help readers connect accounting to business.

CURRENCY—Current and Relevant Coverage

One look at the business pages of any newspaper shows how illusory long-term suc-
cess can be. Yesterday’s runaway successes can quickly find themselves derailed by the
new realities of today’s business world. This is the first text to provide a real-world
perspective that links accounting functions to the activities of business.

International Financial Reporting Standards topics, indicated by this symbol
throughout the text, help students understand how accounting practices differ from coun-
try to country and reflect the increasingly global nature of business.

The international environment of business is dramatically changing the landscape
of accounting. The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) are working together to develop one set of accounting
standards to be used by companies in countries around the world. No longer is the United
States making the rules for the rest of the world to follow. Instead, the FASB and the IASB
are working hand-in-hand as financial accounting standards converge at a pace that was
not dreamed of even five years ago.
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The international environment has greatly affected this textbook. Every chapter dis-
cusses relevant accounting standards and developments from both a U.S. and a global
perspective. Each chapter begins with a discussion of the accounting standards and proce-
dures used by companies complying with U.S. GAAP. Then those areas where U.S. GAAP
and international accounting standards are significantly different are discussed so that the
reader can understand how accounting standards around the world are similar and how
they are different. A chapter on Accounting in a Global Market further emphasizes the
role of International Financial Reporting Standards.

The objective of this approach is to develop in students the ability to see beyond the
borders of the United States and understand that the global business environment is lead-
ing to global accounting standards. Users of this text will understand that they are not just
learning U.S. GAAP. Instead, they are being prepared to be active participants in a global
accounting environment with the ability to understand and apply international accounting
standards as well as U.S. accounting standards.

Fair Value Accounting is another major topic affecting the accounting environment.
The credit crisis of 2008 is blamed by some on the inappropriate use of fair value account-
ing. A module details the why, when, where, and how for using fair values in financial
statements. Because this concept of fair value accounting is so important and affects so
many of the principles and topics discussed later in the text, it has been placed near the
front of the text following the discussion of the financial statements.

A Chapter on Earnings Management in Part 1 establishes a framework for the
remainder of the course. Students come to understand the importance and ramifications of
earnings management through current, real-world examples, extracts from SEC enforce-
ment actions, business press analysis, and the extensive use of academic research findings.

FASB Codification feature presents a relevant issue and related question in order to
assist students in understanding how to use the FASB’s codification in research. This fea-
ture is found in each chapter and includes a description of the issue at hand, a specific
question pertaining to that given issue, and suggestions for “Searching the Codification”
in order to guide students in the right direction for research. Each feature includes an
answer section at the end of the chapter, so that students can check their research and
adjust their technique as needed. References throughout the textbook reflect the FASB
ASC (Accounting Standards Codification).

FASB CODIFICATION

The Issue: You are the accountant for a company in the carpet cleaning business.
Because of your company’s innovative cleaning system (no harsh detergents, no
damaging brushes, and extremely small carbon footprint), you have been very
successful and have begun to drive your competitors out of business. In fact,
just today your company’s CEO has decided to start buying a number of your
competitors. As you walked out the door at the end of the day, she said:“You had
better learn how to account for a bargain purchase’

The Question: What is a bargain purchase, and why is a bargain purchase likely to
arise in this situation?

Searching the Codification: Bargain purchases are covered in this chapter, but you
would like to show your boss that you can find accounting standards for your-
self in the authoritative literature. The best place to start is in Topic 805 (Business
Combinations), which is in the “Broad Transactions” collection of topics.

The Answer: The authoritative accounting standards relative to bargain purchases
are described on page 10-41.
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Up-to-Date Intermediate Accounting, 19¢ has been completely updated to reflect the
latest changes in accounting standards, practices, and techniques. The real company infor-
mation has been revised to account for recent changes in financial statements and other
company reports.

Exhibit 16-6 | ExxonMobil—Disclosure for Provision for Income Taxes

18. Income, Sales-Based and Other Taxes

2011 2010 2009
(Millions of dollars) U.S. Non-U.S.  Total uU.s. Non-U.S.  Total US. Non-U.S. Total
Income taxes
Federal and non-U.S.
Current $ 1,547 $28,849 $ 30,396 $1,224  $21,093 $22317 S (838) $15830  $14,992
Deferred—net 1,577 (1,417) 160 49 (1,191)  (1,142) 650 (665) (15)
U.S. tax on non-U.S.
operations 15 — 15 46 — 46 32 — 32
Total federal and
non-U.S. 3,139 27,432 30,571 1,319 19,902 21,221 (156) 15,165 15,009
State 480 — 480 340 — 340 110 — 110
Total income taxes 3,619 27,432 31,051 1,659 19,902 21,561 (46) 15,165 15,119
Sales-based taxes 5,652 27,851 33,503 6,182 22,365 28,547 6,271 19,665 25,936
All other taxes and duties
Other taxes and duties 1,539 38,434 39,973 776 35,342 36,118 581 34,238 34,819
Included in production and
manufacturing expenses 1,342 1,425 2,767 1,001 1,237 2,238 699 1,318 2,017
Included in SG&A expenses 181 623 804 201 570 771 197 538 735
Total other taxes and duties 3,062 40,482 43,544 1,978 37,149 39,127 1,477 36,094 37,571
Total $12,333  $95,765 $108,098 $9,819 $79,416  $89,235 $7,702  $70,924 $78,626

ExxonMobil, 2011, 10K Report

CONTEXT—Business Activities Emphasized in Organization

No other text works harder to demonstrate accounting’s integral importance to an organi-
zation’s decision-making capabilities. This book is organized as much as possible around
the essential interrelationship between accounting procedures and the activities of business
to provide students with the context behind the accounting that is discussed. The innova-
tive structure is unsurpassed in preparing students to serve as trusted advisors on the front
lines of business.

In an effort to streamline the sequence of chapters in the text, the table of contents
accounts for a more traditional balance sheet order of topics while still maintaining the
structure of covering topics as they relate to business activities. The investing chapters fall
before the financing chapters, which results in a more familiar order of presentation for
instructors and students.

Part 1—Foundations of Financial Accounting provides students with the funda-
mentals of financial accounting, including a full chapter on Earnings Management, and con-
cludes with a module that covers the Time Value of Money as well as a module on Fair Value.

Vil
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WHY 548 107 was released to curtail
specific abuses in revenue recognition
practices. The guiding principle behind
SAB 107 is that companies should not
be granted the flexibility to decide to
accelerate or delay the recognition

of revenue. Instead, the economic
characteristics of the transaction itself
should determine when the revenue is
to be recognized.

HOW in orderto report revenue
reliably, a company must have a system
of internal controls in place to govern
the timing of revenue recognition. In
amultiple-element transaction, the
revenue associated with any specific
component, or unit of accounting, can
be recognized only if that component
can be sold separately. Reporting the
entire value of a transaction as “revenue”
is inappropriate for a company that acts
only as a broker oragent.

Preface |

Part 2—Routine Activities of a Business gets down to business, integrating ac-
counting into management by exploring operating and investing activities.

Part 3—Additional Activities of a Business
income taxes, and employee compensation.

examines financing activities, leases,

Part 4—Other Dimensions of Financial Reporting rounds out the comprehen-
sive coverage with earnings per share; derivatives, contingencies, business segments, and
interim reports; accounting changes; and financial statement analysis; as well as extended
coverage of IFRS, which is found in the separate chapter, Accounting in a Global Market.

Why and How Framework follows each learning objective, as the authors provide
additional reinforcement of the critical concepts by highlighting both the procedural as-
pects (the “how”) as well as the context (or “why”) for which they are applied. As they
move through the chapter, students gain a greater understanding of both elements and
can rationalize why businesses account for things the way they do. By exposing students
to the “why” behind each concept, students are being trained to realize the business im-
plications of various decisions made by companies and can take their careers head-on.

Supporting this framework are a number of critical-thinking elements that allow stu-
dents to stretch their minds into the analysis of the relevant topics, a skill that will also be
crucial as they move on in their studies and careers.

SAB 101

Q Discuss the revenue recognition issues, and abuses, underlying the examples used in SAB 701.

SAB 101 is a very interesting document. It is in a question-and-answer format. Most of the
questions follow the pattern: “May a company recognize revenue in the following situation?”
The answers given in SAB 101 are invariably “No.” SAB 101 arose in response to specific
abuses seen by the SEC staff. As illustrated with the MicroStrategy scenario at the beginning of
the chapter, these abuses were often driven by the desire of high-flying companies to maintain
their aura of invincibility by continuing to report astronomical revenue growth each quarter.
Because SAB 101 was released to curtail specific abuses, it should not be seen as a
comprehensive treatise on the entire area of revenue recognition. Remember that the vast
majority of companies apply the revenue recognition criteria in a very straightforward way
with no questions from their auditor, the SEC, or investors. But it is precisely in the financial
reporting of high-growth, start-up companies doing innovative transactions where reliable
and transparent accounting practices add greatest value. Thus, the revenue recognition
issues covered in SAB 101 may not be comprehensive, but they are extremely important.
The release by the SEC of SAB 101 caused quite a stir in the accounting community.
SAB 101 deals with a fundamental accounting topic (revenue recognition), is blunt in its
provisions, and was released without the years of discussion and lobbying typically involved

Statement of Cash Flows“Revisited” in Chapter 21 provides coverage of the state-
ment of cash flows in the second semester of the course. The book continues to provide
a full chapter early in the text (Chapter 5) addressing the statement of cash flows and
integrates this financial statement throughout the text, which results in the most compre-
hensive treatment of this important subject available.
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Opening Scenario Questions  are critical-thinking questions that follow the updated
real company chapter openers. Solutions are provided at the end of each chapter so stu-
dents can check their answers as they think about how they would approach accounting-

related issues that businesses face.

Why do you think the price-to-sales ratio (as opposed to the price-earnings ratio) is
often used in valuing the stocks of start-up technology companies, especially those
related to the Internet?

On Monday, March 20, 2000, MicroStrategy issued a press release stating that
revenues for the year 1999 were about $155 million, not $205 million as previously
announced. This represented a drop of 24% in reported revenue. Why did a drop of
just 24% in reported revenue result in a stock price drop of 62%? In other words,
why wasn't the drop in stock price also 24%?

In early March 2000, MicroStrategy’s board of directors received word that the
company’s auditor was requesting a revenue restatement. The board was reluctant
to go forward with the restatement because of fears (justified, as it turns out) that
the restatement would hurt the company’s stock price. List and explain two or three

arguments that you, as a member of the board, could have made in support of the

restatement.

Answers to these questions can be found on pages 8-34—-8-35.

Stop &

It would seem that the physical capital maintenance concept would provide
the best theoretical measure of “well-offness” However, use of the physical
capital maintenance concept of measuring income involves many practical
difficulties. Identify ONE of those practical difficulties from the list below.

a) Difficulty in estimating depreciation lives
b) Difficulty in implementing internal control procedures
c) Difficulty in providing cash flow information

d) Difficulty in obtaining fair market values of assets and liabilities

FYI

Before 2002, all gains and losses resulting from the early extinguishment of
debt were reported as extraordinary. This classification was ended with the
release of pre-Codification SFAS No. 145 (now in FASB ASC paragraph 470-
50-45-1); these gains and losses are now considered ordinary, subject to the
normal criteria for extraordinary items.

Stop & Think multiple-choice questions
have been written by the authors to ac-
company the Stop & Think boxed features.
These critical-thinking boxes, found in every
chapter, allow students to test their knowl-
edge and then consult the answers found at
the end of the chapter.

FYl margin boxes often provide addi-
tional context to an important topic by
emphasizing additional points of interest.
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Caution

The most common error when computing bad debt expense is to confuse
the two methods—percentage of sales and percentage of receivables. Re-
member that when you are using the percentage-of-sales method, bad debt
expense is computed and the balance in the allowance account is then de-
termined. When you are using the percentage-of-receivables method, the
balance in the allowance account is computed, and then the amount of bad
debt expense for the period is determined.

Caution provide students with impor-
tant points to consider when thinking about
more complex concepts and topics.

Et4EVE| SOLVABLE

“Reverse Solvable” Problems at the end of chapters, identified by an icon, ask stu-
dents to demonstrate mastery of relationships and accounting concepts by working with
incomplete information and completing the missing information before completing the
assignment.

Chapter Updates and Enhancements
Chapter 1

e Update on the standard-setting process

e New discussion of the revised Conceptual Framework

e Further explanation of the convergence of U.S. GAAP and TASB standards
e Extended coverage of U.S. GAAP and IFRS similarities and differences

Chapter 2

e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”

Chapter 3

e Updated and revised opening case on Coca-Cola
e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”

* Analysis of the proposed new balance sheet format

Chapter 4

e Updated exhibits
e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”

e Analysis of the proposed new income statement format

Chapter 5

e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”
e Revised FASB-IFRS-Codification Summary

Copyright 2013 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s).
Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.



Preface |

Chapter 6

e Updated exhibits

e Revised to reflect economic and housing crises

Time Value of Money Module

e Revised end-of-chapter material to reflect recent updates

Fair Value Module

e New FASB ASC references

Chapter 7

e Updated chapter-opening vignette to reflect global economic crisis
e New FASB ASC references

e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”

e Updated exhibits

Chapter 8

e Revised Learning Objectives

e Updated and expanded discussion of the asset-and-liability approach to revenue
recognition that is currently being developed as a joint effort of the FASB and the
IASB

e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”
e Updated data and exhibits

Chapter 9

e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”
e Updated data and exhibits

Chapter 10

e Updated references to FASB ASC throughout
e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”
e Updated data and exhibits

Chapter 11

e Updated references to FASB ASC throughout
e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”
e New discussion of a qualitative assessment as part of goodwill impairment

e Updated data and exhibits

xi
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Chapter 12

e Updated references to FASB ASC throughout
e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”
e Updated data and exhibits

e Updated discussion on the use of the fair value option for the reporting of financial
assets and liabilities

Chapter 13

e Updated references to FASB ASC throughout
e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”
e Updated discussion of the reporting of comprehensive income

e Updated data and exhibits

Chapter 14

e Updated references to FASB ASC throughout
e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”
e Updated data and exhibits

e Updated discussion on the classification of investment securities according to IFRS and
U.S. GAAP

e Updated discussion on the use of the fair value option with equity method securities

Chapter 15

e Updated references to FASB ASC throughout
e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”

e Updated discussion of the possibility that a future standard may require capital lease
accounting for most leases

e Updated data and exhibits

Chapter 16

e Updated references to FASB ASC throughout
e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”

e Expanded discussion of accounting for uncertain tax provisions

Chapter 17

e Updated references to FASB ASC throughout
e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”
e New coverage of pension accounting under IFRS

e Updated information regarding GM and the effects of the company’s bankruptcy on
its pension and other post-retirement plans
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Chapter 18

e New chapter-opening vignette focusing on China’s position in the global economic
world

e Updated references to FASB ASC throughout
e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”

Chapter 19

e Updated references to FASB ASC throughout
e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”

e New discussion of an abandoned FASB proposal to increase loss contingency
disclosures

Chapter 20

e Updated references to FASB ASC throughout
e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”
e Updated exhibits and data

Chapter 21

e New discussion of the FASB-TASB project on financial statement presentation
e Updated exhibits and data
e Updated references to FASB ASC throughout

Chapter 22

e Revised information on the IASB

e Updated key differences between U.S. GAAP and IFRS
e Updated references to FASB ASC throughout

e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”

Chapter 23

e Updated illustration of the use of accounting data in equity valuation
e Updated references to FASB ASC throughout
e New feature “Using the FASB’s Codification”

Reinforce Student Understanding

Unmatched End-of-Chapter Material

Widely regarded as providing the most varied and expansive set of problem assignments
available, Intermediate Accounting, 19¢ continues to raise the bar to new heights. Only
Xili
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Intermediate Accounting features such a diverse set of traditional exercises, problems, and
cases:

® 15-25 Questions per chapter to help assimilate chapter content
®  More than 400 Practice Exercises written by the authors

e Discussion Cases for homework or class discussion

e Exercises to reinforce key concepts or applications

e Problems that integrate several concepts or techniques

e Sample CPA Exam Questions written to provide students with similar problems com-
monly found on the CPA exam

“Reverse Solvable” Problems at the end of chapters, identified by an icon, ask stu-
dents to demonstrate mastery of relationships and accounting concepts by working with
incomplete information to determine the data that is missing from the exercise, before
completing the assignment.

Case Materials have been designed to help accelerate the development of essential
skills in critical thinking, communication, research, and teamwork. Retention and ap-
plication of key concepts build as future accountants and business professionals take ad-
vantage of a wide range of tools found in this innovative section. These cases satisfy the
skills-based curriculum endorsed by the AICPA’s Core Competency Framework and the
recommendations of the Accounting Education Change Commission (AECC).

Deciphering Actual Financial Statements Cases enable students to analyze fi-
nancial data from recent annual reports from companies such as The Walt Disney Com-
pany, Coca-Cola, and the Boston Celtics.

Ethical Dilemma Assignments help develop the critical-thinking skills students will
need as they wrestle with the business world’s many “gray” issues.

Case 7-74

Ethical Dilemma

You recently graduated from college with your accounting degree. Your father’s best friend is the
director of the accounting department of a small manufacturing firm in the area, and you accepted a
position on his staff. After a month on the job, you have noticed several deficiencies in the cash controls
for the company. For example, the individual making the daily deposits at the bank is also in charge
of updating accounts receivable. You also notice that the petty cash fund is under general control of
everyone in the office (that means that no one person has ultimate responsibility) and that vouchers
are seldom completed when cash is removed from the fund. You bring your concerns to the attention
of your boss, your father’s friend, and he comments:

‘| appreciate your concerns. | knew when we hired you that you were sharp, but you need to
understand that not everything is done by the book here. We trust our employees. If we were to enforce
rigid controls on cash, it would create a nontrusting work environment. We don't want that. Sure, a little
money may turn up missing now and then, but it is a small price to pay. Now, don't you worry about
itanymore!

What do you do now? Would you be comfortable working in an environment where there is a lack of
control on cash? If a significant sum of money were to turn up missing and the control system was unable
to determine who was responsible, what would that do to the trusting work environment? And remember,
big sums of money never turned up missing until you came to work at the company.
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The Cumulative Spreadsheet Analysis Case builds upon the lessons of each
chapter to give students the opportunity to demonstrate and reinforce their understand-
ing. Found at the end of Chapters 2-5, 7-20, and 23, each exercise requires students to
create a spreadsheet that allows for numerous variables to be modified and their effects
to be monitored. By the end of the course, students have constructed a spreadsheet that
enables them to forecast operating cash flows for five years in the future, adjust forecasts
for the most reasonable operating parameters, and analyze the impact of a variety of ac-
counting assumptions based on the reported numbers.

Case 2-53 Cumulative Spreadsheet Analysis
Beginning with Chapter 2, each chapter in this text will include a spreadsheet assignment based on the financial
information of a fictitious company named Skywalker Enterprises. The assignments start out simple—in this
chapter you are not asked to do much more than set up financial statement formats and input some numbers.
In succeeding chapters, the spreadsheets will get more complex so that by the end of the course you will have
constructed a spreadsheet that allows you to forecast operating cash flows for five years in the future, adjust your
forecast depending on the operating parameters that you think are most reasonable, and analyze the impact of
a variety of accounting assumptions on the reported numbers.
So, let’s get started with the first spreadsheet assignment.

Bonus Content

Web-Based Chapter Enhancements

In response to instructor requests, subject-enhancing material from previous editions of the
text is available on the companion Web site. The result is a streamlined, easier-to-use text
that provides ample supplement material for important topics.

CHAPTER WEB MATERIAL
2 Illustration of Special Journals and Subsidiary Ledgers
5 Statement of Cash Flows—Indirect Method
7 Petty Cash Fund
8 Deposit Method: Franchising Industry
10 Complexities in Accounting for Capitalized Interest
13 Quasi-Reorganizations

Complexities in Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

14 Changes in Classification Involving the Equity Method

15 Real Estate Leases

16 Intraperiod Tax Allocation

17 Details of Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions

Detailed Pension Present Value Calculations

22 Foreign Currency

23 Impact of Changing Prices on Financial Statements
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Give your students instant feedback and
an online learning tool that will propel
them forward in this course!

Introducing CengageNOW™ for Stice/Stice: Intermediate
Accounting, 19e

/\ CengageNOW is an online homework solution in accounting that delivers better student

CENGAGENOW outcomes—NOW! CengageNOW encourages practice with the textbook homework that

is central to success in accounting with author-written homework from the textbook,

\/ automatic grading and tracking student progress, and course management tools, including
gradebook.

CengageNOW includes:

e End-of-chapter homework from the textbook written by the authors
e Integrated eBook

e Personalized Study Plan with pre-test, study plan based on students’ individual weak
areas, and post-test

e Ability to run reports to gauge individual class/student dynamics, report at institu-
tional level or to accrediting bodies based on outcomes

¢ Flexible course management tools

CengageNOW offers:

e Easy-to-use course management options that offer flexibility and continuity from one
semester to another. Includes all end-of-chapter questions, Test Bank, eBook, study
resources, and personalized learning plan. CengageNOW includes everything you and
your students need to be successful.

e Different levels of feedback and engaging student resources to guide students through
material and solidify learning.

e “Smart Entry” helps eliminate common typos and errors to help students do their best
work and understand the concept behind each answer.

e The ability to analyze student work from the gradebook and generate reports on learn-
ing outcomes for accreditation and other purposes.

e Robust assignment options allow you to control your course and make the system
work best for you and your students:

e Set prerequisites for assignments or extra credit
e Control the amount of feedback you give students

* Control the rigor of assignments by selecting different question types or grading
methods

e Easily change point values of questions or individual student grades

What Is a Personalized Study Plan? It is offered in CengageNOW as a diagnostic
tool with a Pre-Test, Customized Study Plan, and Post-Test for each chapter. It offers

XVi
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valuable study assets to empower students to master concepts. The resources available
with the personalized study plan for Intermediate Accounting, 19¢ are:

e Crossword Puzzles

e Key Terms

e Flashcards

e Student PowerPoint Slides
*  QuizBowl game

* eBook by learning objective

To order CengageNOW with Stice/Stice: Intermediate Accounting, 19e, contact your
sales representative to decide which purchasing option best suits your classroom and stu-
dents’ needs.

FOR INSTRUCTORS
Comprehensive Instructor Supplement Package

An unsurpassed package of supplementary resources allows you to make the most of your
time while providing valuable assignments and assessment for your students. To access
the online instructor’s resources for this text, please visit http://login.cengage.com/cb and
search for Stice/Stice: Intermediate Accounting, 19e, by author, title, or ISBN in the search
bar. Add to your bookshelf. Make sure to select that you also want to add CengageNOW
so that you can see what this valuable online resource has to offer!

Solutions Manual This manualis prepared by James D. Stice and Earl K. Stice, Brigham
Young University, and is available online. It contains independently verified answers to all
end-of-chapter questions, cases, exercises, and problems, written by the authors.

Test Bank The test bank is available online in both Word files and computerized Exam-
View versions. Test items include multiple-choice questions and short examination prob-
lems for each chapter, along with solutions. Analysis problems are included to coincide
with the emphasis on decision making in the text.

Instructor’s PowerPoint® Slides Hundreds of slides in PowerPoint format can be
used in onscreen lecture presentations or printed out and used as traditional overheads.
Additionally, they can be printed and distributed to students, allowing students to con-
centrate on the professor instead of rushing to copy down information. These slides are
available electronically on the companion Web site.

For Students

Excel Enhanced Spreadsheet Templates Excel templates with validations are
provided on the Web site for solving selected end-of-chapter exercises and problems.

Robust Product Support Web Site A robust Web site provides a wealth of resourc-
es for you and your students in Intermediate Accounting at no additional cost! With a
multitude of chapter-enhancing features and study aids, these resources will allow stu-
dents to excel in class and save you time in planning.
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CengageBrain: www.cengagebrain.com

Since not all students are the same, Cengage Learning offers Stice/Stice: Intermediate
Accounting, 19e, in a number of formats at a variety of discounted price points. Students
have the following options in purchasing their materials on CengageBrain:

e Hardback text

e Textbook rental

* eBook

e eChapters

e Standalone CengageNOW (that includes eBook)

Empower your students to choose the format that meets their needs at a price that fits
within their budget.

Alternate Formats

Create a Custom Solution that Fits Your Exact Needs! This service develops per-
sonalized solutions to meet your business education needs. Match your learning materials
to your syllabus and create the perfect learning solution. Consider the following when
looking at your customization options for Stice/Stice: Intermediate Accounting, 19e:

e Remove chapters you do not cover or rearrange their order, creating a streamlined and
efficient text.

* Add your own material to cover new topics or information or to easily provide stu-
dents with content you are currently printing and handing out to them, saving you
time in planning and providing students a fully integrated course resource.

e Add additional material such as cases or chapters from other textbooks.

Alternative Text Formats Please see information about alternative text formats such
as eBook, textbook rentals, and more under the student section.
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Financial Reporting

Learning Objectives

0 Describe the purpose of financial reporting and identify the
primary financial statements.

o Explain the function of accounting standards and describe
the role of the FASB in setting those standards in the United
States.

e Recognize the importance of the SEC, AICPA, AAA, and IRS to
financial reporting.

Realize the growing importance and relevance of
international accounting issues to the practice of accounting

It all started with a French accountant named René
Ricol. In mid-2008, Mr. Ricol was commissioned by
French President Nicolas Sarkozy to write a report on
the impact of the worldwide financial crisis of 2007
and 2008." This 148-page report covers a variety of
topics including the origins of the crisis, the ongoing
response by governments and business, and 30 de-
tailed recommendations for additional actions. But on
page 53, Mr. Ricol wrote something that was to have
explosive consequences. He wrote: “At present, it is im-
portant to ensure that ... a level playing field between
European and U.S. [accounting] rules is achieved.” By

in the United States and understand the role of the IASB in
international accounting standard setting.

o Understand the significance of the FASB's conceptual
framework in outlining the qualities of good accounting
information, defining terms such as asset and revenue,
and providing guidance about appropriate recognition,
measurement, and reporting.

e Identify career opportunities related to accounting and
financial reporting and understand the importance of
personal ethics in the practice of accounting.

implication, according to Mr. Ricol, one reason that
European banks were having such severe difficulties
in the third quarter of 2008 was that U.S. accounting
rules were giving an advantage to U.S. banks.

Mr. Sarkozy passed Mr. Ricol’s report along to the
assembled EU Finance Ministers, who happened to
be meeting in Paris. These ministers were shocked—
shocked to learn that U.S. accounting rules were creat-
ing an “unlevel playing field” to the advantage of U.S.
banks. The Finance Ministers issued a communiqué on
October 7, 2008, calling for:“[T]he necessity of avoiding
any distortion of treatment between U.S. and European

Foundations
of Financial
Accounting

' René Ricol, “Report to the President of the French Republic on the Financial Crisis,” September 2008.
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banks due to differences in accounting rules. . . . We also consider that
the issue of asset reclassification must be resolved quickly. . . . We
expect this issue to be solved by the end of the month, with the objec-
tive to implement as of the third quarter.”

So, to whom was the call to arms addressed? To the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), based in London and designated
by the European Union as the approved source of accounting stan-
dards for all EU nations. IASB standards, collectively known as Inter-
national Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), are also recognized as
the source of generally accepted accounting principles in every siz-
able economy in the world . . . every sizable economy except one, the
United States.

Attention turned to Sir David Tweedie, chairman of the IASB.
Sir David was told that the IASB had three days to revise IFRS. Three
days? The due process requirements of both the IASB and its U.S.
counterpart, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), typi-
cally result in proposed accounting standards being circulated and
discussed for years, not days. However, Sir David was told that with-
out an immediate rule change, the EU would go around the IASB and
unilaterally change the accounting rules for companies in its con-
stituent countries. It is reported that Sir David considered resigning.?
However, in order to live to fight another day, he succumbed to the
EU pressure and rushed through the accounting change.

So, what was this accounting rule that was viewed as threaten-
ing the very survival of European banks? The accountants call it “fair
value accounting,”and in the business press it is often called “mark-to-
market accounting.” For companies, such as banks, that actively trade
stocks and bonds, the mark-to-market rule says that the investments
must be reported on the company’s books at current market value,
with any paper gains or losses (called “unrealized” gains or losses by the
accountants) being reported in the company’s income statement. Well,
during the third quarter of 2008 (from July 2008 through September
2008), there had been HUGE paper losses for banks and other investors
all over the world. These losses reduced the recorded capital of banks
and threatened to put many banks in violation of their regulatory capi-
tal requirements. So, you can see why banks in particular were upset at
“mark-to-market accounting:’ Note: No one seemed to complain much
about mark-to-market accounting in the years when the market was up.

Back to Mr. Ricol. He claimed to have found a provision in the U.S.
accounting rules that allowed U.S. banks to reclassify their investment
securities into a category that accountants call “held to maturity” The
important thing about held-to-maturity securities is that they are
reported in the balance sheet at their original cost, not their current mar-
ket value, with any changes in value being ignored. Thus, this appears
to be a loophole that U.S. banks could use to sidestep the harsh impact
of mark-to-market accounting. At least that is the way this U.S. rule was

2 Ecofin Council of 7 October 2008, “Immediate responses to financial turmoil.”

explained to the EU Finance Ministers. What the Finance Ministers were
not told is that this reclassification is so rare that no one can think of an
example of a U.S. company ever actually doing it. In addition, the U.S.
rule requires the reclassification to “held-to-maturity” to be done at the
prevailing market value on the date of the reclassification, so any paper
gains or losses must be recorded in full on that day. This doesn’t seem
like much of a loophole. But remember, the EU Finance Ministers prob-
ably weren't given a full briefing on all the aspects of the U.S. rule; they
were only told that this U.S. loophole allowed U.S. banks to avoid mark-
to-market accounting, thus appearing to create an unlevel international
playing field with European banks being the losers.

Now the story gets really interesting. In drafting the hasty revi-
sion to its rules, someone in the IASB (no one is saying who) made
the IASB version of this reclassification rule applicable retroactively
to July 1, 2008. Very clever. The IASB rule was approved on October
13, 2008, two weeks AFTER the end of the fiscal third quarter of the
year.* By that time, European banks were able to see which of their
investments had gone up and which had gone down during the third
quarter. This new IASB rule allowed the European banks to roll back
the clock to July 1, 2008, and with the benefit of hindsight, desig-
nate some investments to be accounted for using mark-to-market
accounting (probably the ones that they now knew went up during
the third quarter) and some investments to be reclassified as “held
to maturity” at the value existing as of July 1 (probably the ones that
they knew, with hindsight, went down during the third quarter).

So, this IASB rule revision, intended to “level” the international
playing field, substantially tilted the playing field in favor of those
European banks that chose to use it. Some European banks quickly
backed away from this blatant manipulation of the accounting rules
for their benefit. For example, in its third quarter 2008 financial
report, BNP Paribas specifically stated that: “BNP Paribas did not use,
in the third quarter 2008, the amendment to the IAS 39 accounting
standard authorising the transfer of certain assets . . . from the trad-
ing book to other portfolios”” On the other hand, Deutsche Bank
gratefully used the retroactive provision to turn a loss into a profit.
Without the retroactive reclassifications, Deutsche Bank would have
reported a pretax loss of €732 million for the third quarter. With the
reclassifications, Deutsche Bank was able report a pretax profit of
€93 million, which it proudly hailed in its third quarter report.°®

There are certainly historical examples of U.S. politicians putting
pressure on the FASB to revise its rules for some perceived benefit or
another. But in the United States, the FASB is somewhat shielded from
these pressures by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).
Internationally, there is no global SEC, so the IASB was left on its own
to experience the full force of the European Union’s political pressure.
Predictably, when faced with an EU ultimatum, the IASB buckled.

* David Jetuah, "Tweedie nearly quit after fair value change,” Accountancy Age, November 12, 2008.
4 "Reclassification of Financial Assets—Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures,” International Accounting

Standards Board, London, October 2008.
> BNP Paribas Press Release, “Results as at 30 September 2008,” November 5, 2008, Paris.

© Deutsche Bank, “Interim Report as of September 30, 2008,” October 2008, Frankfurt am Main, pages 2 and 53.
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Across the Atlantic, U.S. regulators and the U.S. business commu-
nity could only stand back and watch this political power play with a
mixture of amazement and disgust. As of October 2008, the SEC had
an announced policy, a“time line,"for shifting all U.S. accounting rule-
making responsibility to the IASB by 2014. This policy stemmed from
two incontrovertible facts: (1) global capital markets demand a uni-
form set of accounting rules, and (2) the world will never accept“Yan-
kee” control of this one-world standard. So, the SEC had the choice
of either watching the international harmonization parade go by or
getting in line behind the IASB banner. However, the October 2008
IASB debacle caused both the SEC and the U.S. business community
to reevaluate the benefits of ceding standard-setting power to the
IASB, an organization that had now revealed itself as being subject
to powers more interested in the well-being of European banks than
in any abstract notion of global accounting harmony. It was time to
rethink the “time line.”

SEC Chairman Mary Shapiro was never as enthusiastic about
international accounting convergence as her predecessor, Christo-
pher Cox, was. She was fearful of “convergence” really being a “race
to the bottom” in terms of a degradation in the quality of the U.S.
financial reporting environment. During 2009, Chairman Shapiro
said cautiously that the “time line” was on hold until the SEC deter-
mined exactly how it wanted to proceed.

The SEC's new international accounting convergence “work plan”
was announced on February 24, 2010.” The SEC is still convinced that
“a single set of high-quality globally accepted accounting standards
would benefit U.S. investors.” However, the SEC has expressed con-
cern about both the quality of the international standards and the
process by which those standards are set. Specifically, before ceding

standard-making authority to the IASB (or any other international
body, for that matter), the SEC wants to ensure that “accounting stan-
dards are set by an independent standard-setter and for the benefit
of investors.” The implication is that the SEC wants to be convinced
that the IASB won't again cave in to EU pressure to twist an account-
ing rule to the benefit of European banks or some other powerful EU
constituency. The SEC’s “work plan” also states that the SEC will not
switch over to IFRS until 2015, at the earliest.

The IASB has since attempted to create a barrier between itself
and the political pressure aimed at it—a Monitoring Board that
includes representation from a number of important international
regulators, including SEC chair Shapiro. It isn’t clear yet whether this
Monitoring Board has or can serve as a shield between the IASB and
international political pressure. Time will tell.

So, what has been the result of that report written by René Ricol?
The primary result has been to bring home, dramatically, the remain-
ing barriers to international convergence in financial reporting. The
U.S. business community was forced to face the reality that it really
doesn’t want its reporting rules set by a London-based group that is
essentially controlled by the European Union. In addition, all inter-
ested parties, both in the United States and overseas, have seen that
the IASB differs from the FASB in one extremely important way—the
pronouncements of the FASB have the force of law because the reg-
ulatory power of the SEC is behind them. But who will enforce the
pronouncements of the IASB? Who will ensure that the provisions
are applied in a consistent way in each country around the world?
Will it ever really be possible to have one truly global set of account-
ing standards, uniformly interpreted, implemented, and audited? For
now, it looks like the answer may be: No.

1. What is “mark-to-market accounting”?

2. When the IASB adopted its amended rule in October 2008, what was significant
about the fact that the rule was written so that companies could apply the rule
retroactively to July 1, 2008?

3. Whatimpact did the October 2008 IASB debacle have in the United States?

Answers to these questions can be found on page 1-35.

n this text, you will learn about many of the key accounting issues integral to an un-
derstanding of the October 2008 TASB case described above: the accounting for invest-
ment securities in Chapter 14, fair value accounting in the Fair Value Module, and the
ongoing effort by the TASB and the FASB to achieve convergence on a globally accepted
set of high-quality accounting standards. In fact, this TASB-FASB convergence is such an
important issue that it is discussed in every chapter in this book, starting with this one.
As the October 2008 TASB case illustrates, the intricacies of accounting often result
in differences of opinion as to what accounting methods are appropriate and the level of

7 SEC Press Release 2010-27, "SEC Approves Statement on Global Accounting Standards,” U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, February 24, 2010, Washington, D.C.
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WHY the purpose of financial
reporting is to aid interested parties
in evaluating a company’s past
performance and in forecasting its
future performance. The informa-
tion about past events is intended
to improve future operations and
forecasts of future cash flows.

HOW Internal users have the
ability to receive custom-designed
accounting reports. External users
must rely on the general-purpose
financial statements. The five
major components of the financial
statements are:

- Balance sheet

+ Income statement

- Statement of cash flows

- Explanatory notes

+ Auditor’s opinion

P1 | Foundations of Financial Accounting

disclosure that should be required of companies. Arguments over appropriate accounting
are facts of life because accounting involves judgment. Even in cases that don’t involve
financial statement scandal or political intrigue, the management of a company is likely
to have some accounting disagreements with the independent auditor before the com-
pany’s financial statements are released. If a company falters, outside analysts are sure to
find accounting judgments with which, in retrospect, they disagree. If the FASB or IASB
propose a new accounting rule, it is certain that some business executives will proclaim
the rule to be utterly absurd. This is not because managers are sleazy, conniving, and
self-serving (although such managers certainly exist); it is because the business world is a
complex place filled with complex transactions, and reasonable people can disagree about
how to account for those transactions. As the chapters in this book will explain in detail,
accounting for the complex transactions that are commonplace today is much more than
the simple “bean-counting” image portrayed of accounting in the popular press.

Your introductory accounting course gave you an overview of the primary financial
statements and touched briefly on such topics as revenue recognition, depreciation, leases,
pensions, deferred taxes, LIFO, and financial instruments. In intermediate accounting, all
these topics are back, bigger and better than ever. Now, instead of getting an overview, you
will actually get the nuts and bolts. Yes, some of these topics are complex—they are com-
plex because the business world is a complex place. However, when you complete your
course in intermediate accounting, you will be quite comfortable with a set of financial
statements. In fact, you will probably find yourself skipping the statements themselves and
turning directly to the really interesting reading—the notes.

Now is an exciting time to be studying accounting. Students have been learning
double-entry bookkeeping for more than 500 years. Now it will be your privilege to wit-
ness the transformation of financial reporting via the twin forces of internationalization
and information technology. Over the next five years, the increased integration of the
worldwide market for capital will finally force diverse national accounting practices to
converge to one global standard, with the United States being one of the last countries to
accept that global standard. This text will help you understand the “how and why” of this
process. In the longer term, the power of computers to create and analyze huge databases
will change the very nature of accounting. Users will not learn about companies through
a few pages of financial statements and notes but, ultimately, through online access to the
raw financial data. It isn’t clear what “accounting” will entail in the technological future,
but it is certain that those professionals trained in the underlying concepts of accounting
and in the importance of accounting judgment and accounting estimates will be best able
to make the transition. This book is intended to prepare you for the future.

Accounting and Financial Reporting

a Describe the purpose of financial reporting and identify the primary financial statements.

The overall objective of accounting is to provide information that can be used in making
economic decisions.

Accounting is a service activity. Its function is to provide quantitative information, primarily
financial in nature, about economic entities that is intended to be useful in making economic
decisions—in making reasoned choices among alternative courses of action.®

8 Statement of the Accounting Principles Board No. 4, “Basic Concepts and Accounting Principles Underlying Financial Statements of Business
Enterprises” (New York: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, 1970), par. 40.
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1 Financial Reporting 1-5

Several key features of this definition should be noted.

e Accounting provides a vital service in today’s business environment. The study of
accounting should not be viewed as a theoretical exercise—accounting is meant to be
a practical tool.

e Accounting is concerned primarily with quantitative financial information that is used
in conjunction with qualitative evaluations in making judgments.

® Accounting information is used in making decisions about how to allocate scarce
resources. Economists and environmentalists remind us constantly that we live in a
world with limited resources. The better the accounting system that measures and re-
ports the costs of using these resources, the better decisions can be made for allocating
them.

e Although accountants place much emphasis on reporting what has already occurred,
this past information is intended to be useful in making economic decisions about the

future.
. Users of Accounting
Ca utlon Information
Remember that accounting information is only one type of information used Who uses aszounting inform'ation and
in decision making. In many cases, qualitative data are more useful than what information do they require to meet
guantitative data. their decision-making needs? In general,
all parties interested in the financial health

of a company are called stakeholders.
Stakeholder users of accounting information are normally divided into two major
classifications:

e Internal users, who make decisions directly affecting the internal operations of the
enterprise

e External users, who make decisions concerning their relationship to the enterprise

Major internal and external stakeholder groups are listed in Exhibit 1-1.

Internal users need information to assist in planning and controlling company operations
and managing company resources. The accounting system must provide timely information
needed to control day-to-day operations and to make major planning decisions such as:

* Do we make this product or another one?

* Do we build a new production plant or expand existing facilities?

Management accounting (sometimes referred to as managerial or cost accounting) is
concerned primarily with financial reporting for internal users. Internal users, especially
management, have control over the accounting system and can specify precisely what
information is needed and how the information is to be reported.

Financial accounting focuses on the development and communication of financial
information for external users. As a company grows and expands, it often finds its need
for cash to be greater than that provided from profitable operations. In this situation, it
will turn to people or organizations external to the company for funding. These external
users need assurances that they will receive a return on their investment. Thus, they require
information about the company’s past performance because this information will allow
them to forecast how the company can be expected to perform in the future.

Companies compete for external funding because external users have a variety of
investment alternatives. The accounting information provided to external users aids in
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Exhibit 1-1| Major Internal and External Stakeholder Groups
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determining (1) whether a company’s operations are profitable enough to justify addi-
tional funding and (2) how risky a company’s operations are in order to determine what
rate of return is necessary to compensate capital providers for the investment risk.

The types of decisions made by external users vary widely; therefore, their information
needs are highly diverse. As a result, two groups of external users, creditors and investors,
have been identified as the principal external users of financial information. Creditors
need information about the profitability and stability of the company to decide whether
to lend money to the company and, if so, what interest rate to charge. Investors (both
existing stockholders and potential investors) need information concerning the safety and
profitability of their investment.

Incentives

As mentioned, companies often need external funding if they are to compete in the mar-
ketplace. Thus, the managers of these companies have an incentive to provide information
that will attract external funding. They want to present information to external users that
will make it appear as though their companies will be profitable in the future.

In their pursuit of external funding, management may not be as objective in evaluating
and presenting accounting information as external users would like. As a result, care must
be taken to ensure that accounting information is neutral. Standards have been established
and safeguards have been implemented in an attempt to ensure that accounting informa-
tion is neutral and objective.
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Financial Reporting

Most accounting systems are designed to generate information for both internal and
external reporting. The external information is much more highly summarized than the
information reported internally. Understandably, a company does not want to disclose
every detail of its internal financial dealings to outsiders. For this reason, external financial
reporting is governed by an established body of standards or principles that are designed
to carefully define what information a firm must disclose to outsiders. Financial account-
ing standards also establish a uniform method of presenting information so that financial
reports for different companies can be more easily compared. The development of these
standards is discussed in some detail later in this chapter.

This textbook focuses on financial accounting and external reporting. The general-
purpose financial statements are the centerpiece of financial accounting. These financial
statements include the balance sheet, income statement, and statement of cash flows.

The three major financial statements, along with the explanatory notes and the
auditor’s opinion, are briefly described here.

e The balance sheet reports, as of a certain point in time, the resources of a company
(the assets), the company’s obligations (the liabilities), and the net difference be-
tween its assets and liabilities, which represents the equity of the owners. The bal-
ance sheet addresses these fundamental questions: What does a company own? What
does it owe?

e The income statement reports, for a certain interval, the net assets generated through
business operations (revenues), the net assets consumed (expenses), and the difference,
which is called net income. The income statement is the accountant’s best effort at
measuring the economic performance of a company for the given period.

e The statement of cash flows reports, for a certain interval, the amount of cash generated
and consumed by a company through the following three types of activities: operating,
investing, and financing. The statement of

FY!

The cash flow statement is the most recent of the primary financial state-
ments. It has been required only since 1988.

cash flows is the most objective of the fi-
nancial statements because it is somewhat
insulated from the accounting estimates
and judgments needed to prepare a balance
sheet and an income statement.

* Accounting estimates and judgments

are outlined in the notes to the financial

Stop ¢

statements. In addition, the notes con-
tain supplemental information as well
as information about items not included
in the financial statements. Using fi-

In addition to the financial statements, the management of a company has a nancial statements without reading the
variety of other methods of communicating financial information to external notes is like preparing for an intermedi-
users. Which ONE of the following is NOT one of those methods? ate accounting exam by just reading the

a) Press releases

table of contents of the textbook—you

b) Postings on the Internet get the general picture, but you miss all
o) Interviews with financial reporters of the important details. Each financial
d) Paid advertisements in the financial press statement routinely carries the follow-
e) Preparation and dissemination of detailed operating budgets ing warning printed at the bottom of
f) Public meetings with analysts, institutional investors, and other interested the statement: “The notes to the finan-

parties cial statements are an integral part of

this statement.”
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WHY By defining which accounting
methods to use and how much
information to disclose, accounting
standards save time and money

for accountants. Users also benefit
because they can learn one set of
accounting rules to apply to all
companies.

HOW The Financial Account-

ing Standards Board (FASB) sets
accounting standards in the United
States. The FASB is a private-sector
body and has no legal authority.
Accordingly, the FASB must carefully
balance theory and practice in order
to maintain credibility in the business
community. The issuance of a new
accounting standard is preceded by a
lengthy public discussion. The Emerg-
ing Issues Task Force (EITF) works
under the direction of the FASB and
formulates a timely expert consensus
on how to handle new issues not yet
covered in FASB pronouncements.

P1 | Foundations of Financial Accounting

Exhibit 1-2 | Relative Frequency of Audit Opinions

Types of Audit Opinions
Relative Frequency

For the Year 2006 Companies
UNQUALIFIED: Financial statements are in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. They are consistent, and all material information has
been disclosed. 2,369
UNQUALIFIED, WITH EXPLANATORY LANGUAGE: The opinion is unqualified, but the
auditor has felt it necessary to emphasize some item with further language. 3,624

QUALIFIED: Either the audit firm was somehow constrained from performing

all the desired tests, or some item is accounted for in a way with which the

auditor disagrees. 5
NO OPINION: The auditor refuses to express an opinion, usually because there

is great uncertainty about whether the audited firm will be able to remain in

business. 0
ADVERSE: The financial statements are not in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles. 1
Total 5999

Source: Standard and Poor's COMPUSTAT. The database includes firms traded on the New York, American, and NASDAQ exchanges.

e Auditors, working independently of a company’s management and internal accoun-
tants, examine the financial statements and issue an auditor’s opinion about the
fairness of the statements and their adherence to proper accounting principles. The
opinion is based on evidence gathered by the auditor from the detailed records and
documents maintained by the company and from a review of the controls over the
accounting system. Obviously, management is motivated to present the financial infor-
mation in the most favorable manner possible. It is the responsibility of the auditors
to review management’s reports and to independently decide whether the reports are
indeed representative of the actual conditions existing within the enterprise. The audi-
tor’s opinion adds credibility to the financial statements. The types of opinions issued
by auditors, along with their relative frequencies, are outlined in Exhibit 1-2. As you
can see, the audit opinion is almost always “unqualified.”

The financial statements and accompanying notes (certified by the auditor’s opinion)

have historically been the primary mode of communicating financial information to
external users.

Development of Accounting Standards

0 Explain the function of accounting standards and describe the role of the FASB in setting those standards in the United
States.

Consider this situation. A company decides to pay its managers partly in cash and partly
in the form of options to buy the company’s stock. The options would be very valuable if
the company’s stock price were to increase but would be worthless if the company’s stock
price were to decline. Because the company gives these potentially valuable options to
employees, cash salaries don’t need to be as high.

Should the value of the options be reported as salary expense or not? (You’ll learn
the answer to this surprisingly explosive question in Chapter 13.) One alternative is to let
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each company decide for itself. Users then must be careful about comparing the financial
statements of two companies that have accounted for the same thing differently. Another
alternative is to have one standard accounting treatment. Who sets the standard?

Accounting principles and procedures have evolved over hundreds of years in response
to changes in business practices. The formal standard-setting process that exists today in
the United States, however, has developed in just the past 75 years. The triggering event
was the Stock Market Crash of 1929. In the aftermath of the crash, many market observ-
ers claimed that stock prices had been artificially inflated through questionable accounting
practices. The Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) was created to protect the
interests of investors by ensuring full and fair disclosure. The SEC was also given specific
legal authority to establish accounting standards for companies desiring to publicly issue
shares in the United States. The emergence of the SEC forced the U.S. accounting profes-
sion to unite and to become more diligent in developing accounting principles. This led
over time to the formation of a series of different private-sector organizations, each having
the responsibility of issuing accounting standards. These organizations, their publications,
and the time they were in existence are identified in Exhibit 1-3. The SEC has gener-
ally allowed these private-sector organizations to make the accounting standards in the
United States. These standards are commonly referred to as generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). Remember, however, that the SEC retains the legal authority to estab-
lish U.S. accounting standards if it so chooses.

Financial Accounting Standards Board

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) is currently recognized as the private-
sector body responsible for the establishment of U.S. accounting standards. The FASB
was organized in 1973, replacing the Accounting Principles Board (APB). The APB was
replaced because it had lost credibility in the business community and was seen as being
too heavily influenced by accountants. As a result, the seven full-time members of the
FASB are drawn from a variety of backgrounds—auditing, corporate accounting, financial
services, and academia.’ The members are required to sever all connections with their firms

Exhibit 1-3 | U.S. Accounting Standard-Setting Bodies

© Cengage Learning 2014

® When it was initially established, the FASB was structured to have seven board members. This number was reduced to five on July 1, 2008.
In August 2010, it was announced that the FASB would return to seven board members in 2011.
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or institutions prior to assuming membership on the Board. Members are appointed for
five-year terms and are eligible for reappointment to one additional term. Headquartered
in Norwalk, Connecticut, the Board has its own research staff and a 2011 operating bud-
get of $35.6 million, much of which comes from fees levied under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
on companies publicly traded in the United States.

Appointment of new Board members is done by the Financial Accounting Foundation
(FAF). The FAF is an independent, self-perpetuating body that, like the FASB, is made up
of representatives from the accounting profession, the business world, government, and
academia. However, the FAF has no standard-setting power, and its members are not full
time. The FAF serves somewhat like a board of directors, overseeing the operations of
the FASB. In addition to overseeing the FASB, the FAF is also responsible for selecting
and supporting members of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The
GASB was established in 1984 and sets financial accounting standards for state and local
government entities.

The Standard-Setting Process

The major functions of the FASB are to study accounting issues and to establish accounting
standards. These standards are published as Accounting Standards Updates. The FASB has
also issued Statements of Financial Accounting Concepts that provide a framework within
which specific accounting standards can be developed. The conceptual framework of the
FASB is detailed later in the chapter.

The hallmark of the FASB’s standard-setting process is openness. Because so many
companies and individuals are impacted by the FASB’s standards, the Board is meticulous
about holding open meetings and inviting public comment. At any given time, the Board
has a number of major projects under way. For example, as of September 10, 2012, the
FASB was engaged in 21 agenda projects, 9 of which are joint projects with the TASB,
which is described later in this chapter. These FASB projects address fundamental issues
such as revenue recognition as well as technical issues relating to very complex business
transactions such as insurance contracts.

Each major project undertaken by the Board involves a lengthy process. The FASB
staff assembles background information and the Board holds public meetings before a
decision is made to even add a project to the FASB’s formal agenda. After more study and
further hearings, the Board often issues a report summarizing its Preliminary Views, which
identifies the principal issues involved with the topic. This document includes a discussion
of the various points of view as to the resolution of the issues, as well as an extensive bib-

liography, but it does not include specific

FY!

The FASB is quite scrupulous about holding all of its deliberations in public.
In fact, since four (of seven) votes are required to pass a FASB proposal, Board
members are even careful not to discuss accounting issues at social occa-
sions when three or more Board members are present.

conclusions. Interested parties are invited
to comment either in writing or orally at a
public hearing.

After comments from interested par-
ties have been evaluated, the Board meets
as many times as necessary to resolve the
issues. These meetings are open to the pub-
lic, and the agenda is published in advance.

From these meetings, the Board develops an
Exposure Draft of a statement that includes specific recommendations for financial account-
ing and reporting.

After the Exposure Draft has been issued, reaction to the new document is again
requested from the accounting and business communities. At the end of the exposure period,
60 days or longer if the topic is a major one, all comments are reviewed by the staff and
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Caution

This description makes the standard-setting process seem orderly and se-
rene. It is not. Fierce disagreements over accounting standards are common,

and some people hate the FASB.

the Board. Further deliberation by the Board
leads to either the issuance of an Account-
ing Standards Update (if at least four of the
FASB members approve), a revised Exposure
Draft, or in some cases, abandonment of the
project. As you can see, the standard-setting
process is a political one, full of consensus

building, feedback, and compromise.

The final statement not only sets forth
the actual standards but also establishes the effective date and method of transition. It
also gives pertinent background information and the basis for the Board’s conclusions,
including reasons for rejecting significant alternative solutions. If any members dissent
from the majority view, they may include the reasons for their dissent as part of the docu-
ment. These dissents are interesting reading. For example, the dissent to the standard on
the statement of cash flows (released in 1987) reveals that the Board members disagreed
about a fundamental issue—whether payment of interest is an operating activity or a
financing activity.'?

Emerging Issues Task Force The methodical, sometimes slow, nature of the
standard-setting process has been one of the principal points of criticism of the FASB.
There seems to be no alternative to the lengthy process, however, given the philosophy that
arriving at a consensus among members of the accounting profession and other interested
parties is important to the Board’s credibility.

In an effort to overcome this criticism and provide more timely guidance on issues, in
1984 the FASB established the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF). The EITF assists the
FASB in the early identification of emerging issues that affect financial reporting. Members
of the EITF include the senior technical partners of the major national CPA firms plus
representatives from major associations of preparers of financial statements. In addition,
observers from the SEC, the AICPA, and the TASB (three organizations discussed later in
this chapter) are invited to participate in the EITF discussions. The EITF meets periodi-
cally, typically at least once every quarter.

As an emerging issue is discussed, an attempt is made to arrive at a consensus treat-
ment for the issue. If a consensus is reached by the EITF, that consensus must then be
approved by a majority of the FASB members. That consensus opinion then defines the
generally accepted accounting treatment unless and until the FASB decides to recon-
sider the issue. The EITF not only helps the FASB and its staff to better understand
emerging issues but also in many cases determines that no immediate FASB action is
necessary.

The consensus opinions of the EITF are published as Accounting Standards Updates.
These updates are identified by a two-part number; the first part represents the year the
issue was discussed, and the second part identifies the update number for that year. For
example, among the consensuses reached in 2010 was Update No. 2010-17, “Milestone
Method of Revenue Recognition,” which deals with the timing of the reporting of revenue
in long-term projects involving significant performance milestones such as the completion

°Three of the seven members of the FASB dissented to the issuance of the standard on the statement of cash flows. Prior to 1991, a major-
ity of the seven-member board (four members) was the minimum requirement for approval of an Exposure Draft or a final statement of
standards. This requirement was changed to a minimum approval of five members, or to what has been referred to as a “super-majority.”
A number of close, four to three, votes that resulted in standards not favored by many businesspeople led to strong pressure on the
Financial Accounting Foundation to change the voting requirements. Although not favored by members of the FASB, the change was
made in 1990. In April 2002, the voting requirement was changed back to four to three as an attempt to increase the efficiency and speed
of the Board's deliberations.
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of certain regulatory requirements in a pharmaceutical study. (Note: We will talk about
revenue recognition at length in Chapter 8.) Although many of the issues are very special-
ized by topic and industry, the importance of the EITF to the standard-setting process
cannot be overemphasized. Because discussions rarely last more than a day or two and a
consensus is reached on a majority of the issues discussed, timely guidance is provided to
the accounting profession without the lengthy due process of the FASB.

FASB Accounting Standards Codification™ As you saw in the discussion above,
both the FASB standards and the EITF consensus opinions are published as Accounting
Standards Updates. These Updates serve as formal notification that the official body of
generally accepted accounting standards (GAAP) has been updated. This official source of
U.S. GAAP is called the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) and is found on
the FASB’s Web site at asc.fasb.org.

Prior to the launching of the FASB ASC in July 2009, the FASB standards and the
EITF consensus opinions were made available as numbered lists of items. So, if you
wanted to know about the accounting for research and development costs, for example,
you had to know that the accounting for normal R&D costs was contained in FASB
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 2 (released in 1974), unless the R&D
cost was for software development, in which case the accounting was described in State-
ment No. 86 (released in 1985). In other words, for everyone except the experienced
practitioners and the old accounting professors who had been around for a thousand
years, finding a specific accounting rule on a specific topic involved a primitive hunt-and-
peck strategy.

The FASB ASC employs a topical menu structure. Accounting topics are grouped
under nine broad categories. Each category contains a collection of topics. For example,
under the Presentation group of topics, you can find Topic 210 on the balance sheet, Topic
230 on the statement of cash flows, Topic 260 on earnings per share, and more. Under
the Broad Transactions group of topics, you can find Topic 805 on business combinations,
Topic 840 on leases, and more. A list of topic groupings and individual topics is given in
Exhibit 1-4."

Within each Topic, the accounting standard content is organized in additional menus
leading eventually down to the paragraph level. A paragraph in the FASB ASC is identified
with a four-part address: Topic-Subtopic-Section-Paragraph. For example, the paragraph
that explains that cash paid for interest is to be classified in the statement of cash flows as
an operating activity is FASB ASC 230-10-45-17.

e The first number, 230, designates the topic Statement of Cash Flows (which is in the
Presentation group of topics).

e The second number, 10, indicates that this is an Overall issue, or subtopic. Other types
of subtopics provide standards for particular types of transactions or industries. For
example, under Topic 230, there are subtopics explaining statement of cash flow issues
related to foreign currency exchange rates, cash flows in the film industry, and others.

e The third number, 45, indicates that this section addresses “Other Presentation Mat-
ters.” The set of sections under each subtopic is standardized. For most subtopics you
will see a section (10) on Objectives, another section (30) on how accounting items are
to be initially measured, and so forth.

e Finally, the fourth number (17) indicates the exact paragraph where the text of the
accounting standard is found. In this case, FASB ASC paragraph 230-10-45-17 reads

" For those who have a subscription to the “Professional View” of the FASB ASC, key word searches are also possible. The “Basic View" is free,
and instructions for registering for the “Basic View" are given in this chapter. The “Professional View" costs about $800 per year. However,
your college or university accounting department may have registered for free student access to the “Professional View.” Ask your instructor.
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as follows (in part): “All of the following are cash outflows for operating activities . . .
(d) Cash payments to lenders and other creditors for interest.”

In this textbook you will see many, many references to the FASB ASC. Any person who
plans to work in a field where financial statements are prepared or used needs to become
comfortable with the Codification. Each chapter in this book includes a short research

| Topics in the FASB Accounting Standards Codification as of September 2012

General Principles Equity
105 Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 505 Equity
Presentation Revenue
205 Presentation of Financial Statements 605 Revenue Recognition
210 Balance Sheet
215 Statement of Shareholder Equity Expenses
220 Comprehensive Income 705 Cost of Sales and Services
225 Income Statement 710 Compensation—General
230 Statement of Cash Flows 712 Compensation—Nonretirement Postemployment Benefits
235 Notes to Financial Statements 715 Compensation—Retirement Benefits
250 Accounting Changes and Error Corrections 718 Compensation—Stock Compensation
255 Changing Prices 720 Other Expenses
260 Earnings Per Share 730 Research and Development
270 Interim Reporting 740 Income Taxes
272 Limited Liability Entities
274 Personal Financial Statements Broad Transactions
275 Risks and Uncertainties 805 Business Combinations
280 Segment Reporting 808 Collaborative Arrangements
810 Consolidation
Assets 815 Derivatives and Hedging
305 Cash and Cash Equivalents 820 Fair Value Measurement
310 Receivables 825 Financial Instruments
320 Investments—Debt and Equity Securities 830 Foreign Currency Matters
323 Investments—Equity Method and Joint Ventures 835 Interest
325 Investments—Other 840 Leases
330 Inventory 845 Nonmonetary Transactions
340 Other Assets and Deferred Costs 850 Related Party Disclosures
350 Intangibles—Goodwill and Other 852 Reorganizations
360 Property, Plant, and Equipment 855 Subsequent Events
860 Transfers and Servicing
Liabilities
Note: The specific Industry topics are omitted from this list of topics.
405  Liabilities Go to asc.fasb.org to see the entire list.
410 Asset Retirement and Environmental Obligations
420 Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations
430 Deferred Revenue
440 Commitments
450 Contingencies
460 Guarantees
470 Debt
480 Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity

© Cengage Learning 2014
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WHY Finandial accounting rules are
not created by the FASB in a vacuum,
and numerous groups provide input
into the development of accounting
standards.

HOW Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC). To speed the
improvement of disclosure, the

SEC sometimes implements broad
disclosure requirements in areas still
being deliberated by the FASB.

American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (AICPA). The AICPA
establishes some accounting guid-
ance, particularly in areas related to
specific industries.

American Accounting Association
(AAA). The AAA helps disseminate
research results and facilitates
improvements in accounting
education.

Internal Revenue Service (IRS).
Finandial accounting is not the same
as tax accounting. However, many
specifics learned in intermediate
accounting are similar to the
corresponding tax rules.

P1 | Foundations of Financial Accounting

exercise to give you practice finding things in the ASC. And the end of each chapter includes
a matrix that summarizes the FASB ASC material relating to the items covered in that chap-
ter. This matrix also includes references to the old pre-Codification standard numbers, just
in case you run across a long-time accountant who has refused to learn the new Codification
references. Finally, these end-of-chapter matrices contain the corresponding references to
the International Accounting Standards, which are discussed later in this chapter.

FASB Summary Remember this: The FASB has no enforcement power. Legal authority
to set U.S. accounting standards rests with the SEC. FASB standards are “generally ac-
cepted,” meaning that, overall, the FASB standards are viewed by the business community
as being good accounting. However, the credibility of the FASB has fluctuated through the
years as different issues have been resolved. For example, within the past 10 years the busi-
ness community has been outraged by proposed standards for accounting for stock-based
compensation and for goodwill. In both of those cases (which are discussed in Chapters
13 and 10, respectively), the FASB was forced to significantly revise its initial proposal.
The FASB’s job has been described as a “balancing act” between theoretical correctness
and practical acceptability.

In addition to the FASB, several other bodies impact accounting standards and are impor-
tant in other ways to the practice of accounting. Some of these bodies are discussed here.

Other Organizations Important
to Financial Reporting

e Recognize the importance of the SEC, AICPA, AAA, and IRS to financial reporting.

Securities and Exchange Commission

The SEC was created by an act of Congress in 1934. Its primary role is to regulate the
issuance and trading of securities by corporations to the general public. Prior to offering
securities for sale to the public, a company must file a registration statement with the
Commission that contains financial and organizational disclosures. In addition, all publicly
held companies are required to furnish annual financial statements (called a 10-K filing),
quarterly financial statements (10-Q filing), and other periodic information about signifi-
cant events (8-K filing). The SEC also requires companies to have their external financial
statements audited by independent accountants.

The Commission’s intent is not to prevent the trading of speculative securities but to
insist that investors have adequate information. As a result, the SEC is vitally interested

FY!

The first chairman of the SEC was Joseph P. Kennedy, father of the late Presi-

dent John F. Kennedy.

in financial reporting and the development
of accounting standards. The Commission
carefully monitors the standard-setting
process. The Commission also brings to the
Board’s attention emerging problems that
need to be addressed and sends observers
to meet with the EITFE.

When the Commission was formed, Congress gave it power to establish accounting
principles as follows:

The Commission may prescribe, in regard to reports made pursuant to this title, the form or
forms in which the required information shall be set forth, the items or details to be shown in
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the balance sheet and the earning statement, and the methods to be followed in the prepara-
2

tion of reports in the appraisal or valuation of assets and liabilities. . . .!

The Commission has generally refrained from fully using these powers, preferring
to work through the private sector in the development of standards. Throughout its
existence, however, the Commission has issued statements pertaining to accounting and
auditing issues. These SEC statements are authoritative for companies that are publicly
traded in the United States. This fact is made clear in FASB ASC paragraph 105-10-05-1,
as follows.

Rules and interpretive releases of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under au-
thority of federal securities laws are also sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. In
addition to the SEC’s rules and interpretive releases, the SEC staff issues Staff Accounting Bul-
letins that represent practices followed by the staff in administering SEC disclosure require-
ments, and it utilizes SEC Staff Announcements and Observer comments made at Emerging
Issues Task Force meetings to publicly announce its views on certain accounting issues for
SEC registrants.

The formal SEC rules are found in the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR). For
example, on March 4, 2008, Chapter II of Title 17 of the CFR was amended by the SEC
to allow non-U.S. companies to use International Accounting Standards, instead of U.S.
GAAP, in their financial statement filings with the SEC. This is an extremely interesting
development that will be discussed in more detail later in this chapter.

Although the SEC is generally supportive of the FASB, there have been disagreements
between the two bodies. One of the most public of these disagreements occurred in the late
1970s and concerned the accounting for oil and gas exploratory costs. The FASB issued a
standard in 1977, and the SEC publicly opposed the standard; the FASB finally succumbed
to the pressure and reversed its position in 1979. In recent years, the SEC and FASB have
increased their efforts at behind-the-scenes coordination and consultation. Still, the two
bodies are not in complete harmony. For example, the SEC has been impatient with the
FASB’s slow progress on improving financial reporting. Often, the SEC establishes broad
disclosure requirements in an area while the FASB deliberates about the specific account-
ing rules. In recent years, this was the pattern with stock-based compensation, environ-
mental disclosures, and derivatives.

As mentioned above, the SEC requires all publicly traded companies in the United
States to have their financial statements audited. The auditors of those financial state-
ments must be registered and periodically inspected by the Public Company Account-
ing Oversight Board (PCAOB), which is a private-sector organization created by the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The SEC has congressional authority to oversee the
PCAOB’s activities.

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) is the professional
organization of practicing certified public accountants (CPAs) in the United States. The
organization was founded in 1887, and it publishes a monthly journal, the Journal of
Accountancy. (Note: Anyone interested in current developments in accounting should
regularly read the Journal of Accountancy.) The AICPA has several important responsi-
bilities, including certification and continuing education for CPAs, quality control, and
standard setting.

12 Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Section 13(b).
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The AICPA is responsible for preparing and grading the Uniform CPA Examination.
This computer-based examination is offered year round in authorized testing centers
around the United States. In addition to passing the examination, an individual must
meet the state education and experience requirements in order to obtain state certifica-
tion as a CPA. Most states now require CPAs to meet continuing education requirements
in order to retain their licenses to practice. The AICPA assists its members in meet-
ing these requirements through an extensive Continuing Professional Education (CPE)
program.

The AICPA is also concerned with maintaining the integrity of the profession
through its Code of Professional Conduct and through a quality control program,
which includes a process of peer review of CPA firms conducted by other CPAs. For
CPA firms that audit publicly traded clients, these AICPA peer reviews are now some-
what overshadowed by the registration and inspection program of the PCAOB men-
tioned previously.

Prior to the formation of the FASB, accounting principles were established under the
direction of the AICPA. Both the CAP and the APB were AICPA committees. Although the
FASB replaced the APB as the official standard-setting body for the profession, the AICPA
continues to influence the establishment of accounting standards. The AICPA helps the
FASB identify emerging issues and communicates the concerns of CPAs on accounting
issues to the FASB. In addition, the AICPA frequently establishes the specialized standards
that relate to particular industries. For example, in Statement of Position (SOP) 04-2, the
AICPA issued a set of rules for the accounting for a variety of real estate time-sharing
transactions.

American Accounting Association

The American Accounting Association (AAA) is an organization for accounting profes-
sors, with 6,052 academic members as of August 2009. The AAA sponsors national and
regional meetings where accounting professors discuss technical research and share inno-
vative teaching techniques and materials. The AAA also organizes working committees of
professors to study and comment on accounting standards issues. In addition, the AAA
publishes a number of academic journals, including The Accounting Review, a quarterly
research journal, and Accounting Horizons, which contains articles addressing many real-
world accounting problems. In fact, Accounting Horizons is an excellent journal to read
for more depth on intermediate accounting issues.

One of the most significant actions of

FY!

the AAA is to motivate and facilitate cur-
riculum revision. As the accounting profes-
sion changes, it is critical that accounting

Ask your instructor if he or she is a member of the AAA. educators continually revise their curri-

cula to keep pace with these changes. The

AAA provides forums for educators to
share ideas about changes in curriculum and rewards innovative curriculum revision
efforts. For example, in 1993, our university (Brigham Young University) was given the
Innovation in Accounting Education Award for the integrative revision of our interme-
diate financial accounting, managerial accounting, tax, audit, and information systems
courses. By the way, Brigham Young University received this accounting education inno-
vation award again in 2007 (the only university to receive it twice), but we probably
shouldn’t tell you any more because you might think we are bragging.
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Internal Revenue Service

Tax accounting and financial accounting are different, but the popular perception is that
they are one and the same. Tax accounting and financial accounting were designed with
different purposes in mind. In the Thor Power Tool case (1979), the Supreme Court stated:

The primary goal of financial accounting is to provide useful information to management,
shareholders, creditors, and others properly interested; the major responsibility of the
accountant is to protect these parties from being misled. The primary goal of the income tax
system, in contrast, is the equitable collection of revenue. . . .

Although this text on intermediate financial accounting is not a study of income tax
accounting, the U.S. tax rules as administered by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) will
still be discussed from time to time. In most areas, financial accounting and tax accounting
are closely related. For example, your study of leases, depreciation, and inventory valua-
tion in this text will aid your understanding of the corresponding tax rules.

What Is GAAP?

With all of these different bodies (FASB, EITE, AICPA, and SEC) being involved with
accounting rules and accounting guidance, what is GAAP? Historically, the Auditing
Standards Board of the AICPA has defined GAAP in the context of the phrase included in
the standard auditor’s opinion: “present fairly . . . in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.”!* Both the SEC and the AICPA have recognized the FASB as the body
entrusted with establishing GAAP in the United States. So, it is the FASB that determines
what GAAP is. With the activation of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification in July
2009, the FASB clarified exactly which accounting rules and statements are “authoritative”
GAAP and which are merely nonauthoritative suggestions. In FASB ASC paragraph 105-
10-05-1, the FASB clearly states that the standards contained in the Codification itself are
“the source of authoritative generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) recognized by
the FASB.” In paragraph 3 of the same section, the FASB states: “Accounting and financial
reporting practices not included in the Codification are nonauthoritative. . . . The appro-
priateness of other sources of accounting guidance depends on its relevance to particular
circumstances, the specificity of the guidance, the general recognition of the issuer or author
as an authority, and the extent of its use in practice.” These sources of nonauthoritative
guidance include widely recognized industry practices, the standards of the IASB (discussed
later in this chapter), FASB Concepts Statements (also discussed later in this chapter), and
even lowly accounting textbooks such as the one you are reading right now. The chapters
in this textbook will, of course, focus on the authoritative standards in the FASB ASC.

For firms required to file financial statements with the SEC, the SEC rules and inter-
pretive releases have the same authority as the FASB’s Codification. These authoritative
pronouncements are of particular importance to auditors because Rule 203 of the AICPA
Code of Professional Conduct specifies that an auditor must not express an unqualified
opinion when there is a material departure from these authoritative pronouncements.

In the description of the authoritative pronouncements, note that the Statements of
Financial Accounting Concepts are relegated to a low-priority position, equal in authority
with accounting textbooks(!). The FASB plans to address this issue in a broader project
to improve the conceptual framework. As discussed later in this chapter, the concep-
tual framework embodied in the Statements of Financial Accounting Concepts forms an
increasingly important foundation for all financial accounting standards.

13 Statement of Auditing Standards No. 69, “The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in
the Independent Auditor’s Report” (New York: AICPA, December 1991).
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WHY Because business is
increasingly conducted across
national borders, companies must
be able to use their financial
statements to communicate with
external users all over the world.
As a result, divergent national ac-
counting practices are converging
to an overall global standard.

HOW The International Account-
ing Standards Board (IASB) is an
international body that releases
financial reporting standards.

IASB standards have become the
accepted worldwide standard.
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FASB CODIFICATION

The Issue: You were at a party last night and, inevitably, the conversation turned to
accounting and the FASB. You were embarrassed to learn that ALL of your friends
have registered for access to the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC).
They were swapping amusing stories about various standards they had been
looking at that day in the FASB ASC. You could feel your friends giving you the
collective cold shoulder when it became obvious that you had never even seen
the FASB ASC.

The Question: \What are the steps | need to go through to register for access to the
FASB ASC?

Searching the Codification: You start by going to asc.fasb.org. Follow the steps to
register as a “New User! If you get stuck, take a look at the solution for this Codi-
fication item.

The Answer: The correct process is described on page 1-35.

International Accounting Issues

0 Realize the growing importance and relevance of international accounting issues to the practice of accounting in the
United States and understand the role of the IASB in international accounting standard setting.

Divergent national accounting practices around the world can have an extremely significant
impact on reported financial statements. With the increasing integration of the worldwide
economy, these accounting differences have become impossible to ignore. For example,
to raise debt or equity capital, many non-U.S. firms, such as Sony, British Petroleum, and
Nokia, list their securities on U.S. exchanges and borrow from U.S. financial institutions. As
of September 2012, over 420 non-U.S. share issues (from more than 45 countries) were trad-
ing on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE). In addition, many U.S. companies have listed
their shares on foreign exchanges; for example, Boeing’s shares trade on the Amsterdam,
Brussels, London, Swiss, and Tokyo stock exchanges. U.S. companies also do substantial
amounts of business in foreign currencies; Disney has significant amounts of business
denominated in Japanese yen, European euros, British pounds, and Canadian dollars.

The international nature of business requires companies to be able to make their finan-
cial statements understandable to users all over the world. The significant differences in
accounting standards that exist throughout the world complicate both the preparation of
financial statements and the understanding of these financial statements by users.

International Differences in GAAP

As will be noted throughout this text, there are some differences between U.S. GAAP and
GAAP of other countries. The good news is that the fundamental concepts underlying
accounting practice are the same around the world. As a result, a solid understanding of
U.S. GAAP will allow you to quickly grasp the variations that exist in different countries.
Throughout this book, we will include specific coverage of the areas in which significant
differences exist in accounting practices around the world. One other piece of good news is
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that the demands of international financial statement users are forcing accountants around
the world to harmonize differing accounting standards. Accordingly, the differences that
currently exist will gradually diminish over time.

International Accounting Standards Board

Just as the FASB establishes accounting standards for U.S. entities, other countries have
their own standard-setting bodies. In an attempt to harmonize conflicting standards, the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) was formed in 1973 to develop world-
wide accounting standards. Like the FASB, the IASB develops proposals, circulates these
among interested organizations, receives feedback, and then issues a final pronouncement.
The 15 board members of the IASB come from many countries and represent a variety of
professional backgrounds.'*

As of September 2012, the 15 board members included individuals from the
Netherlands, the United States, the United Kingdom, France, Sweden, China, Australia,
South Africa, Brazil, Germany, Korea, India, and Japan. Most of the board members are
CPAs with audit experience, but in May 2010 the IASB also included a financial analyst
and several people with national regulatory experience.

The early standards of the IASB were primarily catalogs of the diverse accounting
practices then used worldwide. Recent IASB projects have been more focused and inno-
vative. For example, the substance of IASB decisions on improving earnings-per-share
reporting was embraced by the FASB. In fact, the FASB and the IASB worked closely to
develop compatible standards. In 2002, the IASB and the FASB entered into a joint agree-
ment, called the Norwalk Agreement, in which they pledged to work together to develop
a set of “fully compatible” accounting standards as soon as possible, and to continue to
work together to make sure that those standards stay compatible. This agreement was
confirmed and expanded in an FASB/IASB Memorandum of Understanding updated in
2008. This joint effort is proceeding along two fronts. First, the IASB and the FASB have
identified several accounting standard issues on which they could achieve full compat-
ibility without too much difficulty. These issues include the accounting for some inventory
costs, accounting for the exchange of nonmonetary assets, and the reporting of accounting
changes, all of which have been completed, and the computation of earnings per share,
which is still in progress. Second, the IASB and FASB are working together on larger proj-
ects involving fundamental issues such as revenue recognition, the accounting for business
combinations, and a joint conceptual framework.

The accounting standards produced by the IASB are referred to as International Finan-
cial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and International Accounting Standards (IAS). The dif-
ference between these two sets of standards is merely one of timing; the IASB standards
issued before 2001 are called TAS and those issued since 2001 are called IFRS. In practice,
the entire body of IASB standards is referred to simply as IFRS. The international counter-
part of the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) is called the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), which was called the Standing Interpreta-
tions Committee (SIC) before 2002.

IFRSs are envisioned to be a set of standards that can be used by all companies regard-
less of where they are based. In fact, IFRS will supplement or even replace standards set
by national standard setters such as the FASB. IASB standards have gained widespread
acceptance throughout the world. And as mentioned earlier, in 2008 the SEC began allow-
ing non-U.S. companies with shares trading on U.S. stock exchanges to issue their financial
reports using IASB standards. Before this change, all non-U.S. companies wishing to have
their shares traded in the United States were required to provide financial statements in

“The IASB will be expanded to 16 members by 2012.
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FY!

In 2001, the IASB restructured itself as an independent body with closer links
to national standard-setting bodies. At that time, the IASB adopted its cur-
rent name and dropped its original name of the International Accounting
Standards Committee (IASC).

accordance with U.S. GAAP. Historically,
financial disclosure requirements in the
United States have been the strictest in the
world, and foreign companies have been
reluctant to provide the U.S. GAAP disclo-
sures. With the new SEC rule, the number
of non-U.S. companies listed on U.S. stock
exchanges may increase dramatically.

As mentioned in the opening scenario

for this chapter, the SEC is considering

Stop &

Consider these four organizations: FASB, AICPA, SEC, and IASB. Which ONE do
you think will be making U.S. GAAP 10 years from now?

a) FASB
b) AICPA
) SEC
d) IASB

@)

whether to allow U.S. companies to use
IASB standards, rather than FASB stan-
dards, in the financial reports that they
provide to their U.S. shareholders. If this
happens, the FASB may cease to exist. So
pay attention because the next few years
will be momentous ones in terms of the
history of accounting standard setting.
However, lest you despair over losing your
good friend (the FASB) about whom you
have just been reading, remember from the

WHY the conceptual framework
allows for the systematic adapta-
tion of accounting standards to a
changing business environment. The
FASB uses the conceptual framework
to aid in an organized and consistent
development of new accounting
standards. In addition, learning
the FASB's conceptual framework
allows one to understand and, per-
haps, anticipate future standards.

HOW the conceptual framework
outlines the objectives of financial
reporting and the qualities of good
accounting information, precisely
defines commonly used terms such
as assetand revenue, and provides
guidance about appropriate recogni-
tion, measurement, and reporting.
Recording an item in the accounting
records through a journal entry is
called recognition. To be recognized,
an item must meet the definition

of an element and be measurable,
relevant, and reliable.

opening scenario of this chapter that the
current SEC “work plan” does not envision a U.S. switch to IFRS until 2015 at the earliest.
Remember, there are lots of issues of enforcement and independence to work out before
the SEC turns the reins over to the TASB. In this textbook, you will learn both U.S. GAAP
and, where there are substantive differences, IFRS.

In order to prepare you for a professional world in which both FASB and TASB
standards will be used, both sets of standards will be covered in this textbook. The focus
will be on FASB standards, but you will also receive comprehensive exposure to the
TASB standards in each major topic area throughout the chapters of the text. In addition,
Chapter 22 contains capstone coverage of International Accounting Standards.

A Conceptual Framework of Accounting

Understand the significance of the FASB's conceptual framework in outlining the qualities of good accounting information,
defining terms such as asserand revenue, and providing guidance about appropriate recognition, measurement, and reporting.

A strong theoretical foundation is essential if accounting practice is to keep pace with a
changing business environment. Accountants are continually faced with new situations,
technological advances, and business innovations that present new accounting and report-
ing problems. These problems must be dealt with in an organized and consistent manner.
The conceptual framework plays a vital role in the development of new standards and in
the revision of previously issued standards. Recognizing the importance of this role, the
FASB stated that fundamental concepts “guide the Board in developing accounting and
reporting standards by providing . . . a common foundation and basic reasoning on which
to consider merits of alternatives.”" In a very real sense, then, the FASB itself is a primary
beneficiary of a conceptual framework.

> Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 6, "Elements of Financial Statements” (Stamford, CT: Financial Accounting Standards Board,
December 1985), p. i.
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In addition, when accountants are confronted with new developments that are not cov-
ered by GAAP, a conceptual framework provides a reference for analyzing and resolving
emerging issues. Thus, a conceptual framework not only helps in understanding existing
practice but also provides a guide for future practice.

Nature and Components of the FASB’s
Conceptual Framework

Serious attempts to develop a theoretical foundation of accounting can be traced to the
1930s. Among the leaders in such attempts were accounting educators, both individually
and collectively, as a part of the AAA. In 1936, the Executive Committee of the AAA began
issuing a series of publications devoted to accounting theory, the last of which was pub-
lished in 1965 and entitled “A Statement of Basic Accounting Theory.” During the period
from 1936 to 1973, the AAA and the AICPA issued several additional publications in their
attempt to develop a conceptual foundation for the practice of accounting.'®

Although these publications made sig-

Caution

nificant contributions to the development
of accounting thought, no unified structure
of accounting theory emerged from these

Don't think that the conceptual framework is a useless exercise in account- efforts.. When the FASB was established in
ing theory. Since its completion, the framework has significantly affected the 1973, it responded to the need for a gen-
nature of many accou nting Standard& eral theoretical framework by undertaking

a comprehensive project to develop a “con-

€ Frs

ceptual framework for financial accounting
and reporting.” This project has been described as an attempt to establish a so-called
constitution for accounting.

The conceptual framework project was one of the original FASB agenda items. Because of
its significant potential impact on many aspects of financial reporting and, therefore, its con-
troversial nature, progress was deliberately slow. The project had high priority and received
a large share of FASB resources. In September 2010, after almost 40 years of discussions,
the FASB issued the eighth of the Statements of Financial Accounting Concepts (usually
referred to as Concepts Statements), which provide the basis for the conceptual framework.!”

'® Among the most prominent of these publications were the following:
+ Maurice Moonitz, Accounting Research Study No. 1, “The Basic Postulates of Accounting” (New York: American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, 1961).
- William A. Paton and A. C. Littleton, “An Introduction to Corporate Accounting Standards, Monograph 3" (Evanston, IL: American
Accounting Association, 1940).
+ Thomas H. Sanders, Henry R. Hatfield, and W. Moore, “A Statement of Accounting Principles” (New York: American Institute of
Accountants, Inc., 1938).
+ Robert T. Sprouse and Maurice Moonitz, Accounting Research Study No. 3, "A Tentative Set of Broad Accounting Principles for Business
Enterprises” (New York: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, 1962).
- Statement of the Accounting Principles Board No. 4, "Basic Concepts and Accounting Principles Underlying Financial Statements of
Business Enterprises” (New York: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, October 1970).
+ Report of the Study Group on the Objectives of Financial Statements, "Objectives of Financial Statements” (New York: American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, October 1973).
7 The eight Concepts Statements issued by the FASB are
1
2
3

Objectives of Financial Reporting by Business Enterprises (superseded by Concepts Statement No. 8)
Qualitative Characteristics of Accounting Information (superseded by Concepts Statement No. 8)
Elements of Financial Statements of Business Enterprises (superseded by Concepts Statement No. 6)

=

Objectives of Financial Reporting by Nonbusiness Organizations

o

Elements of Financial Statements (a replacement of No. 3, broadened to include not-for-profit as well as business enterprises)
7
8

Using Cash Flow Information and Present Value in Accounting Measurements

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

)
)
)
) Recognition and Measurement in Financial Statements of Business Enterprises
)
)
)

Chapter 1, The Objective of General Purpose Financial Reporting, and Chapter 3, Qualitative Characteristics of Useful Financial Information
(a replacement of FASB Concepts Statements No. 1 and No. 2)
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Concepts Statement No. 8 is the first in an expected series of Concepts Statements that are
the joint work of the FASB and the IASB.

The eight Concepts Statements address four major areas.

Objectives: What are the purposes of financial reporting?

Qualitative characteristics: What are the qualities of useful financial information?

Elements: What is an asset? a liability? a revenue? an expense?

PR b=

Recognition, measurement, and reporting: How should the objectives, qualities, and
elements definitions be implemented?

Objectives of Financial Reporting

Without identifying the goals for financial reporting (e.g., who needs what kind of infor-
mation and for what reasons), accountants cannot determine the recognition criteria
needed, which measurements are useful, or how best to report accounting information.
The key financial reporting objectives outlined in the conceptual framework are as follows:

e Usefulness

e Understandability

e Target audience: investors and creditors
e Assessing future cash flows

e Evaluating economic resources

e Financial performance reflected by accrual accounting

Usefulness The overall objective of financial reporting is to provide information that
is useful for decision making. The FASB states

The objective of general purpose financial reporting is to provide financial information about
the reporting entity that is useful to existing and potential investors, lenders, and other credi-
tors in making decisions about providing resources to the entity.!*

Understandability Financial reports cannot and should not be so simple as to be
understood by everyone. Instead, the objective of understandability recognizes a fairly
sophisticated user of financial reports, that is, one who has a reasonable understanding
of accounting and business and who is willing to study and analyze the information pre-
sented."” In other words, the information should be comprehensible to someone like you.

Target Audience: Investors, Lenders, and Other Creditors Although there are
many potential users of financial reports, the objectives are directed primarily toward in-
vestors and creditors. Other external users, such as the IRS or the SEC, can require selected
information from individuals and companies. Investors and creditors, however, must rely
to a significant extent on the information contained in the periodic financial reports sup-
plied by management. In addition, information useful to investors and creditors in most
cases will be useful to other external users (i.e., customers and employees).

Assessing Future Cash Flows Investors and creditors are interested primarily in a
company’s future cash flows. Creditors expect interest and loan principals to be paid in cash.
Investors desire cash dividends and sufficient cash flow to allow the business to grow. Thus,
financial reporting should provide information that is useful in assessing amounts, timing,
and uncertainty (risk) of prospective cash flows.

'8 Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 8, par. OB2.
19 Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 8, par. QC30 through QC32.
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Evaluating Economic Resources Financial reporting should
also provide information about a company’s assets, liabilities, and
owners’ equity to help investors, creditors, and others evaluate the fi-
nancial strengths and weaknesses of the enterprise and its liquidity
and solvency. Such information will help users determine the financial
condition of a company, which, in turn, should provide insight into the
prospects of future cash flows.

Financial Performance Reflected by Accrual Accounting
Information about a company’s financial performance (the change in
its economic resources caused by its operations) is useful in assessing a
company’s ability to generate future cash flows. This financial perfor-
mance is best reflected by accrual accounting.?

Qualitative Characteristics of Accounting
Information

The overriding objective of financial reporting is to provide useful infor-
mation. This is a very complex objective because of the many report-
ing alternatives. To assist in choosing among financial accounting and
reporting alternatives, the conceptual framework identifies the qualitative
characteristics of useful accounting information. These qualitative char-
acteristics are separated into fundamental characteristics and enhancing
characteristics. These characteristics are outlined in Exhibit 1-5.

Exhibit 1-5 | Qualitative Characteristics of Accounting Information

Usefulness

Benefits > Costs

Fundamental
Characteristics
Relevance sl
Representation
¢ Predictive Value e Complete
¢ Confirmatory Value * Neutral
¢ Materiality ¢ Free from Error
Enhancing
Characteristics
| | | |
Comparability Verifiability Timeliness Understandability

Source: Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 2.

20 Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 8, par. OB17.
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Fundamental Characteristics The two fundamental characteristics of useful
accounting information are relevance and faithful representation. These characteristics are
viewed as being absolutely necessary; without both of them, accounting information is
not useful !

Relevance The conceptual framework describes relevant information as information
that can make a difference to a decision. Qualities of relevant information are as follows:

e Predictive value
e Confirmatory value

e Materiality

Relevant information normally provides both confirmatory value and predictive value at
the same time. Feedback on past events helps confirm or correct earlier expectations. Such
information can then be used to help predict future outcomes. For example, when a com-
pany presents comparative income statements, an investor has information to compare last
year’s operating results with this year’s. This provides a general basis for evaluating prior
expectations and for estimating what next year’s results might be.

Materiality deals with this specific question: Is the item large enough to influence the
decision of a user of the information? Quantitative guidance concerning materiality is
lacking, so managers and accountants must exercise judgment in determining whether an
item is material. All would agree that an item causing net income to change by 10% is
material. How about 1%? Most accountants would say an item changing net income by
1% is immaterial unless the item results from questionable income manipulation or some-
thing else indicative of broader concern. Remember that there is no definitive numerical
materiality threshold—the accountant must use her or his judgment. In recognition of the
importance of the concept of materiality, the SEC released Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB)
No. 99 in August 1999 to offer additional guidance on this concept. The SEC confirmed
that materiality can never be boiled down to a simple numeric benchmark. However, the
SEC said that, in terms of an auditor considering whether an item is material, extra scru-
tiny should be given to items that change a loss to a profit, that allow a company to meet
analyst earnings expectations, or that allow management to meet a bonus threshold that
otherwise would have been missed.

Faithful Representation Faithful representation means that there is agreement between
a measurement and the economic activity or item that is being measured. Qualities of
information exhibiting faithful representation are as follows:

e  Complete
e Neutral

e Free from error

Complete information includes not only the numerical accounting summary of the
item being depicted, such as its cost, but also all other facts necessary for the financial
statement user to understand how that number was generated and what it means. For
example, the summary balance sheet number for “property, plant, and equipment” must
be accompanied by a listing of the type of assets included in this category, the useful life
ranges for those assets, and the type of depreciation method used.

Neutrality is similar to the all-encompassing concept of “fairness.” If financial state-
ments are to satisfy a wide variety of users, the information presented should not be biased
in favor of one group of users to the detriment of others. Neutrality also suggests that

2 Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 8, par. QC17.
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accounting standard setters should not be influenced by potential effects a new rule will
have on a particular company or industry. In practice, neutrality is very difficult to achieve
because firms that expect to be harmed by a new accounting rule often lobby vigorously
against the proposed standard.

Accrual accounting information by its nature is based on judgments and includes
estimates and approximations. Accordingly, the financial statement numbers cannot be
perfectly “accurate.” In fact, in a setting involving approximations and judgments, two dif-
ferent estimated numbers can reasonably be viewed as being equally “accurate.” What can
be expected of accounting numbers is that the process used to generate the final account-
ing numbers be applied in an error-free way.

Enhancing Characteristics The four enhancing characteristics of useful accounting
information are comparability, verifiability, timeliness, and understandability. Once infor-
mation exhibits both relevance and faithful representation, improvements in one or more of
the four enhancing characteristics can make the accounting information even more useful.?

Comparability The essence of comparability is that information becomes much more
useful when it can be related to a benchmark or standard. The comparison may be with
data for other firms, or it may be with similar information for the same firm but for other
periods of time. Comparability of accounting data for the same company over time is often
called consistency. Comparability requires that similar events be accounted for in the same
manner in the financial statements of different companies and for a particular company for
different periods. It should be recognized, however, that uniformity is not always the answer
to comparability. Different circumstances may require different accounting treatments.

Verifiability Verifiability implies consensus. Accountants seek to base the financial state-
ments on measures that can be verified by other trained accountants using the same mea-
surement methods.

Timeliness Timeliness is essential for information to “make a difference” because if the
information becomes available after the decision is made, it isn’t of much use. Financial
reporting is increasingly criticized on the timeliness dimension because in the age of infor-
mation technology, users are becoming accustomed to getting answers overnight, not at
the end of a year or a quarter.

Understandability As stated earlier, business events can be complex, and the financial
statements should not be simplified to the degree that this business complexity is con-
cealed. However, the concept of understandability implies that this complexity should be
explained clearly in order to be understood by users who are both familiar with business
and willing to put in the time needed to analyze the financial reports.

Benefits Greater Than Cost Information is like other commodities in that it must
be worth more than the cost of producing it. The difficulty in assessing cost effectiveness
of financial reporting is that the costs and benefits, especially the benefits, are not always
evident or easily measured. In addition, the costs are borne by an identifiable and vo-
cal constituency, the companies required to prepare financial statements. The benefits are
spread over the entire economy. Thus, the FASB more frequently hears complaints about
the expected cost of a new standard than it hears praise about the expected benefits. When
describing a new accounting standard, the FASB includes a section attempting to describe
the expected costs and benefits of the standard.

22 Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 8, par. QC19.
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What about Conservatism? No discussion of the qualities of accounting information is
complete without a discussion of conservatism, which historically has been the guiding prin-
ciple behind many accounting practices. The concept of conservatism can be summarized as

Caution

follows: When in doubt, recognize all losses
but don’t recognize any gains. In formulating
the conceptual framework, the FASB did not
include conservatism in the list of qualitative

Although the conceptual framework excludes conservatism from its list of characteristics. Financial statements that are
qualitative characteristics, most practicing accountants are still conservative deliberately biased to understate assets and
in making their estimates and judgments. profits lose the characteristics of relevance

and faithful representation.

Elements of Financial Statements

The FASB definitions of the 10 basic financial statement elements are listed in Exhibit 1-6.
These elements compose the building blocks upon which financial statements are con-
structed. These definitions and the issues surrounding them are discussed in detail as the
elements are introduced in later chapters.

Recognition, Measurement, and Reporting

To recognize or not to recognize . . . THAT is the question. One way to report financial infor-
mation is to boil down all the estimates and judgments into one number and then use that one
number to make a journal entry. This is called recognition. The key assumptions and estimates
are then described in a note to the financial statements. Another approach is to skip the jour-
nal entry and just rely on the note to convey the information to users. This is called disclosure.

The recognition versus disclosure question has been at the heart of many accounting
standard controversies and compromises in recent years. Two examples follow.

e The business community absolutely refused to accept the FASB’s decision to require
recognition of the value of employee stock options as compensation expense. The FASB
initially compromised by requiring only disclosure of the information but finally insisted
that, starting in 2006, businesses must recognize the expense rather than just disclose it.

e The FASB has used disclosure requirements to give firms some years of practice in
reporting the fair value of financial instruments. Some standards now require recogni-
tion of those fair values, and the FASB provides extensive guidance on the use of and
required disclosures regarding fair value measurements in the financial statements.

The conceptual framework provides guidance in determining what information should
be formally incorporated into financial statements and when. These concepts are discussed
here under the following three headings:

e Recognition criteria
e Measurement

* Reporting

Recognition Criteria For an item to be formally recognized, it must meet one of the
definitions of the elements of financial statements.?* For example, a receivable must meet
the definition of an asset to be recorded and reported as such on a balance sheet. The same
is true of liabilities, owners’ equity, revenues, expenses, and other elements. An item must

= Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 5, "Recognition and Measurement in Financial Statements of Business Enterprises”
(Stamford, CT: Financial Accounting Standards Board, December 1984), par. 63.
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Assets are probable future economic
benefits obtained or controlled by a
particular entity as a result of past
transactions or events.

Liabilities are probable future
sacrifices of economic benefits arising
from present obligations of a particular
entity fo transfer assets or provide
services to other entities in the future

as a result of past transactions or
events.

Equity, or Net Assets, is the residual
interest in the assets of an entity that
remains after deducting its liabilities.

most commonly received as investments by

of liabilities of the enterprise.

prise to owners. Distributions fo owners
decrease ownership interests (or equity) in
an enterprise.

in equity of a business enterprise during a
period from transactions and other events

It includes all changes in equity during a

by owners and distributions fo owners.

Investments by Owners are increases
in equity of a particular business enterprise
resulting from transfers o it from other entities
of something valuable to obtain or increase
ownership interests (or equity) in it. Assets are

owners, but that which is received may also
include services or satisfaction or conversion

Distributions fo Owners are decreases
in equity of a particular business enterprise

resulting from transferring assets, rendering
services, or incurring liabilities by the enter-

Comprehensive Income is the change

qnd circumstances From nonowner sources.

Revenues are inflows or other
enhancements of assets of an entity or
settlement of its liabilities (or a com-
bination of both) from delivering or
producing goods, rendering services,
or other activities that constitute the
entity’s ongoing major or central
operations.

Expenses are outflows or other
using up of assets or incurrences of
liabilities (or a combination of both)
from delivering or producing goods,
rendering services, or carrying out
other activities that constitute the
entity’s ongoing major or central
operations.

Gains are increases in equity (net
assets) from peripheral or incidental
transactions of an entity and from all
other transactions and other events
and circumstances affecting the entity
except those that result from revenues
or investments by owners.

Losses are decreases in equity (net
assets) from peripheral or incidental
transactions of an entity and from all
other transactions and other events
and circumstances affecting the entity
except those that result from expenses
or distributions fo owners.

period except those resulting from investments
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also be reliably measurable in monetary terms to be recognized. For example, as men-
tioned earlier, many firms have obligations to clean up environmental damage. These obli-
gations fit the definition of a liability, and information about them is relevant to users, yet
they should not be recognized until they can be reliably quantified. Disclosure is preferable
to recognition in situations in which relevant information cannot be reliably measured.

Measurement Closely related to recognition is measurement. Five different measure-

ment attributes are currently used in practice.

1. Historical cost is the cash equivalent price exchanged for goods or services at the
date of acquisition. (Examples of items measured at historical cost: land, buildings,
equipment, and most inventories.)

Current replacement cost is the cash equivalent price that would be exchanged cur-

rently to purchase or replace equivalent goods or services. (Example: some inventories

that have declined in value since acquisition.)

orderly transaction. (Example: many financial instruments.)
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4. Net realizable value is the amount of cash expected to be received
from the conversion of assets in the normal course of business.
(Example: accounts receivable.)

5. Present (or discounted) value is the amount of net future cash
inflows or outflows discounted to their present value at an appro-
priate rate of interest. (Examples: long-term receivables, long-term
payables, and long-term operating assets determined to have suf-
fered an impairment in value.)

On the date an asset is acquired, all five of these measurement
attributes have approximately the same value. The differences arise as
the asset ages, business conditions change, and the original acquisition
price becomes a less relevant measure of future economic benefit.

Current accounting practice in the United States is said to be based
on historical costs, although, as illustrated, each of the five measurement
attributes is used. Still, historical cost is the dominant measure and is used
because of its high reliability. Many users believe that current replacement
costs or fair values, though less reliable, are more relevant than histori-
cal costs for future-oriented decisions. Here we see the classic trade-off
between relevance and reliability. In recent years, we have seen an increas-
ing emphasis on relevance and thus a movement away from historical
cost. Most financial instruments are now reported at fair value, and the
present value of forecasted cash flows is becoming a more common mea-
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Most inventories are valued at historical cost—the cash surement attribute. The importance of forecasted cash flow information
equivalent price exchanged for the goods at the date of ~ is evidenced by the fact that a recent addition to the conceptual frame-
acquisition. work (Concepts Statement No. 7 adopted in February 2000) outlines

the appropriate approach to computing the

° present value of cash flows. In spite of this

C a u t I O n trend, the United States still lags behind other

countries in the use of market values in finan-

You will be doing lots of present value calculations during your course in cial statements. For example, many British

intermediate accounting. Check the batteries in your calculator. | companies report their land and buildings at
estimated market values.

Reporting The conceptual framework indicates that a “full set of financial statements”
is necessary to meet the objectives of financial reporting. Included in the recommended set
of general-purpose financial statements are reports that show the following:

¢ Financial position at the end of the period

e Earnings (net income) for the period

e Cash flows during the period

e Investments by and distributions to owners during the period

e Comprehensive income (total nonowner changes in equity) for the period

The first three items have obvious reference to the three primary financial statements:
balance sheet, income statement, and statement of cash flows. By the way, at the time the
conceptual framework was formulated, there was no requirement to prepare a statement
of cash flows. One of the early consequences of the completed conceptual framework
was an increased emphasis on cash flow and the addition of the cash flow statement to
the set of primary financial statements. The fourth reporting recommendation is typically
satisfied with a statement of changes in owners’ equity. Finally, a statement of comprehen-
sive income is intended to summarize all increases and decreases in equity except for those
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arising from owner investments and withdrawals. Comprehensive income differs from
earnings in that it includes unrealized gains and losses not recognized in the income state-
ment. Examples of these unrealized gains and losses include those arising from foreign
currency translations, changes in the value of available-for-sale securities, and changes
in the value of certain derivative contracts. Although the FASB discussed the concept of
comprehensive income for 40 years, a forceful reporting requirement was not adopted
until 2011. Beginning in 2011, companies are required to provide comprehensive income
information at the bottom of the income statement or in a separate statement of compre-
hensive income that is shown immediately after the income statement.

For financial reporting to be most effective, all relevant information should be pre-
sented in an unbiased, understandable, and timely manner. This is sometimes referred to as
the full disclosure principle. Because of the cost-benefit constraint discussed earlier, how-
ever, it would be impossible to report all relevant information. Further, too much informa-
tion could adversely affect understandability and, therefore, decision usefulness. Those
who provide financial information must use judgment in determining what information
best satisfies the full disclosure principle within reasonable cost limitations.

Two final points to remember are that the financial statements represent just one part
of financial reporting and that financial reporting is just one vehicle used by companies to
communicate with external parties. Exhibit 1-7 illustrates the total information spectrum.

| Total Information Spectrum

Recognition and Measurements in Financial Statements of Business Enterprises

< All Information Useful for Investment, Credit, and Similar Decisions >

~——— Area Directly Affected by Existing FASB Standards ————>~

~——— Basic Financial Statements ——~

Scope of
Recognition and
~— Measurement —>

Financial
Statements

e Statement of
Financial Position

e Statements of
Earnings and
Comprehensive
Income

e Statement of
Cash Flows

e Statement of
Investments by and
Distributions to
Owners

Notes to
Financial Statements
(and parenthetical
disclosures)

Examples:

® Accounting Policies
 Contingencies

* Inventory Methods

e Number of Shares of
Stock Outstanding

e Alternative Measures
(market values of
items carried at
historical cost)

Supplementary
Information

Examples:

e Derivative Financial
Instruments (FASB
Statement No. 133)

e Stock-Based
Compensation (FASB
Statement No. 123)

Other Means of
Financial Reporting

Examples:

* Management
Discussion and
Analysis

e |etters to
Stockholders

Other

Information

Examples:

e Discussion of
Competition and
Order Backlog in
SEC Form 10K
(under SEC
Reg. SK)

® Analysts’ Reports
® Economic Statistics

® News Articles
About Company

Source: Adapted from Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 5.
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In one way, this chart is somewhat misleading. Financial reporting is represented as four-
fifths of the information spectrum, with other information comprising the other fifth. In
reality, the proportions are probably reversed. In a world where online information is
available 24 hours a day, the accounting profession faces the challenge of maintaining the
relevance of financial reporting in the information spectrum.

Traditional Assumptions of the Accounting Model

The FASB conceptual framework is influenced by several underlying assumptions,
although these assumptions are not addressed explicitly in the framework. These five basic
assumptions are

e Economic entity

e Going concern

e Arm’s-length transactions
e Stable monetary unit

e Accounting period

The business enterprise is viewed as a specific economic entity separate and distinct
from its owners and any other business unit. Identifying the exact extent of the economic
entity is difficult with large corporations that have networks of subsidiaries and subsid-
iaries of subsidiaries with complex business ties among the members of the group. The
keiretsu in Japan (groups of large firms with ownership in one another and interlocking
boards of directors) are an extreme example. At the other end of the spectrum, it is often
very difficult to disentangle the owner’s personal transactions from the transactions of a
small business.

In the absence of evidence to the contrary, the entity is viewed as a going concern. This
continuity assumption provides support for the preparation of a balance sheet that reports
costs assignable to future activities rather than market values of properties that would be
realized in the event of voluntary liquidation or forced sale. This same assumption calls
for the preparation of an income statement reporting only such portions of revenues and
costs as are allocable to current activities.

Transactions are assumed to be arm’s-length transactions. That is, they occur
between independent parties, each of which is capable of protecting its own interests.
The problem of related-party transactions was at the heart of the Enron scandal. Con-
cern about Enron’s accounting and business practices escalated dramatically when it
was discovered that Enron’s CFO was also managing partnerships that were buying
assets from Enron.

Transactions are assumed to be measured in stable monetary units. Because of this
assumption, changes in the dollar’s purchasing power resulting from inflation have
traditionally been ignored. To many accountants, this is a serious limitation of the account-
ing model. In the late 1970s, when inflation was in double digits in the United States,
the FASB adopted a standard requiring supplemental disclosure of inflation-adjusted
numbers. However, because inflation has remained fairly low for the past 20 years, inter-
est in inflation-adjusted financial statements died in the United States, and the standard
was repealed. Of course, many foreign countries with historically high inflation routinely
require inflation-adjusted financial statements.

Because accounting information is needed on a timely basis, the life of a business entity
is divided into specific accounting periods. By convention, the year has been established
as the normal period for reporting, supplemented by interim quarterly reports. Even this

Copyright 2013 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s).
Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.



1 Financial Reporting 1-31

innocent traditional assumption has come under fire. Many users want “flash” reports and
complain that a quarterly reporting period is too slow. On the other hand, U.S. business
leaders often claim that the quarterly reporting cycle is too fast and forces managers to
focus on short-term profits instead of on long-term growth. Many other countries require
financial statements only semiannually.

Impact of the Conceptual Framework

The conceptual framework provides a basis for consistent judgments by standard setters,
preparers, users, auditors, and others involved in financial reporting. A conceptual frame-
work will not solve all accounting problems but if used on a consistent basis over time, it
should help improve financial reporting.

The impact of the conceptual framework has been seen in many ways. For example,
in Concepts Statement No. 5, the FASB outlines the need for a statement of compre-
hensive income that would contain all of the changes in the value of a company dur-
ing a period whether those value changes were created by operations, by changes in
market values, by changes in exchange rates, or by any other source. This statement
of comprehensive income is now a required statement (see FASB ASC Section 220). In
addition, the existence of this statement as a place to report changes in market values
of assets has facilitated the adoption of standards that result in more relevant values
in the balance sheet. Examples are the market values of investment securities and the
market values of derivatives. Without the conceptual framework to guide the creation
of these standards, their provisions would have been even more controversial than
they were.

Related to the conceptual framework is the push toward more “principles-based”
accounting standards. In theory, principles-based standards would not include any
exceptions to general principles and would not include detailed implementation and
interpretation guidance. Instead, a principles-based standard would have a strong con-
ceptual foundation and be applicable to a variety of circumstances by a practicing
accountant using his or her professional judgment. A number of accounting standards
in the United States, including those dealing with the accounting for leases and deriva-
tives, are full of exceptions, special cases, and tricky implementation rules requiring
hundreds of pages of detailed interpretation. The cry for an emphasis on principles-
based standards is a reaction to the huge costs of trying to understand and use these
voluminous, detailed standards. The ideal of basing accounting standards on a strong
conceptual foundation is what motivated the FASB’s conceptual framework project in
the first place and which continues to motivate the FASB and the TASB to work on a
joint conceptual framework.

The framework discussed in this chapter will be a reference source throughout the
text. In studying the remaining chapters, you will see many applications and a few excep-
tions to the theoretical framework established here. An understanding of the overall theo-
retical framework of accounting should make it easier for you to understand specific issues
and problems encountered in practice.

Rules versus Principles

The most prominent difference between U.S. GAAP and IFRS is that U.S. GAAP con-
tains many more detailed rules. In fact, a shorthand description is that U.S. GAAP is
“rules oriented” and IFRS are “principles oriented.” This is best summarized in a startling
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WHY Accounting-related jobs

are much more challenging and
varied than that of the stereotypical
bookkeeper with green eyeshades.
Financial statement numbers impact
the decisions of the public so accoun-
tants bear an ethical responsibility to
provide unbiased information.

HOW public accounting firms
provide other customer services

in addition to auditing. Because

all companies have some financial
reporting responsibilities, many
financial accounting career opportu-
nities are available in industry. In ad-
dition, a background in accounting,
the language of business, is useful
for any career in business. Without a
commitment to strong personal ethi-
cal behavior, an accountant exercis-
ing judgment in preparing financial
statements can bias the statements
for personal or company gain.
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statistic—the entire body of U.S. accounting rules is estimated to occupy 25,000 pages.
In contrast, the entire body of IFRS is estimated to occupy 2,500 pages. The theory with
IFRS is that the application details in individual circumstances will be determined by the
professional judgment of the accountant herself or himself.

For years, the FASB has been prodded to transition from a rules approach to a prin-
ciples approach.?* In July 2003, the SEC submitted a report to Congress recommending
that the FASB move toward “objectives-oriented standards” which would have the follow-
ing characteristics.

* Be based on an improved and consistently applied framework
e Clearly state the accounting objective of the standard

e Provide sufficient detail and structure so that the standard can be operationalized and
applied on a consistent basis

e Minimize exceptions from the standard

* Avoid use of percentage tests (“bright-lines”) that allow financial engineers to achieve
technical compliance with the standard while evading the intent of the standard

As you can see, an improved conceptual framework is a key element of this transition from
rules to principles. Since receipt of this SEC report, the FASB, in conjunction with the TASB,
has been moving toward more principles-based standards. The question that continues to
be asked in the U.S. business community is whether principles-based accounting standards
will work in the U.S. legal environment. Accountants and auditors are concerned that they
can never be sure their application of the accounting “principle,” without the detailed
guidance of rules, will bear up under the after-the-fact scrutiny of trial lawyers, juries, and
judges. We’ll just have to see what happens.

Careers in Financial Accounting and the
Importance of Personal Ethics

e Identify career opportunities related to accounting and financial reporting and understand the importance of personal
ethics in the practice of accounting.

If you are like most students who take intermediate accounting, you aren’t taking this class
as a general social science elective. You intend to pursue a career in an accounting-related
field. This introductory chapter closes with a brief discussion of some of the careers in
accounting. One piece of advice: The best career move you can make right now (in addi-
tion to taking this class, of course) is to become familiar with your school’s job placement
office. Ask the people there where the jobs are and what kinds of candidates employers
are hiring. Have them help you get started crafting a “killer” résumé. Find out about sum-
mer internships. The sooner you start gathering information and establishing a network
of contacts, the better.
The three major career areas in financial accounting are:

1. Public accounting
Corporate accounting

3. User (analyst, banker, consultant)

2 Study Pursuant to Section 108(d) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 on the Adoption by the United States Financial Reporting System of a
Principles-Based Accounting System, Securities and Exchange Commission, July 2003.
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Public Accounting

Public accountants do not work for a single business enterprise. Rather, they provide a
variety of services for many different individual and business clients. In essence, a public
accountant is a freelance accountant, an accountant for hire. Public accountants practice
either individually or in firms.

A CPA is a certified public accountant. As mentioned earlier in connection with the
discussion of the AICPA, in order to become a CPA, an individual must pass the CPA exam
and satisfy education and work experience requirements that differ somewhat from state
to state. One of the most significant (and controversial) developments in CPA licensing is
the requirement adopted in many states that one must have 150 college credit hours (five
years of full-time education) in order to become a CPA.

Traditionally, the most prominent role of CPAs has been as independent auditors of
financial statements. Almost all large publicly held corporations are audited by a few large
CPA firms. Listed in alphabetical order, the four largest firms are Deloitte, Ernst & Young,
KPMG, and PricewaterhouseCoopers. Each of these firms is an international organization
with many offices in the United States and abroad. Many small businesses are serviced
by regional and local CPA firms, including a large number of sole practitioners. In these
smaller firms, the role of auditing is often less important than the areas of tax reporting
and planning and systems consulting. A CPA in a smaller firm is expected to be something
of an accounting generalist as opposed to the more specialized positions of CPAs in large
regional and national firms.

Corporate Accounting

Public accountants move from client to client as accountants for hire. Of course, businesses
also employ their own staffs of in-house accountants. A large business enterprise employs
financial accountants who are primarily concerned with external financial reporting; man-

FY

agement accountants who are primarily
concerned with internal financial report-
ing; tax accountants who prepare the nec-
essary federal, state, and local tax returns

You might also consider a career as an accounting instructor. Ask your in- and advise management in matters relating

structor what he or she thinks.

to taxation; and internal auditors who
review the work performed by accoun-

tants and others within the enterprise and
report their findings to management. In smaller organizations, there is less specialization
and more combining of responsibility for the various accounting functions.

Not all CPAs are public accountants. Individuals who start their careers in public
accounting and become CPAs often leave public accounting after a few years and join the
in-house accounting staff of a business. Typically, the company they join is one of the cli-
ents they audited or consulted for as a public accountant. In fact, this is the most common
career path for college graduates who start out working for one of the large accounting
firms.

User (Analyst, Banker, Consultant)

Believe it or not, not everyone in the world wants to become an accountant. Many stu-
dents take intermediate accounting in preparation for becoming a user of financial state-
ments. Credit analysts in large banks are required to have a strong working knowledge
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of accounting to be able to evaluate the financial statements of firms seeking loans.
Investment bankers and brokerage firms employ staffs of analysts to evaluate potential
clients and to provide financial statement analysis services to customers. Consulting firms
advise clients on how to improve operations. These days, most accounting-related consult-
ing jobs require strong skills in information technology.

The Importance of Personal Ethics

Personal ethics is not a topic one typically expects to study in an intermediate financial
accounting course. However, accounting-related scandals such as the one involving
Enron have demonstrated that personal ethics and financial reporting are inextricably
connected. The flexibility inherent in the assumptions underlying the preparation of
financial statements means that an accountant can intentionally deceive financial state-
ment users and yet still technically be in compliance with GAAP. Thus, our financial
reporting system is of limited value if the accountants who operate the system do not
have strong personal ethics.

Most of us believe that intentionally trying to deceive others is wrong. You will
be reminded throughout this text that accounting choices often impact real economic
decisions such as whether to grant a loan, make an investment, or fire an employee.
Real economic decisions impact peoples’ lives, and it is sobering to think that accoun-
tants have this power in their hands. Your personal ethical standards are of paramount
importance.

Overview of Intermediate Accounting

This chapter has briefly described financial reporting and the accounting standard-setting
process, introduced the organizations (and their acronyms) that all accountants should
know, outlined the FASB conceptual framework (the “constitution” of accounting),
discussed the major accounting-related careers, and reminded you of the importance
of personal ethics. In the next four chapters, we will review everything you learned in
introductory financial accounting, starting with the accountant’s basic tools of analysis,
the journal entry and the T-account. The text then covers the accounting standards for
the different aspects of a business: operating, investing, and financing. The text concludes
with individual chapters on a number of important topics such as deferred taxes, derivative
financial instruments, and earnings per share.

As mentioned at the start of this chapter, now is an exciting time to be studying
accounting because things are changing so fast. For example, one of the topics most dis-
cussed currently is the accounting for financial instruments. Thirty years ago when we took
intermediate financial accounting, the accounting for financial instruments was a minor
topic. The important point is that we really can’t know what the important accounting
issues will be 30 years from now. The best preparation for this unknown future is to learn
the existing accounting rules, to understand how these rules arose, and to recognize the
underlying concepts. That is the aim of this textbook.
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@SOLUTIONS TO OPENING SCENARIO QUESTIONS

1.

Stop & |

1.

Mark-to-market accounting is the practice of reporting
investment securities in the balance sheet at their current
market value. For securities that are in an active trading
portfolio, the unrealized gains and losses (the “paper”
gains and losses) are reported as part of net income.

The fact that the rule was retroactive allowed the European
banks to roll back the clock to July 1, 2008, and, with the
benefit of knowing which securities had increased and which
had decreased in value, designate some investments to be
accounted for using mark-to-market accounting (probably the
ones that they now knew went up during the third quarter)
and some investments to be reclassified as "held to maturity”
at the value existing as of July 1 (probably the ones that they
knew, with hindsight, went down during the third quarter).

SOLUTIONS

(Page 1-7) The correct answer is E. Detailed operating bud-
gets are an example of managerial accounting information.
This budget information would typically not be revealed to
external users.

(Page 1-20) The correct answer is a matter of personal opin-
jon. As the business world becomes more global, the need

3.

The primary result of the October 2008 IASB debacle has
been to highlight the remaining barriers to international
convergence in financial reporting. The U.S. business com-
munity was forced to face the reality that it really doesn't
want its reporting rules set by a London-based group that
is essentially controlled by the European Union. In addition,
all interested parties, both in the United States and over-
seas, have seen that the IASB differs from the FASB in one
extremely important way—the pronouncements of the
FASB have the force of law because the regulatory power of
the SEC is behind them. Who will enforce the pronounce-
ments of the IASB?

for accounting rules that apply across borders increases.
In 10 years, it is most likely that an international standard-
setting body will be issuing accounting rules that apply to
the global economy.

SOLUTION TO USING THE FASB'S CODIFICATION

Go to asc.fasb.org.

On the right side of the screen, click on the “Order Professional
or Basic View"link. You can also see the "Academic Accounting
Access"link. Your school's accounting department may have
registered for academic access. If so, your instructor will have
the information you need in order to log in.

The "Professional View," at the top of the page, costs over
$800. Because this is your first experience with the FASB ASC,
it is probably better to choose the “Basic View," at the bottom
of the page, which is free. Click “Select!

Type in your e-mail address. Don't worry about security—
they aren't going to ask for any personal data beyond your
name and address. In addition, this is the FASB we are talking
about. You can trust them. Click “Submit”
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Enter your personal data. Then click to submit the data.
Accept the terms of the agreement.
Gleefully check out with your total bill being $0.00.

You are in. You should get an e-mail confirmation of your
registration. However, even before you get the e-mail, you
can go right to asc.fasb.org and log in as a Registered User
by clicking in the bottom box on the right side of the ASC
home page.

Enjoy! Each chapter in this textbook will contain an exercise
that will require you to search the FASB ASC. Hint: Don't
forget your FASB password. And it wouldn't hurt to tell your
mom that you are officially registered with the FASB, with

a password and everything. Nothing could make a mother
prouder.
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Review Cha pter T Learning Objectives

Describe the purpose of financial reporting and identify
the primary financial statements.

The purpose of financial reporting is to aid interested par-
ties in evaluating the company’s past performance and in
forecasting its future performance. The information about
past events is intended to improve future operations and
forecasts of future cash flows.

Internal users have the ability to receive custom-

designed accounting reports. External users must rely on
the general-purpose financial statements. The five major
components of the financial statements follow:

Balance sheet

Income statement
Statement of cash flows
Explanatory notes
Auditor’s opinion

Explain the function of accounting standards and describe
the role of the FASB in setting those standards in the
United States.

Accounting standards help accountants meet the informa-
tion demands of users by providing guidelines and limits
for financial reporting. Accounting standards also improve
the comparability of financial reports among different
companies. There are many different ways to account
for the same underlying economic events, and users are
never satisfied with the amount of financial information
they receive—they always want to know more. By defin-
ing which methods to use and how much information to
disclose, accounting standards save time and money for
accountants. Users also benefit because they can learn one
set of accounting rules to apply to all companies.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)

sets accounting standards in the United States. The
FASB is a private-sector body and has no legal authority.
Accordingly, the FASB must carefully balance theory and
practice in order to maintain credibility in the business
community. The issuance of a new accounting standard
is preceded by a lengthy public discussion. The Emerg-
ing Issues Task Force (EITF) works under the direction of
the FASB. The EITF formulates a timely expert consensus
on how to handle new issues not yet covered in FASB
pronouncements. The authoritative accounting stan-
dards are contained in the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification.

Recognize the importance of the SEC, AICPA, AAA, and IRS
to financial reporting.

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). The SEC
has legal authority to establish U.S. accounting rules
but generally allows the FASB to set the standards. To
speed the improvement of disclosure, the SEC some-
times implements broad disclosure requirements in
areas still being deliberated by the FASB.

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA).
The AICPA is a key professional organization of practic-
ing accountants. The AICPA administers the CPA exam,
polices the practices of its members, and establishes
some accounting guidance, particularly related to spe-
cific industries.

American Accounting Association (AAA). The AAA is the
professional organization of accounting professors.
The AAA helps disseminate research results and facili-
tates improvements in accounting education.

Internal Revenue Service (IRS). Financial accounting is
not the same as tax accounting. However, many spe-
cifics learned in intermediate accounting are similar to
the corresponding tax rules.

Realize the growing importance and relevance of interna-
tional accounting issues to the practice of accounting in
the United States and understand the role of the IASB in
international accounting standard setting.

Because business is increasingly conducted across nation-
al borders, companies must be able to use their financial
statements to communicate with external users all over
the world. As a result, divergent national accounting prac-
tices are converging to an overall global standard.

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

is an international body whose goal is to prepare a com-
prehensive set of financial accounting standards that
can be used anywhere in the world. IASB standards have
gained almost universal acceptance worldwide.

Understand the significance of the FASB’s conceptual
framework in outlining the qualities of good accounting
information, defining terms such as asset and revenue, and
providing guidance about appropriate recognition, mea-
surement, and reporting.

The conceptual framework allows for the systematic

adaptation of accounting standards to a changing busi-
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ness environment. The FASB uses the conceptual frame-
work to aid in an organized and consistent development
of new accounting standards. In addition, learning the
FASB's conceptual framework allows one to understand
and, perhaps, anticipate future standards.

The conceptual framework outlines the objectives of
financial reporting and the qualities of good accounting
information, precisely defines commonly used terms such
as asset and revenue, and provides guidance about appro-
priate recognition, measurement, and reporting.

The key financial reporting objectives are as follows:

- Usefulness

- Understandability

- Target audience of investors, lenders, and other
creditors

- Assessment of future cash flows and existing economic
resources

- Financial performance reflected by accrual accounting
Qualities of useful accounting information are the following:

- Fundamental characteristics

Relevance—predictive value, confirmatory value,
and materiality

- Faithful representation—complete, neutral, and
free from error

- Enhancing characteristics
- Comparability
Verifiability
- Timelinesss
Understandability

E0C 1-37

Recording an item in the accounting records through
a journal entry is called recognition. To be recognized, an
item must meet the definition of an element and be mea-
surable, relevant, and reliable.

The following are the five measurement attributes
used in practice:

- Historical cost

- Current replacement cost

- Fairvalue

- Net realizable value

- Present (or discounted) value

A full set of financial statements includes a balance
sheet, income statement, statement of cash flows, state-
ment of changes in owners'equity, and statement of com-
prehensive income.

Identify career opportunities related to accounting and
financial reporting and understand the importance of per-
sonal ethics in the practice of accounting.

Public accountants are freelance accountants who
provide auditing, tax, and a variety of other customer
services. In addition, since all companies have some
financial reporting responsibilities, there are many
financial accounting career opportunities in industry.
Because accounting is the language of business, any
business career requires a familiarity with financial
accounting. Finally, our financial reporting system is of
limited value if the accountants who operate the system
do not have strong personal ethics.

FASB-IASB CODIFICATION SUMMARY

Topic U.S. GAAP IASB Standard

Accounting standard setter Financial Accounting International Accounting Standards Board

Standards Board (FASB) (IASB)

Financial accounting standards FASB Accounting Standards - International Financial Reporting
Codification (ASC) Standards (IFRS)

- International Accounting Standards (IAS)

Group to address issues of inter- Emerging Issues Task Force - International Financial Reporting
pretation or for which no formal (EITF) Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)
standard currently exists - Standing Interpretations Committee

(SIC) before 2002
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KEY TERMS

Accounting 1-4

Accounting periods 1-30

Accounting Principles Board
(APB) 1-9

Accounting Standards
Updates 1-10

American Accounting Association
(AAA) 1-16

American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (AICPA) 1-15

Arm’s-length transactions 1-30

Certified public accountants
(CPAs) 1-15

Comparability 1-25

Complete information 1-24

Comprehensive income 1-29

Conceptual framework 1-20
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Confirmatory value 1-24

Conservatism 1-26

Consistency 1-25

Creditors 1-6

Current replacement cost 1-27

Disclosure 1-26

Economic entity 1-30

Emerging Issues Task Force
(EITF) 1-11

Exposure Draft 1-10

Fair value 1-27

Faithful representation 1-24

Financial accounting 1-5

Financial Accounting
Foundation (FAF) 1-10

Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) 1-9

Full disclosure principle 1-29
Generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) 1-9
General-purpose financial
statements 1-7
Going concern 1-30
Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) 1-10
Historical cost 1-27
Internal Revenue Service
(IRS) 1-17
International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) 1-19
Investors 1-6
Management accounting 1-5
Materiality 1-24
Net realizable value 1-28

Tutorial Activities

Tutorial Activities with author-written, content-specific feedback,
available on CengageNOW for Stice & Stice.

QUESTIONS

1. Accounting has been defined as a service activity. Who is
served by accounting, and how do they benefit?

2. How does the fact that there are limited resources in the
world relate to accounting information?

3. Accounting is sometimes characterized as dealing only with
the past. Give examples of how accounting information can
be of value in dealing with the future.

4. Distinguish between management accounting and financial

accounting.

5. What five items make up the general-purpose financial

statements?

Contrast the roles of an accountant and an auditor.

Why are independent audits necessary?

What conditions led to the establishment of accounting
standard-setting bodies in the United States?

Neutrality 1-24

Predictive value 1-24

Present (or discounted)
value 1-28

Recognition 1-26

Relevance 1-24

Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) 1-9

Stable monetary units 1-30

Stakeholders 1-5

Statement of changes in owners’
equity 1-28

Statements of Financial
Accounting Concepts 1-10

Timeliness 1-25

Understandability 1-25

Verifiability 1-25

9. Describe the structure of the FASB. Where does the FASB

get its operating funds?

10. What are the differences in purpose and scope of the
FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the FASB
Statements of Financial Accounting Concepts?

11. What characteristics of the standard-setting process
are designed to increase the acceptability of standards

established by the FASB?

12. (a) What role does the EITF play in establishing accounting
standards? (b) Why can it meet this role more efficiently

than the FASB?

13. How does the SEC influence the setting of accounting

standards?

14, What is the AICPA? The AAA?

15. Explain the relationship between financial accounting rules

and tax accounting rules.
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23.

24.

Exercise 1-1

Exercise 1-2
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Why is standard setting such a difficult and complex task?
What constitutes authoritative GAAP in the United States?

Why are differing national accounting standards converging
to a common global standard?

What is the IASB? What is the SEC position regarding IASB
standards?

List and explain the main reasons why a conceptual frame-
work of accounting is important.

Identify the major objectives of financial reporting as speci-
fied by the FASB.

One objective of financial reporting is understandability.
Understandable to whom?

Why is it so difficult to measure the cost effectiveness of
accounting information?

Distinguish between the qualities of relevance and faithful
representation.

EXERCISES

vk wn =

accounting principles.

25.
26.
27.
28.

29.

30.

31.
32.

33.

34.
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Does “free from error” imply absolute accuracy? Explain.
Define comparability.
Of what value is consistency in financial reporting?

What is the current numerical materiality standard in
accounting?

What is conservatism in accounting? What is an example of
conservatism in accounting practice?

Identify the criteria that an item must meet to qualify for
recognition.

Identify and describe five different measurement attributes.

Briefly describe the five traditional assumptions that influ-
ence the conceptual framework.

What is the most common career path for a college gradu-
ate who starts out in public accounting?

What user careers require a knowledge of intermediate
accounting issues?

Aspects of the FASB’s Conceptual Framework

Determine whether the following statements are true or false. If a statement is false, explain why.
Comprehensive income includes changes in equity resulting from distributions to owners.
Confirmatory value and predictive value are both characteristics of relevant information.

The tendency to recognize favorable events early is an example of conservatism.

The conceptual framework focuses primarily on the needs of internal users of financial information.
The eight Statements of Financial Accounting Concepts are considered part of generally accepted

6. The overriding objective of financial reporting is to provide information for making economic

decisions.

The term recognition is synonymous with the term disclosure.

Once an accounting method is adopted, it should never be changed.

Conceptual Framework Terminology
Match the numbered statements below with the lettered terms. An answer (letter) may be used more than
once, and some terms require more than one answer (letter).

1. Key ingredients in quality of relevance

An example of conservatism
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Traditional assumptions that influence the FASB's conceptual framework
The idea that information should represent what it purports to represent
An important constraint relating to costs and benefits

The availability of information when it is needed
Recording an item in the accounting records
Determines the threshold for recognition
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9. Implies consensus
10. Transactions between independent parties

(a) Cost effectiveness (h) Timeliness
(b) Faithful representation (i) Materiality
(c) Recognition () Predictive value
(d) Verifiability (k) Economic entity
(e) Time periods (I) Lower-of-cost-or-market rule
(f)  Unrealized (m) Phrenology
(g) Completeness (n) Arm’s-length transactions
Exercise 1-3 Objectives of Financial Reporting
o For each of the following independent situations, identify the relevant objective(s) of financial reporting that

the company could be overlooking. Discuss each of these objectives.
1. The president of Daughters, Inc. believes that the financial statements should be prepared for use by
management only, because they are the primary decision makers.

2. Sparkling Tile Co. believes that financial statements should reflect only the present financial standing
and cash position of the firm and should not provide any future-oriented data.

3. The vice president of Greed Enterprises, Inc. believes that the financial statements are to present only
current-year revenues and expenses, not to disclose assets, liabilities, and owners’ equity.

4. Lohan Co. has a policy of providing disclosures of only its assets, liabilities, and owners’ equity.

5. Bob Building, Inc. always discloses the assets, liabilities, and owners' equity of the firm along with the
revenues and expenses. Bob's management believes that these items provide all of the information
relevant to investing decisions.

Exercise 1-4 Applications of Accounting Characteristics and Concepts

o For each situation listed, indicate by letter the appropriate qualitative characteristic(s) or accounting
concept(s) applied. A letter may be used more than once, and more than one characteristic or concept
may apply to a particular situation.

1. Goodwill is recorded in the accounts only when it arises from the purchase of another entity at a
price higher than the fair value of the purchased entity’s identifiable assets.
Land is valued at cost.
All payments out of petty cash are debited to Miscellaneous Expense.

Plant assets are classified separately as land or buildings, with an accumulated depreciation account
for buildings.

5. Periodic payments of $2,300 per month for services of R. Robertson, who is the sole proprietor of
the company, are reported as withdrawals.

Small tools used by a large manufacturing firm are recorded as expenses when purchased.
Investments in equity securities are initially recorded at cost.

A retail store estimates inventory rather than taking a complete physical count for purposes of
preparing monthly financial statements.

9. A note describing the company’s possible liability in a lawsuit is included with the financial
statements even though no formal liability exists at the balance sheet date.

10. Depreciation on plant assets is consistently computed each year by the straight-line method.

(@) Understandability (g) Going concern
(b) Verifiability (h) Economic entity
(©) Timeliness (i) Historical cost
(d) Faithful representation () Measurability
(e) Neutrality (k) Materiality

(f) Relevance ()  Comparability
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Trade-Off between Qualitative Characteristics

In each of the following independent situations, an example is given requiring a trade-off between the
qualitative characteristics discussed in the text. For each situation, identify the relevant characteristics and
briefly discuss how satisfying one characteristic may involve not satisfying another.

1. The book value of an office building is approaching its originally estimated salvage value of $100,000.
However, its fair value has been estimated at $10 million. The company’s management would like to
disclose to financial statement users the current value of the building on the balance sheet.

2. JCB Industries has used the FIFO inventory method for the past 20 years. However, all other major
competitors use the LIFO method of accounting for inventories. JCB is contemplating a switch from
FIFO to LIFO.

3. Hobson, Inc. is negotiating with a major bank for a significant loan. The bank has asked that a set
of financial statements be provided as quickly after the year-end as possible. Because invoices from
many of the company’s suppliers are mailed several weeks after inventory is received, Hobson, Inc. is
considering estimating the amounts associated with those liabilities to be able to prepare its finan-
cial statements more quickly.

4. Starship, Inc. produces and sells satellites to government and private industries. The company pro-
vides a warranty guaranteeing the performance of the satellites. A recent space launch placed one
of its satellites in orbit, and several malfunctions have occurred. At year-end, Starship, Inc.'s auditors
would like the company to disclose the potential liability in the notes to the financial statements.
Officers of Starship, Inc. believe that the satellite can be repaired in orbit and that disclosure of a con-
tingency such as this would unnecessarily bias the financial statements.

Elements of Financial Reporting
For each of the following items, identify the financial statement element being discussed.

1. Changes in equity during a period except those resulting from investments by owners and distribu-
tions to owners
The net assets of an entity
The result of a transaction requiring the future transfer of assets to other entities
An increase in assets from the delivery of goods that constitutes the entity’s ongoing central operations

An increase in an entity’s net assets from incidental transactions

Decreases in net assets from peripheral transactions of an enterprise
The payment of a dividend

2

3

4

5

6. Anincrease in net assets through the issuance of stock
7

8

9. Outflows of assets from the delivery of goods or services
1

0. Items offering future value to an entity

Assumptions of Financial Reporting

In each of the following independent situations, an example is given involving one of the five traditional
assumptions of the accounting model. For each situation, identify the assumption involved (briefly explain
your answer).

1. A subsidiary of Parent, Inc. was exhibiting poor earnings performance for the year. In an effort to
increase the subsidiary’s reported earnings, Parent, Inc. purchased products from the subsidiary at
twice the normal markup.

2. When preparing the financial statements for MacNeil & Sons, the accountant included certain
personal assets of MacNeil and his sons.

3. The operations of Uintah Savings & Loan are being evaluated by the federal government. During their
investigations, government officials have determined that numerous loans made by top management
were unwise and have seriously endangered the future existence of the savings and loan.

4. Pine Valley Ski Resort has experienced a drastic reduction in revenues because of light snowfall for
the year. Rather than produce financial statements at the end of the fiscal year, as is traditionally
done, management has elected to wait until next year and present results for a two-year period.
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5. Colobri, Inc. has equipment that was purchased in 2001 at a cost of $150,000. Because of inflation,
that same equipment, if purchased today, would cost $225,000. Management would like to report
the asset on the balance sheet at its current value.

Exercise 1-8 Measurement Attributes and Going Concern Problems

o One of the underlying assumptions of the accounting model is the going concern assumption. When this
assumption is questionable, valuation methods used for assets and liabilities may differ from those used
when the assumption is viable. For each of the following situations, identify the measurement attribute
that would most likely be used if the company is not likely to remain a going concern.
1. Plant and equipment are carried at an amortized cost on a straight-line basis of $2,100,000.

2. Bonds with a maturity price of $1,500,000 and interest in arrears of $400,000 are reported as a
noncurrent liability.

3. Accounts receivable are carried at $600,000, the gross amount charged for sales. No allowance for
doubtful accounts is reported.

4. The reported LIFO cost of inventory is $250,000.
5. Investments in a subsidiary company are recorded at initial cost plus undistributed profits.

Exercise 1-9 Sample CPA Exam Questions
o 1. One of the elements on a financial statement is comprehensive income. Comprehensive income
excludes changes in equity resulting from which of the following?

(@) Loss from discontinued operations

(b) Unrealized loss from foreign currency translation

(c) Dividends paid to stockholders

(d) Unrealized loss on investments in noncurrent marketable equity securities

2. According to the FASB conceptual framework, the objectives of financial reporting for business
enterprises are based on

(@) generally accepted accounting principles.
(b) reporting on management’s stewardship.
(c) the need for conservatism.
(d) the needs of users of the information.
3. Statements of Financial Accounting Concepts are intended to establish
(@) generally accepted accounting principles in financial reporting by business enterprises.
(b) the meaning of “Present fairly in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.”
(c) the objectives and concepts for use in developing standards of financial accounting and reporting.
(d) the hierarchy of sources of generally accepted accounting principles.

4. According to Statements of Financial Accounting Concepts, neutrality is an ingredient of faithful rep-
resentation? Of relevance?

(@ Yes Yes
(b) Yes No
(¢ No Yes
(d) No No

5. According to the FASB conceptual framework, which of the following statements conforms to the
realization concept?

(@) Equipment depreciation was assigned to a production department and then to product unit costs.
(b) Depreciated equipment was sold in exchange for a note receivable,

(c) Cash was collected on accounts receivable.

(d) Product unit costs were assigned to cost of goods sold when the units were sold.
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CASES

How Should | Invest?
Assume thatyou justinherited $1 million. You are aware that numerous studies have shown that investments
in equity securities (stocks) give the highest rate of return over the long run. However, you are not sure in
which companies you should invest. You send for and receive the annual reports of several companies in
three growth industries.

In making your investment decision, what useful information would you expect to find in the following?

1. The balance sheet
The income statement
The statement of cash flows

The Advantage of Internal Users

Emilio Valdez worked for several years as a loan analyst for a large bank. He recently left the bank and took a
management position with Positron, a high-tech manufacturing firm. Emilio prepared for his first manage-
ment meeting by extensively analyzing Positron’s external financial statements. However, in the meeting,
the other managers referred to lots of information that Emilio hadn't found in the financial statements. In
addition to using the financial statements, the other managers were using computer printouts and reports
unlike anything Emilio had seen in his years at the bank. After the meeting, Monique Vo, one of Emilio’s as-
sociates, offered the following advice:“Emilio, you have to remember that you are an internal user now, not
an external user’What does Monique mean?

We Aren’t Getting What We Expect

Quality Enterprises, Inc. issued its 2014 financial statements on February 22, 2015. The auditors expressed
a “clean” opinion in the audit report. On July 14, 2015, the company filed for bankruptcy as a result of
the inability to meet currently maturing long-term debt obligations. Reasons cited for the action include
(1) large losses on inventory due to overproduction of product lines that did not sell, (2) failure to collect
on a large account receivable due to the customer’s bankruptcy, and (3) a deteriorating economic envi-
ronment caused by a severe recession in the spring of 2015. Joan Stevens, a large stockholder with a large
number of Quality shares, is concerned about the fact that a company with a clean audit opinion could
have financial difficulty leading to bankruptcy just four months after the audit report was issued. “Where
were the auditors?” she inquired. In reply, the auditors contend that on December 31, 2014, the date of
the financial statements, the statements were presented in accordance with GAAP. What is an auditor’s
responsibility for protecting users from losses? Are auditors and investors in agreement on what an audit
should provide?

Does Lobbying Improve the Quality of Accounting Standards?

The "due process” system of the FASB encourages public input into the standard-setting process. It invites
written comments, holds public hearings, and often changes proposed standards in response to this input.
However, some observers have suggested that this process makes the setting of accounting standards less
a technical exercise and more a political one. Parties are known to lobby for or against proposed standards
according to their economic interests.

1. How would accounting standard setting be improved by eliminating lobbying?
2. How would accounting standard setting be harmed by eliminating lobbying?

How Important Are Economic Consequences?

FASB ASC Subtopic 715-60 requires companies to recognize a liability for their obligation to pay for retir-
ees’ health care. Prior to this rule, most companies recognized no liability for their health care promises to
employees, although an economic liability certainly existed. Many companies used the adoption of the
FASB rule as an excuse to cut retiree health benefits, claiming that the FASB had suddenly created this li-
ability. Thus, it seems that an FASB accounting rule had an economic impact on retirees. Recognizing that
accounting rules can have economic consequences, sometimes unintended and undesirable, should the
impact on society be an important consideration for the FASB in setting accounting standards?
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Who Needs International Accounting?

Tom Obstinate is disgusted by all of the emphasis being put on international accounting issues. Tom plans
to practice accounting in the United States, with U.S. companies, using U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, Tom sees no
reason to know anything about the IASB or cross-national differences in accounting practices. Is there any
merit in Tom’s view? What might you say to Tom to get him to reconsider his position?

You Need More Education!
For more than three decades, accounting professionals, accounting educators, and accounting bodies
have debated requiring more education for those entering the public accounting profession. In 1988, the
AICPA passed a resolution mandating 150 college credit hours as a minimum educational requirement for
all new members of its organization after 1999. This requirement placed added pressure on state legisla-
tors to pass new accounting legislation, and during the 1990s, an increasing number of states passed the
“150-hour rule!” Some groups, however, oppose this move and argue that it is restrictive to entry of minor-
ity groups and that it will unnecessarily reduce the number of accounting graduates and put accounting
educators “out of work” as students opt for less expensive educational alternatives.

Why does the accounting profession recommend more education for new accounting professionals?
Why would some groups resist this move? As an accounting student, were you deterred in your decision
to major in accounting because of the “150-hour rule”? Why or why not?

Let’s Play by the IRS Rules

Little attempt is made to reconcile the accounting standard differences between the IRS and the FASB.
These differences are recognized as arising from differences in the objectives of the two bodies. However,
the existence of differences requires companies to keep two different sets of records in some areas: records
that follow the FASB pronouncements and those that follow the IRS rules and regulations.

Historically, the financial accounting standards in some countries have closely followed the tax rules
established by the respective government. What applies for taxes often applies for the balance sheet and
the income statement as well.

What are the advantages of merging accounting standards for taxes and financial reporting? What are
the disadvantages? What would it take to change a system so deeply ingrained in the business fabric of
either the United States or other countries?

Cash Flow versus Earnings

The FASB concluded that investors and creditors are interested in an enterprise’s future cash flows. How-
ever, the Board further stated that the primary focus of financial reporting is information about earnings.
If an investor or creditor is interested in future cash flows, why isn't the focus on an examination of a firm'’s
past cash flows? What are the limitations associated with using cash flows to measure the performance of
an enterprise? Conversely, what are the risks to an investor or creditor of focusing solely on accrual-based
earnings figures?

What Is an Asset?

Conserv Corporation, a computer software company, is trying to determine the appropriate accounting
procedure to apply to its software development costs. Management is considering capitalizing the de-
velopment costs and amortizing them over several years. Alternatively, they are considering charging the
costs to expense as soon as they are incurred. You, as an accountant, have been asked to help settle this
issue. Which definitions of financial statement elements would apply to these costs? Based on this informa-
tion, what accounting procedure would you recommend and why?

Which Measurement Attribute Is Right for Bonds Payable?

Companies regularly obtain money through the issuance of bonds. The market value of bonds changes
daily and on any given day is a function of many factors including economic variables, interest rates, indus-
try developments, and firm specific information. Should bonds be reported on the books of the issuer at
their market value on the balance sheet date? at their historical selling price? at their discounted present
value? or at their eventual maturity value? For each of these measurement attributes, identify and discuss
the issues associated with each attribute.
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But We Need Only One Accounting Standard—Fairness

In the 1970s, a leader in the accounting profession proposed that there really needed to be only one
underlying standard to govern the establishment of generally accepted accounting principles. That stan-
dard was identified as fairness. Financial statements should be prepared so that they are fair to all users:
management, labor, investors, creditors. As changes occur in society, financial reporting should change
to fairly reflect each user’s needs. Because the financial statements are the responsibility of management,
such a standard would require management to determine what reporting methods would be fair. What
advantages do you see to this proposal? What would be management’s most serious problem in applying
a fairness standard?

And Then There Were Four
The existence of just four large CPA firms that service virtually all of the major industrial and financial com-
panies and thus dominate the accounting profession has led to criticism through the years.

1. What dangers do you see from the dominance of a few large CPA firms? What advantages?

2. During the 1980s and 1990s, mergers among the large public accounting firms reduced the Big 8 to
the Big 5. The death of Arthur Andersen (because of the Enron scandal) reduced the number to four.
One reason offered for the mergers was that they improved the ability of the merging firms to pro-
vide the broad array of consulting services that provided an increasing share of the revenues of the
large accounting firms. What problems do you think intensified as public accounting firms earned an
ever-larger share of their income from consulting?

Deciphering Financial Statements (The Walt Disney Company)
Locate the 2009 financial statements for The Walt Disney Company on the Internet and consider the follow-
ing questions:

1. How well did Disney do financially during the year ended October 3, 20097 (Hint: Look at the income
statement.)

2. Comment on the level of detail in Disney's balance sheet. Should there be more balance sheet cat-
egories or fewer?

3. In 2009, was Disney's net cash from operations sufficient to pay for its investments in parks, resorts,
and other property and in the acquisition of other businesses?

4. Look at the notes to the financial statements. You will find 18 of them. Which ones seem to give you
the most new information?

5. Find the auditor’s opinion. Who is Disney’s auditor? Was the 2009 audit opinion unqualified?

Deciphering Financial Statements (McDonald’s Corporation)
The following information comes from the 2009 financial statements of McDonald’s Corporation.
Conventional franchise arrangements generally include a lease and a license and provide for payment
of initial fees, as well as continuing rent and royalties to the Company based upon a percent of sales with
minimum rent payments that parallel the Company’s underlying leases and escalations (on properties that
are leased). Under this arrangement, franchisees are granted the right to operate a restaurant using the
McDonald's System and, in most cases, the use of a restaurant facility, generally for a period of 20 years.
These franchisees pay related occupancy costs including property taxes, insurance and maintenance.
Affiliates and developmental licensees operating under license agreements pay a royalty to the Company
based upon a percent of sales, and may pay initial fees.
The results of operations of restaurant businesses purchased and sold in transactions with franchisees
were not material to the consolidated financial statements for periods prior to purchase and sale.
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Revenues from franchised restaurants consisted of:

In millions 2009 2008 2007
RENTS $4,841.0 $4,612.8 $4,177.2
Rovalties .. ... 2,379.8 2,.275.7 1,941.1
Initial fees . .. o 65.4 73.0 573
Revenues from franchised restaurants.................... $7,286.2 $6,961.5 $6,175.6

McDonald’s, 2009, 10K Report
Future minimum rent payments due to the Company under existing franchise arrangements are:

In millions Owned sites  Leased sites Total
2000 $ 1,2181 $ 1,076.0 S 2,294.1
20T 1,177.3 1,042.9 2,220.2
20T 1,144.5 1,011.5 2,156.0
20T 3 1,105.1 9724 2,077.5
2014 1,062.1 9248 1,986.9
Thereafter. ... 8,495.8 6,782.5 15,2783
Total minimum payments .................cocoiiiii... $14,202.9 $11,810.1 $26,013.0

McDonald’s, 2009, 10K Report
This $26.0 billion amount represents the future minimum payments that McDonald’s expected to receive
from its franchisees as of December 31, 2009.

1. Using the element definition from the conceptual framework, should this $26.0 billion be recorded
as an asset in McDonald's 2009 balance sheet? Why or why not?
2. Ifyour answer in part (1) is yes, what measurement attribute should be used in reporting the asset?

Writing Assignment (Should the SEC replace the FASB?)

Imagine that you have been selected to compete with students from other universities in presenting a case

considering whether the FASB should be abolished and its standard-setting role taken over by the SEC.
Prepare a one-page summary outlining the major arguments for and against the SEC replacing the

FASB.

Ethical Dilemma (Should you manipulate your reported income?)

Accounting standards place limits on the set of allowable alternative accounting treatments, but the
accountant must still exercise judgment to choose among the remaining alternatives. In making those
choices, which of the following should the accountant seek to do?

1. Maximize reported income.
Minimize reported income.
Ignore the impact of the accounting choice on income and just focus on the most conceptually
correct option.

Would your answer change if this were a tax accounting class? Why or why not?
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A Review of the
Accounting Cycle

Learning Objectives

Identify and explain the basic steps in the accounting
process (accounting cycle).

0 Analyze transactions and make and post journal entries.

Make adjusting entries, produce financial statements, and
close nominal accounts.

Tom Clancy typed the first draft of his first novel, The
Hunt for Red October, on an IBM Selectric typewriter
while still holding down his full-time job as an insur-
ance agent. The book was published in October 1984,
and sales took off when it became known that the
book was President Ronald Reagan’s favorite. To date,
Clancy has published a total of nine novels featuring
the reluctant hero, Jack Ryan, two featuring Ryan’s
son, and one including both father and son. The
stories have been so popular that Clancy has com-
manded a $25 million advance per book.

In The Hunt for Red October, Jack Ryan, who was
trained as a historian, is a part-time analyst for the CIA. By
the sixth novel in the series, Debt of Honor, a well-earned
reputation for being a“good man in a storm” has landed
Ryan, against his wishes, in the position of serving as the
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o Distinguish between accrual and cash-basis accounting.

Discuss the importance and expanding role of computers to
the accounting process.

president’s national security advisor. Jack Ryan’s abilities
are tested as an international crisis is touched off when
a group of Japanese businessmen gain control of their
government and determine that the only way to save
the Japanese economy is through neutralization of U.S.
power in the Pacific.

The first act of war against the United States is not
an attack on a military target but on the bookkeeping
system used by U.S. stock exchanges. A computer virus
injected into the program used to record trades on all
the major U.S. stock exchanges is activated at noon on
Friday. The records of all trades made after that time
are eliminated so that:

No trading house, institution, or private investor
could know what it had bought or sold, to or from

Foundations
of Financial
Accounting




whom, or for how much, and none could therefore know how much
money was available for other trades, or for that matter, to purchase
groceries over the weekend. (Tom Clancy, Debt of Honor, page 312)

The uncertainty created by the destruction of the stock exchanges’book-
keeping records threatens to throw the U.S. economy into a tailspin and
distract U.S. policy makers from other moves being made by Japan in
the Pacific. Jack Ryan saves the world as we know it and restores the U.S.
economy to sound footing by . .. well, it wouldn't be fair to say—you'll
have to read the book. Suffice it to say that a key part of the restoration
plan is the repair of the stock exchanges’bookkeeping system.

This fictitious attack was an eerie precursor to the actual
attack on the World Trade Center in New York City on Septem-
ber 11, 2001. In addition to the tragic loss of life, this attack also
closed the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) for four business days;
it reopened the following Monday. The market fell by 7.1% when
trading resumed. The impact on the U.S. economy could have
been even greater if Wall Street firms had not had disaster recov-
ery and data backup plans in place. In fact, within two months
(November 9, 2001), the Dow Jones Industrial Average had recov-
ered to its pre-attack level.

1. What would be the consequences to a customer if her bank could not tell her
if her paycheck (which is direct deposited) had in fact been deposited? What
would be the consequences to the bank?

2. Suppose the Internal Revenue Service and employers had no system estab-
lished to track the amount of income tax withheld from employee salaries. How
would taxpayers demonstrate to the U.S. government that they had paid taxes?
How would the government verify tax payments?

Answers to these questions can be found on page 2-25.

2-2

hese two examples, one fictitious and one tragically real, make a very good point: The
business world in which we live and work would not be able to operate, for even one
day, without a reliable method for recording the effects of transactions. A systematic

method of recording transactions is necessary if companies such as IBM and General
Electric (and even local music stores and Internet vendors) are to generate information
with which to make sound business decisions.

This information is summarized in a variety of reports prepared from accounting

records to assist users in making better economic decisions. Examples include the following:

General-purpose financial statements prepared for external user groups, primarily cur-
rent or potential investors and creditors, who are involved financially with an enter-
prise but who are not a part of its management team.

Reports received by user groups within organizations, especially those in managerial
positions, to assist them in planning and controlling the day-to-day operations of their

Tax returns and similar reports prepared to comply with Internal Revenue Service

1.
2.
organizations.
3.
(IRS) requirements.
4.

Special reports required by various regulatory agencies such as the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC).

Each of these reports is based on data that are the result of an accounting system and

a set of procedures collectively referred to as the accounting process or the accounting
cycle. While this process follows a fairly standard set of procedures that has existed for
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WHY ttis important to understand
how accounting information flows
through an organization and how
that information is captured by the
accounting information system.

HOW the accounting process,
often referred to as the accounting
cycle, generally includes the follow-
ing steps: analyze business docu-
ments, journalize transactions, post
to ledger accounts, prepare a trial
balance, prepare adjusting entries,
prepare financial statements, close
the nominal accounts, and prepare a
post-closing trial balance.

€2 | A Review of the Accounting Cycle 2-3

centuries, the exact nature of the accounting system used to collect and report the data
depends on the type of business, its size, the volume of transactions processed, the degree
of automation employed, and other related factors. Every accounting system, however,
should be designed to provide accurate information on a timely and efficient basis. At the
same time, the system must provide controls that are effective in preventing mistakes and
guarding against dishonesty.

Historically, accounting systems were maintained by hand and referred to as manual
systems. Such systems continue to be used effectively in some situations. In today’s business
environment, however, most companies use computers to collect, process, and analyze
financial information. Has the computer changed the accounting process? It allows busi-
nesses to collect and analyze much more information and do it quickly, but the computer
has not changed the underlying accounting concepts involved—debits still equal credits;
assets still equal liabilities plus owners’ equity.

The purpose of this chapter is to review the basic steps of the accounting process,
including a brief review of debits and credits and the mechanics of bookkeeping. Get
ready for a discussion of double-entry accounting, a system described by the German poet
Goethe as “an absolutely perfect one.”!

Overview of the Accounting Process

a Identify and explain the basic steps in the accounting process (accounting cycle).

As you will recall from your introductory accounting class, the accounting process (or
accounting cycle) consists of two interrelated parts, (1) the recording phase and (2) the
reporting phase. The recording phase is concerned with collecting information about
economic transactions and events and distilling that information into a form useful to the
accounting process. For most businesses, the recording function is based on double-entry
accounting procedures. In the reporting phase, the recorded information is organized and
summarized using various formats for a variety of decision-making purposes. The two
phases overlap because the recording of transactions is an ongoing activity that does not
stop at the end of an accounting period but continues uninterrupted while events of the
preceding period are being summarized and reported. The recording and reporting phases
of the accounting process are reviewed and illustrated in this chapter. The form and con-
tent of the basic financial statements are discussed in depth and illustrated in Chapters 3,
4, and 5.

The accounting process, illustrated in Exhibit 2-1, generally includes the following
steps in a well-defined sequence:

Recording Phase

1. Business documents are analyzed. Analysis of the documentation of business activities
provides the basis for making an initial record of each transaction.

2. Transactions are recorded. Based on the supporting documents from step 1, transactions
are recorded using journal entries.

3. Transactions are posted. Transactions, as classified and recorded, are posted to the
appropriate accounts.

! Johann Wolfgang von Goethe, Wilhelm Meister's Apprenticeship and Travels, trans. Thomas Carlyle (Chapman and Hall, 1824).
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Exhibit 2-1 | The Accounting Process

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3

Business 3 Transactions 3 Transactions Recording
documents recorded in osted to Phase
analyzed journals edgers

Y
Step 4 l

Trial balance

* Spreadsheet

(optional)

Step 5
Adjustments

[ <

Step 6
Financial
statements

Step 7
Closing enfries

Y
Step 8

Post-closing
trial balance
(optional)

© Cengage Learning 2014

Reporting Phase

4. A trial balance of the accounts in the general ledger is prepared. The trial balance simply
lists every account in the ledger along with its current debit or credit balance. This step in
the reporting phase provides a general check on the accuracy of recording and posting.

5. Adjusting entries are recorded. Before financial statements can be prepared, all relevant
information that has not been recorded must be determined and appropriate adjust-
ments made. Adjusting entries must be recorded and posted so the accounts are current
prior to the preparation of financial statements.

6. Financial statements are prepared. Statements summarizing operations and showing
the financial position and cash flows are prepared from the information obtained from
the adjusted accounts.

7. Nominal accounts are closed. Balances

in the nominal (temporary) accounts
FYl are closed into the retained earnings

account. This closing process results in
As noted in Exhibit 2-1, an optional spreadsheet can be used for the reporting beginning each accounting period with
process. This spreadsheet has columns for the trial balance, adjustments, an zero balances in all nominal accounts.
adjusted trial balance, and the financial statements. All accounts with their 8. A post-closing trial balance may be
balances are listed on the spreadsheet in the appropriate columns. Computer prepared to determine the equality of
spreadsheets are often used to facilitate this process. the debits and credits after posting the

adjusting and closing entries.
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Stop &

Which of the following would NOT be the role of a bookkeeper?
a) Analyzing and recording routine transactions

b) Posting journal entries

C) Interpreting accounting results
d) Preparing a post-closing trial balance

Before we are immersed in the details
associated with the accounting process, it
is important to remember that functions
such as journalizing, posting, and clos-
ing are bookkeeping functions. You must
be familiar with the mundane details of
bookkeeping and know how to analyze
transactions in terms of debits and cred-
its, but you should not expect to spend
your entire accounting career doing

WHY Transactions are events that
transfer or exchange goods or ser-
vices between or among two or more
entities. These transactions provide
the foundation for information
captured by the accounting system.

HOW Business documents, such
as invoices, provide evidence that
transactions have occurred as well

as the data required to record the
transactions in the accounting
records. The data are recorded with
journal entries using a system of
double-entry accounting. The journal
entries are subsequently posted to
ledger accounts.

bookkeeping. As an accountant, you will spend a great deal of your time in design-
ing information systems, analyzing complex transactions, and interpreting accounting
results. A knowledge of the fundamentals of bookkeeping provides a foundation upon
which these activities are based. These activities are vital to the management of an
organization.

Recording Phase

a Analyze transactions and make and post journal entries.

Accurate financial statements can be prepared only if the results of business events and
activities have been properly recorded. Certain events, termed transactions, involve the
transfer or exchange of goods or services between two or more entities. Examples of
business transactions include the purchase of merchandise or other assets from suppliers
and the sale of goods or services to customers. In addition to transactions, other events
and circumstances can affect the assets, liabilities, and owners’ equity of the business.
Some of those events and circumstances also must be recorded. Examples include the
recognition of depreciation on plant assets or a decline in the market value of inventories
and investments.

As indicated, the recording phase involves analyzing business documents, journalizing
transactions, and posting to the ledger accounts. Before discussing these steps, the system
of double-entry accounting will be reviewed because virtually all businesses use this pro-
cedure in recording their transactions.

Double-Entry Accounting

As explained in Chapter 1, financial accounting rests on a foundation of basic assump-
tions, concepts, and principles that govern the recording, classifying, summarizing, and
reporting of accounting data. Double-entry accounting is an old and universally accepted
system for recording accounting data. With double-entry accounting, each transaction is
recorded in a way that maintains the equal-

Caution

Remember that debit does not mean good (or bad) and credit does not mean
bad (or good). Debit means left, and credit means right.

ity of the basic accounting equation:
Assets = Liabilities + Owners’ Equity
To review how double-entry accounting

works, recall that a debit is an entry on the
left side of an account and a credit is an
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Purchasing groceries at your local supermarket is a common example of
a business transaction. Can you identify the accounts involved with this
transaction?
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| Debit and Credit Relationships of Accounts

Assets =

Liabilities + Owners’ Equity

DR | CR
) | &)

© Cengage Learning 2014

entry on the right side. The debit/credit relationships of accounts were explained in detail
in your introductory accounting course. Exhibit 2-2 summarizes these relationships for a
corporation. You will note that assets, expenses, and dividends are increased by debits and
decreased by credits. Liabilities, capital stock, retained earnings, and revenues are increased
by credits and decreased by debits. Note that while dividends reduce retained earnings, they

DR | CR DR | CR
(NG (NG

DR | CR DR | CR
=) | ) =) | )
Expénses Revenues
DR | CR DR | CR
) | () =) | )
Dividends
DR | CR

GG

are not classified as an expense and are not reported on the income statement.

Journal entries provide a systematic method for summarizing a business event’s effect

on the accounting equation. Every journal entry involves a three-step process:

or transaction.

account was debited or credited).

was affected.

is maintained.
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1. Identify the accounts involved with an event

2. Determine whether each account increased
or decreased (this information, coupled with
the answer to step 1, will tell you if the

3. Determine the amount by which each account

This three-step process, properly applied, will
always result in a correct journal entry. Note
that this process is used whether the accounting
is being done manually or with a computer.

To illustrate double-entry accounting, consider
the transactions and journal entries shown in Exhibit
2-3 and their impact on the accounting equation.
In studying this illustration, you should note that
for each transaction, total debits equal total credits.
Therefore, the equality of the accounting equation
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Caution

Note in Exhibit 2-2 that dividends reduce retained earnings, but they are not
classified as an expense and are not reported on the income statement.

1.

Owners’ equity for a corporation includes capital stock accounts and the retained earn-

ings account.

Revenues, expenses, and dividends relate to owners’ equity through the retained earn-

Ings account.

Exhibit 2-3 | Double-Entry Accounting: lllustrative Transactions and Journal Entries

To summarize, you should remember
the following important features of double-
entry accounting:

Assets are increased by debits and

decreased by credits.

Liability and owners’ equity accounts
are increased by credits and decreased

by debits.

Three-Step Process

(1) and (2) together
indicate whether an | (3) By
(1) Identify (2) Increase | account is debited How

Transaction Accounts. or Decrease? | or credited. Much? | Journal Entry
Investment by Cash Increase Asset} = debit | $10,000| Cash 10,000
shareholder in | Capital Stock Increase Owners’ equity ! = credit| $10,000|  Capital Stock 10,000
a corporation,
$10,000
Purchase of Supplies Increase Asset} = debit | $5,000| Supplies 5,000
supplies on Accounts Payable | Increase Libility 4 = credit| $5,000|  Accounts Payable 5,000
account, $5,000
Payment of Cash Decrease Asset | = credit| $2,500| Wages Expense 2,500
wages expense, | Wages Expense Increase Expenses T = debit | $2,500| Cash 2,500
$2,500
Collection of Cash Increase Asset? = debit | $1,000| Cash 1,000
accounts Accounts Receivable | Decrease Asset | = credit| $1,000]  Accounts Receivable 1,000
receivable,
$1,000
Payment of Cash Decrease Asset | = credit|  $500 | Accounts Payable 500
account payable, | Accounts Payable | Decrease Liability § = debit | $500| Cash 500
$500
Sale of Accounts Receivable | Increase Asset? = debit | $20,000| Accounts Receivable 20,000
merchandise on | Sales Increase Revenues T = credit| $20,000|  Sales 20,000
account,
$20,000
Purchase of Cash Decrease Asset ¥ = credit| $15,000| Equipment 55,000
equipment: Equipment Increase Asset 4 = debit | $55,000| Cash 15,000
$15,000 down | Notes Payable Increase Liability 4 = credit| $40,000|  Notes Payable 40,000
payment plus
$40,000 long-
term note
Payment of cash | Cash Decrease Asset |, = credit| $4,000| Dividends 4,000
dividend, $4,000| Dividends Increase Dividends 4 = debit | $4,000f Cash 4,000
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P1 | Foundations of Financial Accounting

5. Expenses and dividends are increased by debits and decreased by credits because they
reduce owners’ equity.

6. Revenues are increased by credits and decreased by debits.

The difference between total revenues and total expenses for a period is net income
(loss), which increases (decreases) owners’ equity through the retained earnings
account.

With this brief overview of the accounting equation and journal entries, we are now ready
to proceed through the steps in the accounting process.

Analyzing Business Documents

The recording phase begins with an analysis of the documentation showing what business
activities have occurred. Normally, a business document, or source document, is the first
record of each transaction. Such a document offers detailed information concerning the
transaction. The business documents provide support for the data to be recorded in the
journals. Copies of sales invoices, for example, are the evidence in support of sales trans-
actions; canceled checks provide data concerning cash disbursements; and the corporation
minutes book supports entries authorized by action of the board of directors. Documents
underlying each recorded transaction provide a means of verifying the accounting records
and thus form a vital part of the information and control systems.

Journalizing Transactions

Once the information provided on business documents has been analyzed, transac-
tions are recorded in chronological order in the appropriate journals. In some small
businesses, all transactions are recorded in a single journal. Most business enterprises,
however, maintain various special journals designed to meet their specific needs as well
as a general journal. A special journal is used to record a particular type of frequently
recurring transaction. Special journals are commonly used, for example, to record each
of the following types of transactions: sales, purchases, cash disbursements, and cash
receipts. A general journal is used to record all transactions for which a special journal
is not maintained. As illustrated below, a general journal shows the transaction date
and the accounts affected and allows for a brief description of each transaction. Special
journals are illustrated and explained in the Web Material associated with this chapter
(see www.cengagebrain.com).

GENERAL JOURNAL Page 24
Post.
Date Description Ref. Debit Credit
2015
July 1 | Dividends 330 25,000
Dividends Payable 260 25,000

Declared semiannual cash
dividend on common stock.

10 | Equipment 180 7,500
Notes Payable 220 7,500
Issued note for new equipment.
31 | Payroll Tax Expense 418 2,650
Payroll Taxes Payable 240 2,650

Recorded payroll taxes for month.
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Posting to the Ledger Accounts

An account is used to summarize the effects of transactions on each element of the
expanded accounting equation. For example, the cash account is used to provide detail
for all transactions involving the inflow (debit) and outflow (credit) of cash. A ledger is a
collection of accounts maintained by a business. The specific accounts required by a busi-
ness unit vary depending on the nature of the business, its properties and activities, the
information to be provided on the financial statements, and the controls to be employed
in carrying out the accounting functions.

Informationrecordedinthejournalsistransferredtoappropriateaccountsintheled-
ger. Thistransferisreferredtoasposting. Notethatpostingisacopyingprocess;itinvolves
no new analysis. Ledger accounts for Equipment and Notes Payable are presented
by illustrating the posting of the July 10 transaction from the preceding general
journal. The posting reference (J24) indicates that the transaction was transferred
from page 24 of the general journal. Note that the account numbers for Equipment
(180) and Notes Payable (220) are entered in the Posting Reference column of the
journal.

GENERAL LEDGER

Account EQUIPMENT Account No. 180
Post.
Date ltem Ref. Debit Credit Balance
2015
July 1 | Balance 10,550
10 | Purchase Equipment J24 7,500 18,050
Account NOTES PAYABLE Account No. 220
Post.
Date Item Ref. Debit Credit Balance
2015
July 1 | Balance 5,750
10 | Purchase Equipment 124 7,500 13,250

It is often desirable to establish separate ledgers for detailed information in support of
balance sheet or income statement items. The general ledger includes all accounts appear-
ing on the financial statements, and separate subsidiary ledgers afford additional detail in

support of certain general ledger accounts.

For example, a single accounts receivable
account is usually carried in the general led-
ger, and individual customer accounts are

Stop &

The computer is very valuable in the posting process because it reduces the
types of errors that can be made. Which of the following posting errors could
a person make that a computer would not?

a) Posting to the wrong account

b) Posting the wrong amount

c) Posting a debit to a specific account instead of a credit

d) A well-functioning computer would not make any of these mistakes

recorded in a subsidiary accounts receiv-
able ledger. The general ledger account
that summarizes the detailed information
in a subsidiary ledger is known as a con-
trol account. Thus, Accounts Receivable is
considered a control account. Subsidiary
ledger accounts are illustrated in the Web
Material associated with this chapter (see
www.cengagebrain.com).
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WHY Adjusting entries are
required at the end of an accounting
period to update accounts so that
the data are current and accurate.
Closing entries are required so that
each new accounting period can be
accounted for independent of other
periods.

HOW Adjusting entries are made
at the end of an accounting period
prior to preparing the financial state-
ments for that period. Generally, the
required adjustments are the result
of analysis rather than based on

new transactions. At the end of each
accounting cycle, the nominal or tem-
porary accounts must be transferred
through the closing process to real

or permanent accounts. The nominal
accounts are left with a zero balance
and are ready to receive transaction
data for the new accounting period.
The real accounts remain open and
carry their balances forward to the
new period.

P1 | Foundations of Financial Accounting

Depending primarily on the number of transactions involved, amounts may be
posted to ledger accounts on a daily, weekly, or monthly basis. If a computer system is
being used, the posting process may be done automatically as transactions are recorded.
At the end of an accounting period, when the posting process has been completed, the
balances in the ledger accounts are used for preparing the trial balance.

Reporting Phase

e Make adjusting entries, produce financial statements, and close nominal accounts.

As noted earlier, the objective of the accounting process is to produce financial statements
and other reports that will assist various users in making economic decisions. Once
the recording phase is completed, the data must be summarized and organized into a
useful format. The remaining steps of the accounting process are designed to accomplish
this purpose. These steps will be illustrated using data from Rosi, Inc., a hypothetical
merchandising company, for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Preparing a Trial Balance

After all transactions for the period have been posted to the ledger accounts, the balance
for each account is determined. Every account will have either a debit, credit, or zero
balance. A trial balance is a list of all accounts and their balances. The trial balance,
therefore, indicates whether total debits equal total credits and thus provides a general
check on the accuracy of recording and posting. When debits equal credits in a trial
balance, however, it is no guarantee that the accounts are correct. For example, a journal
entry involving a debit to Accounts Receivable could have been incorrectly posted as
a debit to the notes receivable account. The trial balance would indeed balance, but
the accounts would be in error. Thus, a balanced trial balance provides no guarantee

of accuracy. However, a trial balance that

FY!

or external users.

A fundamental difference between the trial balance and the financial
statements is that no external users ever see the trial balance. Most managers
have never seen a trial balance. It serves as the basis for the preparation of the
financial statements but is not an information source to either management

does not balance indicates that we needn’t
go further into the reporting phase of
the accounting process. An error exists
somewhere and must be detected and
corrected before proceeding. If we elect
to proceed without correcting the error,
we have one guarantee—the financial
statements will contain errors. The trial
balance for Rosi, Inc., is presented on the
next page.
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Rosi, Inc.
Trial Balance

December 31, 2015
Debit Credit

CaSh o $ 83,110
Accounts Receivable. ... ... .. .o 106,500
Allowance for Bad Debts. . ......ouviiniiiii i $ 1610
INVENEOTY et e e e e e 45,000
Prepaid INSUraNCe . ....ve i e 8,000
Interest Receivable ...... .. ... 0
- 3 Ve 114,000
BUIIINGS . ettt e 156,000
Accumulated Depreciation—Buildings. ... 39,000
Furniture and EQUipmMeNnt. .......vuiiiiir e 19,000
Accumulated Depreciation—Furniture and Equipment.................. 3,800
Accounts Payable. ........ ..o 37,910
Unearned ReNt REVENUE. .. ..ottt 0
Salariesand Wages Payable......... ... 0
Interest Payable . ... 0
Income Taxes Payable ........ ..o 0
Dividends Payable. ...... ...t 3,400
Bonds Payable. ... oo 140,000
Common StOck, $O.TO PAr .. vvt ettt e 150,000
Retained Earnings . .. ...oouun ittt e 103,900
DIVIAENAS . . e et 13,600
Sl e 479,500
Cost of GOOAS SOI . ...t 159,310
Salaries and Wages EXPense .. ....c.uiuiiiin i 172,450
Heat, Light, and Power EXpense. . ......ooviiniiinininiiiiiiienenenns 32,480
Payroll Tax EXPeNnse. . . ..ot 18,300
AdVErtiSiNg EXPeNSE. ..ttt e 18,600
Bad Debt EXPENSE . .. vttt 0
Depreciation Expense—Buildings. ........coviiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 0
Depreciation Expense—Furniture and Equipment....................... 0
INSUIrANCE EXPENSE. . .ottt et 0
INtErEST REVENUE . .ottt e e e i 1,100
RentRevenUe ...t 2,550
INterest EXPENSE. ..ottt e 16,420
INCOME TaX EXPENSE . ..ttt e eaens 0

o] = £ $962,770 $962,770
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Preparing Adjusting Entries

As discussed in the previous section, transactions generally are recorded in a journal in
chronological order and then posted to the ledger accounts. The entries are based on the
best information available at the time. Although the majority of accounts are up to date at
the end of an accounting period and their balances can be included in the financial state-
ments, some accounts require adjustment to reflect current circumstances. In general, these
accounts are not updated throughout the period because it is impractical or inconvenient
to make such entries on a daily or weekly basis. At the end of each accounting period, in
order to report all asset, liability, and owners’ equity amounts properly and to recognize
all revenues and expenses for the period on an accrual basis, accountants are required to
make any necessary adjustments prior to preparing the financial statements. The entries
that reflect these adjustments are called

FY!

Disney’s 1998 balance sheet included in its annual report did not balance.
The preparers of that balance sheet transposed two numbers, and the result
was a $9 (million) error. The balance sheet in the 1998 10-K that was filed with
the SEC did not contain the transposition error.

adjusting entries.

One difficulty with adjusting entries is
that the need for an adjustment is not sig-
naled by a specific event such as the receipt
of a bill or the receipt of cash from a cus-
tomer. Rather, adjusting entries are recorded
on the basis of an analysis of the circum-
stances at the close of each accounting

period. This analysis involves just two steps:

1. Determine whether the amounts recorded for all assets and liabilities are correct. If
not, debit or credit the appropriate asset or liability account. In short, fix the balance
sheet.

2. Determine what revenue or expense adjustments are required as a result of the changes
in recorded amounts of assets and liabilities indicated in step 1. Debit or credit the
appropriate revenue or expense account. In short, fix the income statement.

It should be noted that these two steps are interrelated and may be reversed. That is,
revenue and expense adjustments may be considered first to fix the income statement,
indicating which asset and liability accounts need adjustment to fix the balance sheet. As
you will see, each adjusting entry involves at least one income statement account and one
balance sheet account. T-accounts are helpful in analyzing adjusting entries and will be
used in the illustrations that follow.

The areas most commonly requiring analysis to see whether adjusting entries are
needed include the following:

o Transactions where cash will be exchanged in a future period

1. Unrecorded assets
2. Unrecorded liabilities

o Transactions where cash has been exchanged in a prior period

3. Prepaid expenses
4. Unearned revenues

o Transactions involving estimates

For most transactions, the revenue or expense recognition and the flow of cash occur
in the same accounting period. For those transactions, no adjustments are necessary as the
entire transaction is accounted for in one accounting period. In some instances, the rec-
ognition of revenues and expenses and the flow of cash may occur in different accounting
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€2 | A Review of the Accounting Cycle 2-13

periods. In those instances, an adjusting entry is required to ensure that the proper amount
of revenue and/or expense is recorded in each accounting period.

As we illustrate and discuss adjusting entries, remember that the basic purpose of
adjustments is to make account balances current in order to report all asset, liability,
and owners’ equity amounts properly and to recognize all revenues and expenses for the
period on an accrual basis. This is done so that the income statement and the balance sheet
will reflect the proper operating results and financial position, respectively, at the end of
the accounting period.

The adjusting entry part of the accounting process is illustrated using the adjusting
data for Rosi, Inc., presented as follows.

Adjusting Data for Rosi, Inc.
December 31, 2015

Unrecorded Assets:

(@) Interest on notes receivable, $250.
Unrecorded Liabilities:

(b) Salaries and wages, $2,150.

(c) Interest on bonds payable, $5,000.

(d) Federal and state income taxes, $8,000.
Prepaid Expenses:

(e) Prepaid insurance remaining at year-end, $3,800.
Unearned Revenues:

(f) Unearned rent revenue remaining at year-end, $475.
Estimates:

(g) Depreciation Expense for buildings, 5% per year.

(h) Depreciation Expense for furniture and equipment, 10% per year.

() The Allowance for Bad Debts is to be increased by $1,100.

Transactions Where Cash Will Be Exchanged
in a Future Period

In cases where work is performed in the current period but cash does not flow until a
future period, an adjusting entry must be made to ensure that revenue is recognized (if you
are the one who did the work) in the current period or that an expense is recognized (if the
work was done on your behalf) in the current period. These adjusting entries are referred
to as accrual entries, and there are generally two types: unrecorded (or accrued) assets and
unrecorded (or accrued) liabilities.

Unrecorded Assets In accordance with the revenue recognition principle of accrual
accounting, revenues should be recorded when earned, regardless of when the cash is
received. If revenue is earned but not yet collected in cash, a receivable exists. To ensure
that all receivables are properly reported on the balance sheet in the correct amounts, an
analysis should be made at the end of each accounting period to see whether there are
any revenues that have been earned but have not yet been collected or recorded. These
unrecorded receivables are earned and represent amounts that are receivable in the future;
therefore, they should be recognized as assets.
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In recording unrecorded assets, an asset account is debited and a revenue account is
credited. The illustrative entry recognizing the unrecorded receivable (and the accrued
revenue) for Rosi, Inc., is as follows:

(@) Interest Receivable. .. .......oiuinii i 250
INterest REVENUE . ... .ot e e e et 250

To record accrued interest on notes receivable.

After this adjusting entry has been journalized and posted, the receivable will appear
as an asset on the balance sheet, and the interest revenue will be reported on the income
statement. Through the adjusting entry, the asset (receivable) accounts are properly stated
and revenues are appropriately reported.

Unrecorded Liabilities Just as assets are created from revenues being earned before
they are collected or recorded, liabilities can be created by expenses being incurred prior to
being paid or recorded. These expenses, along with their corresponding liabilities, should
be recorded when incurred, no matter when they are paid. Thus, adjusting entries are
required at the end of an accounting period to recognize any unrecorded liabilities in
the proper period and to record the corresponding expenses. As the expense is recorded
(increased by a debit), the corresponding liability is also recorded (increased by a credit),
showing the entity’s obligation to pay for the expense. If such adjustments are not made,
the net income measurement for the period will not reflect all appropriate expenses and
the corresponding liabilities will be understated on the balance sheet.

The adjusting entries to record unrecorded liabilities (and accrued expenses) for Rosi,
Inc., are as follows:

(b) Salaries and Wages EXPense ... ...vuvuirniiiniie e 2,150
Salaries and Wages Payable ...t 2,150

To record accrued salaries and wages.

(C) INTErESt EXPENSE .ttt ettt et 5,000
Interest Payable. ...... ... 5,000

To record accrued interest on bonds.

(d) INCOME TaX EXPENSE. ¢\ttt et et 8,000
Income Taxes Payable ... 8,000

To record income taxes.

Transactions Where Cash Has Been
Exchanged in a Prior Period

For some transactions, cash has changed hands before the revenue is earned or the expense
is incurred. If the revenue is not earned or the expense is not incurred prior to the end of
the period, then an adjusting entry to reflect that fact is required.

Prepaid Expenses Payments that a company makes in advance for items normally
charged to expense are known as prepaid expenses. An example would be the payment of
an insurance premium for three years. Theoretically, every resource acquisition is an asset,
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at least temporarily. Thus, the entry to record an advance payment should be a debit to
an asset account (Prepaid Expenses) and a credit to Cash, showing the exchange of cash
for another asset.

An expense is the using up of an asset. For example, when supplies are purchased, they
are recorded as assets; when they are used, their cost is transferred to an expense account.
The purpose of making adjusting entries for prepaid expenses is to show the complete or
partial consumption of an asset. If the orig-

Caution

inal entry is to an asset account, the adjust-
ing entry reduces the asset to an amount
that reflects its remaining future benefit

Prepaid Expenses is a tricky name for an asset. Assets are reported in the and at the same time recognizes the actual
balance sheet. Don't make the mistake of including Prepaid Expenses with expense incurred for the period.
the expenses on the income statement. For the unrecorded assets and liabili-

ties discussed earlier, there was no original

entry; the adjusting entry was the first time
these items were recorded in the accounting records. For prepaid expenses, this is not the
case. Because cash has already been paid (in the case of prepaid expenses), an original
entry has been made to record the cash transaction. Therefore, the amount of the adjusting
entry is the difference between what the updated balance should be and the amount of the
original entry already recorded.

The method of adjusting for prepaid expenses depends on how the expenditures were
originally entered in the accounts. They could have been recorded originally as debits to
(1) an asset account or (2) an expense account. Both methods, if consistently applied,
result in the same end result. Thus, both methods are equally correct. An individual com-
pany would choose one method or the other and apply it each period.

Original Debit to an Asset Account. If an asset account was originally debited (Pre-
paid Insurance in this example), the adjusting entry requires that an expense account be
debited for the amount applicable to the current period and the asset account be credited.
The asset account remains with a debit balance that shows the amount applicable to
future periods. An adjusting entry for Prepaid Insurance for Rosi, Inc., illustrates this situ-
ation as follows:

(€) INSUIANCE EXPENSE vttt ettt ittt et e et et 4,200
Prepaid INSUraNCe . ..ot e 4,200
To record expired insurance (58,000 — $3,800 = $4,200).

Because the asset account Prepaid Insurance was originally debited, as shown in the
trial balance, the amount of the prepayment ($8,000) must be reduced to reflect only the
$3,800 that remains unexpired. The following T-accounts illustrate how this adjusting
entry, when posted, would affect the accounts.

Prepaid Insurance Insurance Expense
Beg. Bal. 8,000 Beg. Bal. 0
Adj. (e) 4,200 Adj. (e) 4,200
End. Bal. 3,800 End. Bal. 4,200

Original Debit to an Expense Account. If an expense account was originally debited
(Insurance Expense in this example), the adjusting entry requires that an asset account be
debited for the amount applicable to future periods and the expense account be credited.
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The expense account then remains with a debit balance representing the amount applicable
to the current period. For example, if Rosi, Inc., had originally debited Insurance Expense
for $8,000, the adjusting entry would be as follows:

Prepaid INSUraNCe . ..ot e e 3,800
INSUrANCE EXPENSE .o\ v ettt ettt e e e ne e 3,800

To record prepaid insurance ($8,000 — $4,200 = $3,800).

The following T-accounts illustrate the effect that this adjusting entry would have on
the relevant accounts.

Prepaid Insurance Insurance Expense
Beg. Bal. 0 Beg. Bal. 8,000
Adj. 3,800 Adj. 3,800
End. Bal. 3,800 End. Bal. 4,200

Note that regardless of which method is used, the ending balance in each account is
the same. In this example, using either method results in an ending balance in Prepaid
Insurance and Insurance Expense of $3,800 and $4,200, respectively.

Unearned Revenues Amounts re-

Caution

ceived before the actual earning of revenues
are known as unearned revenues. They
arise when customers pay in advance of the

The original debit to an asset account makes more sense conceptually. receipt of goods or services. Because the
Remember, however, that the account balances reported in the financial company has received cash but has not yet
statements are what matter; the working balances that exist in the accounting given the customer the purchased goods or
records on a day-to-day basis are not as important. services, the unearned revenues are in fact

liabilities. That is, the company must pro-

vide something in return for the amounts
received. For example, a building contractor may require a deposit before proceeding on
construction of a house. Upon receipt of the deposit, the contractor has unearned revenue,
a liability. The contractor must construct the house to earn the revenue. If the house is not
built, the contractor will be obligated to repay the deposit.
The method of adjusting for unearned revenues depends on whether the receipts for
undelivered goods or services were recorded originally as credits to (1) a revenue account
or (2) a liability account.

Original Credit to a Revenue Account If a revenue account was originally cred-
ited (Rent Revenue in this example), this account is debited and a liability account is
credited for the revenue applicable to a future period. The revenue account remains
with a credit balance representing the earnings applicable to the current period. As
indicated in the trial balance for Rosi, Inc., rent receipts are recorded originally in the
rent revenue account. Unearned revenue at the end of 2015 is $475, and it is recorded
as follows:

(f) RENL REVENUE. ..ottt e e e e e e et 475
Unearned RENT REVENUE ... .ottt e 475

To record unearned rent revenue.
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The following T-accounts illustrate the effect that this adjusting entry would have on the
related accounts.

Unearned Rent Revenue Rent Revenue
Beg. Bal. 0 Beg. Bal. 2,550
Adj. (f) 475 Adj. (f) 475
End. Bal. 475 End. Bal. 2,075

Original Credit to a Liability Account If a liability account was originally credited
(Unearned Rent Revenue), this account is debited and a revenue account is credited for
the amount applicable to the current period. The liability account remains with a credit
balance that shows the amount applicable to future periods. For example, if Rosi, Inc., had
originally credited Unearned Rent Revenue for $2,550, the adjusting entry (along with
affected T-accounts) would be as follows:

Unearned ReNt REVENUE. ... ..ottt et 2,075
RENT REVENUE . ..ot e e e e e e 2,075
To record rent revenue (52,550 — $475).

Unearned Rent Revenue Rent Revenue
Beg. Bal. 2,550 Beg. Bal. 0
Adj. 2,075 Adj. 2,075
End. Bal. 475 End. Bal. 2,075

Again, note that using either method results in exactly the same balances for the
income statement and balance sheet accounts.

Transactions Involving Estimates

In addition to timing differences associated with cash flows and the recognition of
revenues and/or expenses, a third type of adjusting entry involves estimates. Accountants
must constantly use judgment when applying the accrual accounting model. Questions
such as “for how many periods will a machine generate revenues” or “how many of our
credit customers will not pay” must be answered and reflected in the financial statements.
The answers to these questions involve estimates. Two common types of these adjusting
entries involve depreciation and bad debts.

Asset Depreciation Charges to operations for the use of buildings, furniture, and
equipment must be recorded at the end of the period. In recording asset depreciation,
operations are charged with a portion of the asset’s cost, and the carrying value of the asset
is reduced by that amount. A reduction in an asset for depreciation is usually recorded by a
credit to a contra account, Accumulated Depreciation. A contra account (or offset account)
is set up to record subtractions from a related account.

Adjustments at the end of the year for depreciation for Rosi, Inc., are as follows:

(g9) Depreciation Expense—Buildings.............coooiiiiiiiii i 7,800
Accumulated Depreciation—Buildings. ... 7,800
To record depreciation on buildings at 5% per year.
(h) Depreciation Expense—Furniture and Equipment.......................... 1,900
Accumulated Depreciation—Furniture and Equipment.................. 1,900

To record depreciation on furniture and equipment at 10% per year.

Bad Debts Invariably, when a business allows customers to purchase goods and services
on credit, some of the accounts receivable will not be collected, resulting in a charge to
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income for bad debt expense. Under the accrual concept, an adjustment should be made
for the estimated expense in the current period rather than when specific accounts actually
become uncollectible in later periods. This practice produces a better matching of revenues
and expenses and therefore a better income measurement. Using this procedure, operations
are charged with the estimated expense, and receivables are reduced by means of a contra
account, Allowance for Bad Debts. To illustrate, the adjustment for Rosi, Inc., at the end of
the year, assuming the allowance account is to be increased by $1,100, would be as follows:

(i) Bad Debt EXPENSE. ..ttt e 1,100
Allowance forBad Debts .......c.oiiriiii i 1,100

To adjust for estimated bad debt expense.

We should emphasize two characteristics of adjusting entries. First, adjusting entries
made at the end of an accounting period do not involve cash. Cash has either changed
hands prior to the end of the period (as is the case with prepaid expenses or unearned rev-
enues), or cash will change hands in a future period (as is the case with many unrecorded
receivables and unrecorded liabilities). It is precisely because cash is not changing hands
on the last day of the accounting period that most adjusting entries must be made.

Second, each adjusting entry involves a balance sheet account and an income statement
account. In each case requiring adjustment, we are either generating an asset, using up an
asset, recording an incurred but unrecorded expense, or recording revenue that has yet to
be earned. Knowing that each adjusting entry has at least one balance sheet and one income
statement account makes the adjustment process a little easier. Once you have determined
that an adjusting entry involves a certain balance sheet account, you can then focus on
identifying the corresponding income statement account that requires adjustment.

Preparing Financial Statements

Once all accounts have been brought up to date through the adjustment process, financial
statements are prepared. Financial statements can be prepared directly from the data in
the adjusted ledger accounts. The data must only be organized into appropriate sections
and categories so as to present them as simply and clearly as possible. The following
process describes how the financial statements are prepared from the information taken
from the trial balance:

1. Identify all revenues and expenses—these account balances are used to prepare the
income statement.

Compute net income—subtract expenses from revenues.

3. Compute the ending retained earnings balance—Retained Earnings from the previous
period is the starting point. Net income (computed in step 2) is added to the beginning
retained earnings balance and dividends for the period are subtracted.

4. Prepare a balance sheet using the balance sheet accounts from the trial balance and the
modified retained earnings balance computed from step 3.

Once the financial statements are prepared, explanatory notes are written. These notes
clarify the methods and assumptions used in preparing the statements. In addition, the
auditor must review the financial statements to make sure they are accurate, reasonable,
and in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Finally, the financial
statements are distributed to external users who analyze them in order to learn more
about the financial condition of the company.

How long does it take for large corporations to complete the accounting process to
the point at which financial statements are available? For December 31 year-end firms,
financial statement preparation is usually completed in February. The date of Disney’s
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audit opinion (a rough measure of when financial statement preparation is essentially
complete) for the fiscal year ended October 1,2011, is November 23,2011. For firms with
publicly traded shares, the SEC requires the annual financial statements to be released
within 60 days of fiscal year-end. The data used to prepare financial statements can be
taken directly from the adjusted account balances in the ledger, or a spreadsheet may
be used. Financial statements are prepared by determining which accounts go on which
financial statement, appropriately listing those accounts, and summing to obtain totals.

Using a Spreadsheet

An optional step in the accounting process is to use a spreadsheet (also called a work sheet) to
facilitate the preparation of adjusting entries and financial statements. The availability of com-
puter spreadsheets, such as Microsoft® Excel, makes the preparation of a spreadsheet quite
easy. Remember, however, that preparing a spreadsheet is not a required step. As indicated,
financial statements can be prepared directly from data in adjusted ledger account balances.

When a spreadsheet is constructed, trial balance data are listed in the first pair of
columns. The adjusting entries are listed in the second pair of columns. Sometimes a third
pair of columns is included to show the trial balance after adjustment. Account balances,
as adjusted, are carried forward to the appropriate financial statement columns. A spread-
sheet for a merchandising enterprise includes a pair of columns for the income statement
accounts and a pair for the balance sheet accounts. There are no columns for the statement
of cash flows because this statement requires additional analysis of changes in account bal-
ances for the period. A spreadsheet for Rosi, Inc., is shown on page 2-20. All adjustments
illustrated previously are included.

Closing the Nominal Accounts

Once adjusting entries have been formally recorded in the general journal and posted to
the ledger accounts, the books are ready to be closed in preparation for a new accounting
period. During this closing process, the nominal (temporary) account balances are trans-
ferred to a real (permanent) account, leaving the nominal accounts with a zero balance.
Nominal accounts include all income statement accounts plus the dividends account for a
corporation. The real account that receives the closing amounts from the nominal accounts
is Retained Earnings. Because it is a real account, this and all other balance sheet accounts
remain open and carry their balances forward to the new period.

The mechanics of closing the nominal

FY!

No account on the trial balance shows up on both the income statement

and the balance sheet.

accounts are straightforward. All revenue
accounts with credit balances are closed by
being debited; all expense accounts with
debit balances are closed by being credited.
This process reduces these temporary
accounts to a zero balance. The difference

between the closing debit amounts for

Caution

revenues and the credit amounts for
expenses is net income (or net loss) and is an
increase (or decrease) to Retained Earnings.
Dividends are also closed at the end of each

Students often make the mistake of using the beginning retained earnings period. The closing of Dividends serves to
balance on the end-of-year balance sheet. As we shall see in the next reduce Retained Earnings. Thus, the closing
section, the ending retained earnings balance is arrived at when the books entries for revenues, expenses, and dividends

are closed for the year.

can be made directly to Retained Earnings,
as shown at the top of page 2-21.

Copyright 2013 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s).
Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.



P1 | Foundations of Financial Accounting

Rosi, Inc.
Trial Balance
December 31, 2015
Trial Balance Adjustments Income Statement Balance Sheet
Debit Credit Debit Credit Debit Credit Debit Credit

Cash 83,110 83,110

Accounts Receivable 106,500 106,500
Allowance for Bad Debts 1,610 (i) 1,100 2,710
Inventory 45,000 45,000

Prepaid Insurance 8,000 (e) 4,200 3,800

Interest Receivable 0 (a) 250 250

Land 114,000 114,000

Buildings 156,000 156,000
Accumulated Depreciation—

Buildings 39,000 (9) 7,800 46,800
Furniture and Equipment 19,000 19,000
Accumulated Depreciation—

Furniture and Equipment 3,800 (h) 1,900 5,700
Accounts Payable 37,910 37,910
Unearned Rent Revenue 0 (f) 475 475
Salaries and Wages Payable 0 (b) 2,150 2,150
Interest Payable 0 (c) 5,000 5,000
Income Taxes Payable 0 (d) 8,000 8,000
Dividends Payable 3,400 3,400
Bonds Payable 140,000 140,000
Common Stock, $0.10 par 150,000 150,000
Retained Earnings 103,900 103,900
Dividends 13,600 13,600
Sales 479,500 479,500
Cost of Goods Sold 159,310 159,310
Salaries and Wages Expense 172,450 (b) 2,150 174,600
Heat, Light, and Power

Expense 32,480 32,480
Payroll Tax Expense 18,300 18,300
Advertising Expense 18,600 18,600
Bad Debt Expense 0 (i) 1,100 1,100
Depreciation Expense—

Buildings 0 (9) 7,800 7,800
Depreciation Expense—

Furniture and Equipment 0 (h) 1,900 1,900
Insurance Expense (e) 4,200 4,200
Interest Revenue 1,100 (a) 250 1,350
Rent Revenue 2,550 | () 475 2,075
Interest Expense 16,420 (c) 5,000 21,420
Income Tax Expense 0 (d) 8,000 8,000

Totals 962,770 | 962,770 30,875 30,875 | 447,710 | 482,925 | 541,260 | 506,045
Net Income 35,215 35,215

482,925 | 482,925 | 541,260 | 541,260
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REVENUES . XX
Retained Earnings . . ... vttt e XX
To close revenues to Retained Earnings.
Retained Earnings . ..o vttt ettt e e e e XX
BN S, ettt e XX
To close expenses to Retained Earnings.
Retained Earnings . . ..o .out ettt ettt e et e XX
DIVIENAS . . . ettt e XX
To close Dividends to Retained Earnings.

The closing entries for Rosi, Inc., follow.

Closing Entries

2015
DeC. 3T  SAleS .ttt 479,500
INtEreSt REVENUE ...ttt e i eiaes 1,350
RentRevenue ....... ..ot 2,075
Retained Earnings. . ......ovvuvininininii i 482,925
To close revenue accounts to Retained Earnings.
31  Retained Earnings ..........ovuiininniiii i 447,710
Costof Goods Sold........ooiuiiii 159,310
Salaries and Wages Expense...........ooiiiiiiiiiineann.. 174,600
Heat, Light, and Power Expense .............ccooivuniniinann. 32,480
Payroll Tax EXPense .......c.ovuinviiiiii i iiiieiennnns 18,300
Advertising EXPense . ....ouvni it 18,600
Bad Debt EXpense. . ...vuvuiii i 1,100
Depreciation Expense—Buildings ...t 7,800
Depreciation Expense—Furniture and Equipment ........... 1,900
INSUraNCe EXPENSE ..ttt et 4,200
Interest EXpense .. ..o 21,420
Income Tax EXpense. .....ovinie it 8,000
To close expense accounts to Retained Earnings.
31 Retained Earnings ........ouuireiiiii it 13,600

DIVIdENAS. . oo 13,600
To close Dividends to Retained Earnings.

The following T-accounts (revenues and expenses have each been combined into
one account for illustrative purposes) illustrate the effect the closing process has on the
nominal accounts and Retained Earnings.

Expenses (All)

Bal. 447,710
Closing 447,710 —
End. Bal. 0
Retained Earnings
Dividends
Beg. Bal. 103,900
Bal. 13,600 > Closing 447,710
Closing 13,600 — > Closing 13,600
>| Closing 482,925
End. Bal. 0
End. Bal. 125,515
Revenues (All)
Bal. 482,925
Closing 482,925
End. Bal. 0
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WHY The FASB has indicated that
accrual accounting generally provides
a better basis for financial reports,
especially in reporting earnings, than
does information showing only cash
receipts and dishursements.

HOW Accrual accounting
recognizes revenues when they are
earned, not necessarily when cash
is received. Similarly, expenses are
recognized and recorded under
accrual accounting when they are
incurred, not necessarily when cash
is paid. Some organizations (and
most individuals) use cash-basis ac-
counting, which recognizes revenues
when cash is received and expenses
when cash is paid. However, both
the FASB and SEC require a state-
ment of cash flows to be presented
along with an accrual-based income
statement and a balance sheet as
the primary financial statements of
an enterprise.
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Preparing a Post-Closing Trial Balance

After the closing entries are posted, a post-closing trial balance can be prepared to verify
the equality of the debits and credits for all real accounts. Recall that real accounts are only
those accounts shown on the balance sheet. The post-closing trial balance represents the
end of the accounting cycle. The post-closing trial balance for Rosi, Inc., follows:

Rosi, Inc.
Post-Closing Trial Balance
December 31,2015
Debit Credit

LT $ 83,110
Accounts Receivable. ... .. ... 106,500
Allowance forBad Debts. ..........oviiiiiiiiii i $ 2710
INVENEOTY o e 45,000
Prepaid INSUraNCe . ..ot e 3,800
Interest Receivable ... .. ..o i 250
Land ..o e 114,000
BUIIINGS . et e 156,000
Accumulated Depreciation—Buildings.....................oooL L 46,800
Furniture and EQUIipmMeNt. ... ...ouiuii e 19,000
Accumulated Depreciation—Furniture and Equipment............... 5,700
Accounts Payable. ... ...t 37,910
Unearned Rent Revenue. .. ... ..ottt 475
Salaries and Wages Payable........... ..o 2,150
Interest Payable ... ... i 5,000
Income Taxes Payable ..... ... 8,000
Dividends Payable. ........ ...t 3,400
Bonds Payable. ... ..o e 140,000
Common Stock, $0.T0 Par «.ovn ittt 150,000
Retained Earnings .. ....o.enei it 125,515

TOtalS . et e $527,660 $527,660

Accrual versus Cash-Basis Accounting

0 Distinguish between accrual and cash-basis accounting.

The procedures described in the previous sections are those required in a double-entry
system based on accrual accounting. Accrual accounting recognizes revenues as they are
earned, not necessarily when cash is received. Expenses are recognized and recorded when
they are incurred, not necessarily when cash is paid. Accrual accounting provides for a
better matching of revenues and expenses during an accounting period and generally
results in financial statements that more accurately reflect a company’s financial position
and results of operations.?

2 In Concepts Statement No. 6, the FASB discusses the concept of accrual accounting and relates it to the objectives of financial reporting.

Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 6, “Elements of Financial Statements” (Stamford, CT: Financial Accounting Standards Board,
December 1985).
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Some accounting systems are based on cash receipts and cash disbursements instead of
accrual accounting. Cash-basis accounting procedures frequently are found in organiza-
tions not requiring a complete set of double-entry records. Such organizations might include
small, unincorporated businesses and some nonprofit organizations. Professionals engaged
in service businesses, such as CPAs, dentists, and engineers, also have traditionally used cash
accounting systems. Even many of these organizations, however, periodically use professional
accountants to prepare financial statements and other required reports on an accrual basis.

Discussion continues as to the appropriateness of using cash accounting systems,
especially as a basis for determining tax liabilities. The FASB, in Concepts Statement
No. 1, indicates that accrual accounting provides a better basis for financial reports than
does information showing only cash receipts and disbursements.

The AICPA’s position, however, is that the cash basis is appropriate for some small
companies and especially for companies in the service industry. Accordingly, accountants
will continue to be asked on occasion to convert cash-based records to generally accepted
accrual-based financial statements. The procedures involved are illustrated in the Web
Material associated with this chapter (see www.cengagebrain.com).

The AICPA calls cash-basis accounting an example of an “other comprehensive
basis of accounting,” or OCBOA. The most common alternatives to the accrual basis of
accounting are the cash basis and the income tax basis.?

In July 2009, the TASB released a document detailing yet another accounting
alternative to full GAAP. This alternative is called IFRS for SMEs, where “SME” stands
for “small and medium-sized entities.” The IASB intends this set of condensed standards
to be appropriate for private companies around the world that have no need for all of the
full-blown provisions of IFRS or U.S. GAAP. Because these standards fill just 230 pages,
compared to 2,500 pages for IFRS and 25,000 pages for U.S. GAAP, implementation of
IFRS for SMEs is certainly an attractive low-cost alternative for a small or medium-sized
private company. The IASB has made this set of standards available for free to anyone who
wants to use them. Go ahead and take a look at http://www.ifrs.org/Home.htm.

FASB CODIFICATION

The Issue: Because you are excited about your accounting class, you have spent a
couple of days preparing a personal balance sheet. Of course, you have carefully
used the principles of accrual accounting. Your brother, an extremely dense and
unpleasant person, is now making fun of you. He claims that the FASB itself has
stated that personal financial statements are to be prepared using the cash basis.
You would love to put your brother in his place and show him that you are right
and he is wrong ... again.

The Question: \What is the proper basis for preparing a personal balance sheet?

Searching the Codification: The best place to start is with the FASB ASC topic group
labeled “Presentation.” In that menu you will find Topic 274, Personal Financial
Statements. Look to see what basis should be used to recognize items that are
reported in a personal balance sheet.

The Answer: The correct treatment is described on page 2-25.

* See Thomas A. Ratcliffe, “OCBOA: Financial Statements,” Journal of Accountancy, October 2003, Vol. 196, Issue No. 4, p. 71. This article
describes the AICPA's standards for auditing financial statements prepared under another comprehensive basis of accounting. These
auditing standards are contained in the AICPA’s Statement on Auditing Standards (SAS) No. 62, Special Reports.
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WHY Computers play an increasing
role in today’s business environment
as well as society in general.

HOW inthe past, many companies
used manual systems to record, clas-
sify, summarize, and report account-
ing data. Today, most companies use
computers and electronic technology
as anintegral part of their accounting
systems. In the future, technological
advances will continue to signifi-
cantly impact the accounting process
of recording and reporting data for
decision-making purposes.
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Computers and the Accounting Process

9 Discuss the importance and expanding role of computers to the accounting process.

As an organization grows in size and complexity, its recording and summarizing processes
become more involved, and it seeks to improve efficiency and reduce costs. Some enterprises
could find that a system involving primarily manual operations is adequate in meeting
their needs. Most find that information-processing needs can be handled effectively only
through the use of computers.

The computer revolution has rapidly changed society and the way business is conducted
and, therefore, the way accounting functions are performed. The 1990s are referred to
as the Decade of Networking, indicating that the PCs on people’s desks in the 1980s
were increasingly being interconnected. The new millennium has seen increased use of the
Internet, with business-to-business (B2B) and business-to-consumer (B2C) applications
proliferating. The opportunities for information exchange have expanded exponentially.
However, despite their tremendous capabilities, computers cannot replace skilled
accountants. A computer, for example, does not know the difference between inventory and
supplies until someone (the accountant) specifies the accounts involved in the transaction.
Instead of reducing the responsibilities of accountants, the existence of computers places
increased demands on them in directing the operations of the computer systems to ensure
the use of appropriate procedures. For example, a poorly designed computer system may
leave no document trail with which to verify accounting records. Although all arithmetical
operations can be assumed to be done accurately by computers, the validity of the output
data depends on the adequacy of the instructions given the computer. Unlike a human
accountant, a computer cannot think for itself but must be given explicit instructions for
performing each operation. Computers have certain advantages in that the accountant
can be sure every direction will be carried out precisely. On the other hand, computers
place a great responsibility on the information systems designer to anticipate any unusual
situations that will require special consideration or judgment by an accountant.

A recent development in the use of computers in financial reporting is the spread of
XBRL. XBRL, which stands for eXtensible Business Reporting Language, is a method
of embedding computer-readable tags in financial report documents. With these XBRL
tabs, a company’s financial statements can be downloaded directly into a spreadsheet
where they can be compared to the financial statements of other companies that have also
been downloaded. The use of XBRL greatly simplifies the process of analyzing financial
statement data. The SEC initially required the use of XBRL for all financial statements
filed by large public companies, and in June 2011 the requirement was extended to all
companies publicly traded on U.S. stock exchanges. In the FASB’s Accounting Standards
Codification, XBRL elements are listed in many of the topic areas.

The question to be asked is this: If computers now take care of all of the routine
accounting functions, why does an accounting student need to know anything about debits,
credits, journals, posting, T-accounts, and trial balances? Good question. First, even though
computers now do most of the routine work, the essence of double-entry accounting is
unchanged from the days of quill pens and handwritten ledgers. Thus, the understanding of
the process explained in this chapter is still relevant to a computer-based accounting system.
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Second, with or without computers, the use of debits, credits, and T-accounts still provides
an efficient and widespread shorthand method of analyzing transactions. At a minimum,
all businesspeople should be familiar enough with the language of accounting to under-
stand, for example, why a credit balance in the cash account or a debit balance in Retained
Earnings is something unusual enough to merit investigation. Finally, an understanding of
the accounting cycle—analyzing, recording, summarizing, and preparing—gives one insight
into how information flows within an organization. Great advantages accrue to those who
understand information flow.

0SOLUTIONS TO OPENING SCENARIO QUESTIONS

1. If a customer could not tell if a deposit was made to her 2. The burden of proof for tax payments would shift to the

account, she would be unable to tell if the checks she had

written would clear her account. If a bank cannot confirm for

a customer that a deposit had been made, then the cus-

tomer would search for a bank that could provide that basic

service.

Stop & TI

1. (Page 2-5) The correct answer is C. Accountants and
analysts interpret the accounting results for an accounting
period.

SOLUTIONS

taxpayers. They would have to provide evidence that tax
payments had been made. Currently, employers typically
provide that evidence. The government would then need to
have a system to match payments received from taxpayers
with specific taxpayers. Fortunately for us, this system is
already in place.

(Page 2-9) The correct answer is D. If a computer is
programmed properly, it will not post incorrect amounts, it will
not post to incorrect accounts, and it will not mix its debits and
credits.

SOLUTION TO USING THE FASB'S CODIFICATION

In Topic 274, you should find Section 274-10-25. There, in a
very concise statement (in paragraph 1) that should silence
your brother forever (at least on this issue), the FASB states:

Review Cha pter 2 Learning Objectives

Identify and explain the basic steps in the accounting pro-
cess (accounting cycle).

The accounting process, often referred to as the
accounting cycle, generally includes the following steps
in a well-defined sequence: analyze business docu-
ments, journalize transactions, post to ledger accounts,
prepare a trial balance, prepare adjusting entries, pre-
pare financial statements (using a spreadsheet or work-
ing from the adjusted individual accounts), close the

"Assets and liabilities shall be recognized on the accrual basis of
accounting”

So, once again your brother is wrong.

nominal accounts, and prepare a post-closing trial bal-
ance. This process of recording, classifying, summariz-
ing, and reporting of accounting data is based on an
old and universally accepted system called double-entry
accounting.

0 Analyze transactions and make and post journal entries.

Transactions are events that transfer or exchange goods
or services between or among two or more entities.
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Business documents, such as invoices, provide evidence
that transactions have occurred as well as the data
required to record the transaction in the accounting
records. The data are recorded with journal entries using
a system of double-entry accounting. The journal entries
are subsequently posted to ledger accounts.

e Make adjusting entries, produce financial statements, and
close nominal accounts.

Adjusting entries are made at the end of an account-
ing period prior to preparing the financial statements
for that period. Adjusting entries are often required to
update accounts so that the data are current and accu-
rate. Generally, the required adjustments are the result
of analysis rather than based on new transactions. Once
adjusting entries are journalized and posted, the balance
sheet, income statement, and statement of cash flows
can be prepared and reported.

At the end of each accounting cycle, the balances
in the nominal or temporary accounts must be trans-
ferred through the closing process to real or permanent
accounts. The nominal accounts (all income statement
accounts plus dividends) are left with a zero balance
and are ready to receive transaction data for the new
accounting period. The real (balance sheet) accounts
remain open and carry their balances forward to the
new period.
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Distinguish between accrual and cash-basis accounting.

Accrual accounting recognizes revenues when they are
earned, not necessarily when cash is received. Similarly,
expenses are recognized and recorded under accrual
accounting when they are incurred, not necessarily when
cash is paid. Some organizations (and most individuals) use
cash-basis accounting, which recognizes revenues when
cash is received and expenses when cash is paid. The FASB
has indicated that accrual accounting generally provides
a better basis for financial reports, especially in reporting
earnings, than does information showing only cash receipts
and disbursements. However, both the FASB and SEC
require a statement of cash flows to be presented along
with an accrual-based income statement and a balance
sheet as the primary financial statements of an enterprise.

Discuss the importance and expanding role of computers
to the accounting process.

Computers play an increasing role in today’s business
environment as well as society in general. In the past,
many companies used manual systems to record, clas-
sify, summarize, and report accounting data. Today, most
companies use computers and electronic technology as
an integral part of their accounting systems. In the future,
technological advances will continue to significantly
impact the accounting process of recording and report-
ing data for decision-making purposes.

KEY TERMS
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Tutorial Activities

Tutorial Activities with author-written, content-specific feedback,
available on CengageNOW for Stice & Stice.
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QUESTIONS

1. What types of reports are generated from the accounting 11. Describe the nature and purpose of a work sheet.
system? 12. What effect, if any, does the use of a work sheet have on the

2. What are the main similarities and differences between a sequence of the reporting phase of the accounting process?
manual and an automated accounting system? 13. From the following list of accounts, determine which ones

3. Distinguish between the recording and reporting phases of should be closed and whether each would normally be
the accounting process. closed by a debit or by a credit entry.

4. List and describe the steps in the accounting process. Why Cash Land
are these steps necessary? Are any steps optional? Rent Expense Interest Revenue

5. Under double-entry accounting, what are the debit/credit Depreciation Expense Advertising Expense
relationships of accounts?

5 b o | 5 Sales Notes Payable
6. Distinguish between (a) real and nominal accounts ) ) .
ou! @ L , (0) Retained Earnings Dividends
general journal and special journals, and (c) general ledger _
and subsidiary ledgers. Capital Stock Accounts Payable

7. Explain the nature and the purpose of (a) adjusting entries Accounts Receivable
and (b) closing entries. 14. Distinguish between accrual and cash-basis accounting.

8. As Beechnut Mining Company’s independent certified public 15. Is greater accuracy achieved in financial statements
accountant, you find that the company accountant posts prepared from double-entry accrual data as compared with
adjusting and closing entries directly to the ledger without cash data? Explain.
formal entries iQ the general journal. How would you evaluate 16 \What are the major advantages of computers as compared
this procedure in your report to management? with manual processing of accounting data?

9. Give three common examples of contra accounts. Explain 17. One of your clients overheard a computer manufacturer
why contra accounts are used. sales representative saying that the computer will make

10. Payment of insurance in advance may be recorded in either the accountant obsolete. How would you respond to this
(a) an expense account or (b) an asset account. Which comment?

method would you recommend? What periodic entries are
required under each method?

PRACTICE EXCERCISES

Practice 2-1 Journalizing
0 Make the journal entry to record each of the following transactions:
(@) The company purchased inventory for $5,000. The purchase was made on account.
(b) The company paid cash of $3,500 on its account with one of its suppliers from whom it regularly
purchases inventory. The inventory purchase itself was recorded previously.

Practice 2-2 Journalizing

0 Make the journal entry (or entries) necessary to record the following transaction: Sold merchandise costing
$8,000 for $14,000. Of the $14,000, $4,000 was received in cash and the remainder was on account. Assume
a perpetual inventory system, meaning that the inventory reduction is recorded at the time of the sale.

Practice 2-3 Journalizing

0 Make the journal entry (or entries) necessary to record the following transaction: Purchased equipment
with a fair market value of $100,000. Paid $10,000 cash as a down payment and signed two notes for the
remaining cost—a 6% note for $20,000 that must be repaid (with interest) in six months and an 8% note
for $70,000 that must be repaid (with interest) in two years.

Practice 2-4 Journalizing
0 Make the journal entry (or entries) necessary to record the following transaction: Sold land that had an original
cost of $50,000. Received $40,000 cash. Also received a piece of equipment with a fair value of $75,000.
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Practice 2-5 Journalizing

0 Make the journal entry (or entries) necessary to record the following transaction: Declared and paid a
$12,000 cash dividend to shareholders.

Practice 2-6 Journalizing

o Make the journal entry (or entries) necessary to record the following transaction: Gave land to an employee.

The land originally cost $52,000, and it had that same value on the date it was given to the employee. This
land was given in exchange for services rendered by the employee.

Practice 2-7 Posting
0 The beginning balance in the cash account was $10,000. During the month, the following four journal
entries (involving cash) were recorded:
A CaSN 2,775
Sl 2,775
b. AccountsPayable........... ... .. .. 1,500
CaSh. o 1,500
C. Utilities EXPENSe ..o 6,200
CaSh. o 6,200
Ao Gash. 3,450
QAN 1,500
LaNd o 1,950

Create a Cash T-account and post the entries to this account. Compute an ending balance.

Practice 2-8 Posting
0 The beginning balance in the accounts payable account was $8,000. During the month, the following four
journal entries (involving accounts payable) were recorded:
A INVENTONY L 2,700
Accounts Payable ........ ... 2,700
b. AccountsPayable.......... ... ... ... 6,500
CaSN. 6,500
C. AccountsPayable. ... ... ... ... 200
INVENTONY . Lo 200
o INVENEOIY L 3,000
CaSh. o 450
Accounts Payable ... .. ... 2,550

Create an Accounts Payable T-account and post the entries to this account. Compute an ending balance.

Practice 2-9 Trial Balance

9 Use the following account balance information to construct a trial balance:
Cost of Goods Sold $9,000 Sales $10,000
Accounts Payable 1,100 Dividends 700
Paid-In Capital 2,000 Retained Earnings (beginning) 1,000
Cash 400 Inventory 4,000

Practice 2-10 Trial Balance

o Use the following account balance information to construct a trial balance:
Salary Expense $24,000 Service Revenue $32,000
Unearned Service Revenue 1,600 Rent Expense 5,300
Paid-In Capital 3,000 Retained Earnings (beginning) 1,200
Cash 3,500 Prepaid Rent Expense 5,000
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Income Statement
Prepare two income statements, one using the information in Practice 2-9 and the other using the
information in Practice 2-10.

Balance Sheet
Prepare two balance sheets, one using the information in Practice 2-9 and the other using the information
in Practice 2-10.

Adjusting Entries
Make the adjusting journal entry necessary at the end of the period in the following situation: Equipment
depreciation for the year was computed to be $5,500.

Adjusting Entries

Make the adjusting journal entry necessary at the end of the period in the following situation: Bad debts
created by selling on credit during the year are estimated to be $1,200. So far, none of these accounts have
been specifically identified and written off as uncollectible.

Adjusting Entries

Make the adjusting journal entry necessary at the end of the period in the following situation: On August
1, the company borrowed $10,000 under a one-year loan agreement. The annual interest rate is 12%. As of
the end of the year, no entry has yet been made to record the accrued interest on the loan.

Adjusting Entries

Make the adjusting journal entry necessary at the end of the period in the following situation: On August 1,
the company paid $3,600 in advance for 12 months of rent, with the rental period beginning on August 1.
This $3,600 was recorded as Prepaid Rent. As of the end of the year, no entry has yet been made to adjust
the amount initially recorded.

Adjusting Entries

Make the adjusting journal entry necessary at the end of the period in the following situation: On February 1,
the company received $4,800 in advance for 12 months of service to be provided, with the service period
beginning on February 1. This $4,800 was recorded as Unearned Service Revenue. The service is provided
evenly throughout the year. As of the end of the year, no entry has yet been made to adjust the amount
initially recorded.

Closing Entries
Make the closing entry (or entries) necessary to close the following accounts:

Cost of Goods Sold $7,000 Sales $11,000
Accounts Payable 900 Dividends 900
Paid-In Capital 1,500 Retained Earnings (beginning) 1,200
Cash 3,200 Inventory 3,500

Closing Entries
Make the closing entry (or entries) necessary to close the following accounts:

Salary Expense $18,000 Service Revenue $20,000
Unearned Service Revenue 4,700 Rent Expense 6,400
Paid-In Capital 2,000 Retained Earnings (beginning) 1,500
Cash 800 Prepaid Rent Expense 3,000
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EXERCISES

Recording Transactions in T-Accounts
Georgia Supply Corporation, a merchandising firm, prepared the following trial balance as of October 1:

Debit Credit

Cash $150,000
Accounts Receivable . ... 21,540
INVENTOTY e e 32,680
AN 15,400
BUIIING. .o 14,000
Accounts Payable ............ ... . $ 9,190
Mortgage Payable. ... ... ... 23,700
ComMON StOCK ... oo 140,000
Retained Earnings. ... 60,730

TOtalS $233,620 $233,620

Georgia Supply engaged in the following transactions during October 2015. The company records
inventory using the perpetual system.

Oct. 1 Sold merchandise on account to Tracker Corporation for $12,000; terms 2/10, n/30, FOB
shipping point. Tracker paid $350 freight on the goods. The merchandise cost $6,850.
5 Purchased inventory costing $10,250 on account; terms n/30.
7 Received payment from Tracker for goods shipped October 1.
15 The payroll paid for the first half of October was $22,000. (Ignore payroll taxes.)
18 Purchased a machine for $8,600 cash.
22 Declared a dividend of $0.45 per share on 45,000 shares of common stock outstanding.
27 Purchased building and land for $125,000 in cash and a $225,000 mortgage payable, due
in 30 years. The land was appraised at $150,000 and the building at $300,000.

1. Prepare T-accounts for all items in the October 1 trial balance and enter the initial balances.
2. Record the October transactions directly to the T-accounts.
3. Prepare a new trial balance as of the end of October.

Adjusting Entries
In analyzing the accounts of Sydney Corporation, the adjusting data listed below are determined on
December 31, the end of an annual fiscal period.

(@) The prepaid insurance account shows a debit of $6,000, representing the cost of a two-year
earthquake insurance policy dated July 1.

(b) On August 1, Rent Revenue was credited for $9,450, representing revenue from subrental for a
seven-month period beginning on that date.

(0) Purchase of advertising materials for $3,550 during the year was recorded in the advertising expense
account. On December 31, advertising materials costing $500 are on hand.

(d) On November 1, $4,200 was paid for rent for a six-month period beginning on that date. The rent
expense account was debited.

(e) Miscellaneous Office Expense was debited for office supplies of $950 purchased during the year. On
December 31, office supplies of $125 are on hand.

(f) Interest of $534 has accrued on notes payable.

1. Give the adjusting entry for each item.
2. What sources would provide the information for each adjustment?
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Exercise 2-22 Adjusting and Correcting Entries

o Upon inspecting the books and records for Wernli Company for the year ended December 31, 2015, you
find the following data:

(@) A receivable of $640 from Hatch Realty is determined to be uncollectible. The company maintains an
allowance for bad debts for such losses.

(b) A creditor, E. F. Bowcutt Co,, has just been awarded damages of $3,500 as a result of breach of
contract by Wernli Company during the current year. Nothing appears on the books in connection
with this matter.

(c) A fire destroyed part of a branch office. Furniture and fixtures that cost $12,300 and had a book value
of $8,200 at the time of the fire were completely destroyed. The insurance company has agreed to
pay $7,000 under the provisions of the fire insurance policy.

(d) Advances of $950 to salespersons have been previously recorded as sales salaries expense.

(e) Machinery at the end of the year shows a balance of $19,960. It is discovered that additions to this
account during the year totaled $4,460, but of this amount, $760 should have been recorded as
repairs. Depreciation is to be recorded at 10% on machinery owned throughout the year but at one-
half this rate on machinery purchased or sold during the year.

Record the entries required to adjust and correct the accounts. (lgnore income tax consequences.)

Exercise 2-23 Reconstructing Adjusting Entries
o For each situation, reconstruct the adjusting entry that was made to arrive at the ending balance.
Assume statements and adjusting entries are prepared only once each year.
Er4:EVEVISOLVABLE _
1. Prepaid Insurance:
Balance beginning of year $4,300
Balance end of year 3,600
During the year, an additional business insurance policy was purchased.
A one-year premium of $1,200 was paid and charged to Prepaid Insurance.
2. Accumulated Depreciation:
Balance beginning of year $103,400
Balance end of year 106,100
During the year, a depreciable asset that cost $10,700 and had a carrying value of $5,300 was sold
for $6,000. The disposal of the asset was recorded correctly.
3. Unearned Rent:
Balance beginning of year $ 8,000
Balance end of year 12,000
Warehouse quarterly rent received in advance is $14,000. During the year, equipment was rented
to another company at an annual rent of $6,000. The quarterly rent payments were credited to Rent
Revenue; the annual equipment rental was credited to Unearned Rent.
4. Salaries Payable:
Balance beginning of year $36,540
Balance end of year 29,480
Salaries are paid biweekly. All salary payments during the year were debited to Salaries Expense.
Exercise 2-24 Adjusting and Closing Entries and Post-Closing Trial Balance
o Accounts of Pioneer Heating Corporation at the end of the first year of operations showed the following

balances. In addition, prepaid operating expenses are $4,000, and accrued sales commissions payable are
$5,900. Investment revenue receivable is $1,000. Depreciation for the year on buildings is $4,500 and on
machinery, $5,000. Federal and state income taxes for the year are estimated at $18,100.
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Debit Credit
At L $ 39,000
INVENTOTY e 50,000
VS TMENTS. et 50,000
LaNd 70,000
BUIIINGS. . o 180,000
MaChinery o 100,000
Accounts Payable ................. $ 65000
ComMMON STOCK .o 320,000
Additional Paid-In Capital ................... 40,000
Sl 590,000
Costof Goods Sold. ... 230,000
Sales COMMISSIONS . .. vt e e e 200,000
General Operating EXpenses ... 101,000
INVesStMeENt REVENUE . . ... 5,000
TOtalS . $1,020,000  $1,020,000
1. Prepare the necessary entries to adjust and close the books.
2. Prepare a post-closing trial balance.
Exercise 2-25 Adjusting and Closing Entries and Post-Closing Trial Balance
o Below is the trial balance for Boudreaux Company as of December 31.
Debit Credit
CaSN S 72,000
Accounts Receivable . ... o 365,000
INVENTOTY e e e 52,000
Prepaid EXDENSEs ... 36,000
LaNd 70,000
Plantand Equipment. ... ... . 1,254,000
OtNer ASSEtS ..o 1,275,000
Accounts Payable ... ... $ 154,000
Wages, Interest, and Taxes Payable ......................... il 218,000
Unearned RevenuUe. . ... 42,000
Long-Term Debt .. ..o 1,190,000
Other Liabilities .. ..o 297,000
ComMMON STOCK .o 195,000
Retained Earnings. ... ... 915,000
DIVIdENAS . 211,000
Sl 2,762,000
INterest REVENUE . . .. 29,000
Cost of GOOdSs SOId. . ..o 1,565,000
Selling, General, and Administrative Expenses .......................... 615,000
INterest EXPeNSe ..o 82,000
INCoMe Tax EXPENSE .. o 205,000
TOtalS . $5,802,000  $5,802,000
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Consider the following additional information:

(@) Boudreaux uses a perpetual inventory system.

(b) The prepaid expenses were paid on September 1 and relate to a three-year insurance policy that
went into effect on September 1.

(c) The unearned revenue relates to rental of an unused portion of the corporate offices. The $42,000
was received on April 1 and represents payment in advance for one year’s rental.

(d) Plant and Equipment includes $15,000 for routine equipment repairs that were erroneously recorded
as equipment purchases. The repairs were made on December 30.

(e) Other Assets includes $7,000 for miscellaneous office supplies, which were purchased in mid-
October. An end-of-year count reveals that only $4,200 of the office supplies remain.

(f) Selling, General, and Administrative Expenses incorrectly includes $13,000 for office furniture
purchases (Other Assets). The purchases were made on December 30.

(@) Inventory erroneously includes $7,500 of inventory that Boudreaux had purchased on account but
that was returned to the supplier on December 28 because of unsatisfactory quality.

1. Record the entries necessary to adjust the books.

2. Record the entries necessary to close the books. Assume the adjustments in (1) do not affect Income
Tax Expense.

3. Prepare a post-closing trial balance.

Exercise 2-26 Analysis of Journal Entries
0 For each of the following journal entries, write a description of the underlying event.
SOLVABLE T QA 300
Accounts Receivable. ... ... ... . . 300
2. AccountsPayable. ... ... .. 400
INVENTOTY e 400
T 7= 1 o VS 5,000
Loan Payable. ... .. ... .o 5,000
S G 1 o R 200
Accounts Receivable ... ... .. 700
SaleS 900
Costof Goods Sold .. ... o 550
INVENTOTY e 550
5. Prepaid INSUIANCe ... oo 200
Cash 200
6. DIVIdeNnds ... 250
Dividends Payable ... ... . 250
7. Retained Earnings ... ... 1,000
DIVIENAS . . o 1,000
8. INSUraNCe EXPeNSE. ... 50
Prepaid INSUraNCe. ... oo 50
0. INVENTOIY et 600
Cash o 150
Accounts Payable......... ... ... 450
10.  Allowance for Bad Debts. ... ... 46
Accounts Receivable........ ... .. ... 46
11, Interest EXpeNse . . ..o 125
Interest Payable........ ... 125
12, Wages Payable. ... ... 130
Wages EXPeNSE. .. 75
Cash 205
13. Accounts Payable. ... ... 500
Cash 490
Purchase DiSCOUNTS . ... .ot 10
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Adjusting Entries
The following accounts were taken from the trial balance of Cole Company as of December 31, 2015:

Sales $70,000 Inventory $23,000
Interest Revenue 3,000 Advertising Expense 1,500
Equipment 52,000 Selling Expense 7,500
Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment 9,600 Interest Expense 2,000

Given the information below, make the necessary adjusting entries.

(@) The equipment has an estimated useful life of 10 years and a salvage value of $4,000. Depreciation is
calculated using the straight-line method.

(b) Of selling expense, $1,500 has been paid in advance.

(c) Interest of $800 has accrued on notes receivable.

(d) Of advertising expense, $440 was incorrectly debited to Selling Expense.

Adjusting Entries

The following data were obtained from an analysis of the accounts of Noble Distributor Company as of
March 31,2015, in preparation of the annual report. Noble records current transactions in nominal accounts.
What are the appropriate adjusting entries?

(@) Prepaid Insurance has a balance of $14,100. Noble has the following policies in force:

Policy Date Term Cost Coverage
A 1/1/2015 2 years $ 3,600 Shop equipment
B 12/1/2014 6 months 1,800 Delivery equipment
C 7/1/2014 3 years 12,000 Buildings

(b) Unearned Subscription Revenue has a balance of $56,250. The following subscriptions were collected
in the current year. There are no other unexpired subscriptions.

Effective Date Amount Term
July 1,2014 $27,000 1 year
October 1, 2014 22,200 1 year
January 1, 2015 28,800 1 year
April 1, 2015 20,700 1 year

(©) Interest Payable has a balance of $825. Noble owes a 10%, 90-day note for $45,000 dated March 1, 2015.

(d) Supplies has a balance of $2,190. An inventory of supplies revealed a total of $1,410.

(e) Salaries Payable has a balance of $9,750. The payroll for the five-day workweek ended April 3 totaled
$11,250.

Analyzing Adjusting Entries
Guidecom Consulting Company initially records prepaid items as assets and unearned items as liabilities.
Selected account balances at the end of the current and prior year follow. Accrued expenses and revenues
are adjusted only at year-end.

Adjusted Balances, Adjusted Balances,

December 31,2014 December 31,2015
Prepaid Rent $ 5,100 $3,400
Salaries and Wages Payable 2,100 4,700
Unearned Consulting Fees 18,200 7,800
Interest Receivable 800 2,100
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During 2015, Guidecom Consulting paid $14,000 for rent and $40,000 for wages. It received $112,000 for
consulting fees and $3,200 as interest.

1. Provide the entries that were made at December 31, 2015, to adjust the accounts to the year-end
balances shown on the previous page.

2. Determine the proper amount of Rent Expense, Salaries and Wages Expense, Consulting Fees
Revenue, and Interest Revenue to be reported on the current-year income statement.

Closing Entries

An accountant for Jolley, Inc,, a merchandising enterprise, has just finished posting all year-end adjusting
entries to the ledger accounts and now wishes to close the appropriate account balances in preparation
for the new period.

1. For each of the accounts listed, indicate whether the year-end balance should be (a) carried forward
to the new period, (b) closed by debiting the account, or (c) closed by crediting the account.

(a) Cash $ 25,000
(b) Sales 75,000
(c) Dividends 3,500
(d) Inventory 7,500
(e) Selling Expenses 7,900
(f) Capital Stock 100,000
(9) Wages Expense 14,400
(h) Dividends Payable 4,000
(i) Cost of Goods Sold 26,500
(j) Accounts Payable 12,000
(k) Accounts Receivable 140,000
(I) Prepaid Insurance 16,000
(m) Interest Receivable 1,500
(n) Sales Discounts 4,200
(0) Interest Revenue 6,500
(p) Supplies 8,000
(q) Retained Earnings 6,500
() Accumulated Depreciation 2,000
(s) Depreciation Expense 1,800

2. Give the necessary closing entries.
3. What was Jolley’s net income (loss) for the period?

Closing Entries

Dylan’s Taxidermy Corporation reports revenues and expenses of $142,300 and $91,500, respectively, for
the period. Give the remaining entries to close the books assuming the ledger reports Additional Paid-In
Capital of $400,000 and Retained Earnings of $125,000. Dividends during the year amounting to $29,200
were recorded in a dividends account.

Determining Income from Equity Account Analysis

An analysis of Goulding, Inc,, disclosed changes in account balances for 2015 and the following supplementary
data. From these data, calculate the net income or loss for 2015. (Hint: Net income can be thought of as the
increase in net assets resulting from operations.)

Cash $18,000 increase
Accounts Receivable 5,000 decrease
Inventory 14,000 increase
Equipment 58,000 increase
Accounts Payable 2,000 increase

Goulding sold 4,000 shares of its $5 par stock for $8 per share and received cash in full. Dividends of
$20,000 were paid in cash during the year. Goulding borrowed $40,000 from the bank and made interest
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payments of $5,000. Goulding had no other loans payable. Interest of $2,000 was payable at December
31, 2015. There was no interest payable at December 31, 2014. Equipment of $15,000 was donated by
stockholders during the year.

Accrual Errors
Spilker Aviation, Inc,, failed to make year-end adjustments to record accrued salaries and recognize interest
receivable on investments over the last three years as follows:

2013 2014 2015
Accrued salaries $21,000 $17,500 $26,000
Interest receivable 8,500 11,400 12,100

What impact would the correction of these errors have on the net income for these three years? Ignore
income taxes.

PROBLEMS

Journal Entries
Selfish Gene Company is a merchandising firm. The following events occurred during the month of May.
(Note: Selfish Gene maintains a perpetual inventory system.)

May 1 Received $40,000 cash as new stockholder investment.

3 Purchased inventory costing $8,000 on account from Dawkins Company; terms 2/10, n/30.
4 Purchased office supplies for $500 cash.
4

Held an office party for the retiring accountant. Balloons, hats, and refreshments cost $150
and were paid for with office staff contributions.

5 Sold merchandise costing $7,500 on account for $14,000 to Richard Company; terms 3/15,
n/30.

8 Paid employee wages of $2,000. Gross wages were $2,450; taxes totaling $450 were withheld.
9 Hired a new accountant; agreed to a first-year salary of $28,000.
9 Paid $1,500 for newspaper advertising.

10 Received payment from Richard Company.

12 Purchased a machine for $6,400 cash.

15 Declared a cash dividend totaling $25,000.

18  Sold merchandise costing $13,000 for $3,000 cash and $21,000 on account to Feynman
Company; terms n/30.

19  Paid Dawkins Company account in full.

22 Company executives appeared on the cover of a national newsmagazine. Related article
extolled Selfish Gene's labor practices, environmental concerns, and customer service.

23 Market value of Selfish Gene's common stock rose by $150,000.
25 Purchased a building for $15,000 cash and a $135,000 mortgage payable.
29 Paid dividends declared on May 15.

Instructions:
1. Record the preceding events in general journal form.

2. Which event do you think had the most significant economic impact on Selfish Gene Company? Are
all economically relevant events recorded in the financial records?
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Account Classification and Debit/Credit Relationship

Instructions: Using the format provided, identify for each account, including an asterisk for contra accounts:
1. Whether the account will appear on a balance sheet (B/S), income statement (I/S), or neither (N)

2. Whether the account is an asset (A), liability (L), owners’ equity (OE), revenue (R), expense (E), or other (O)
3. Whether the account is real or nominal
4. Whether the account will be “closed” or left “open” at year-end
5. Whether the account normally has a debit (Dr.) or a credit (Cr.) balance

(1) (2) (3) (4) Closed (5) Debit (Dr.) or

Account Title B/S, 1/S, N A/ L, OERE O Real or Nominal or Open Credit (Cr.)

Example: Cash B/S A Real Open Dr.
a) Unearned Rent Revenue

O

) Accounts Receivable
c) Inventory
) Accounts Payable
) Prepaid Rent
) Mortgage Payable
) Sales
) Cost of Goods Sold
Dividends
Dividends Payable
Interest Receivable
) Wages Expense
m) Interest Revenue
n) Supplies
0) Accumulated Depreciation
p) Retained Earnings
q) Discount on Bonds Payable
) Goodwill
s) Additional Paid-In Capital

SQ > o

=

[
=

= = =

=

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

N

Adjusting Entries
On December 31, Trinkets Supply Company noted the following transactions that occurred during 2015,
some or all of which might require adjustment to the books.

(@) Payment of $4,300 to suppliers was made for purchases on account during the year and was not recorded.

(b) Building and land were purchased on January 2 for $190,000. The building’s fair value was
$141,000 at the time of purchase. The building is being depreciated over a 30-year life using the
straight-line method, assuming no salvage value.

(c) Of the $52,000 in Accounts Receivable, 5% is estimated to be uncollectible. Currently, Allowance for
Bad Debts shows a debit balance of $200.

(d) On September 1, $80,000 was loaned to a customer on a 12-month note with interest at an annual
rate of 11%.

(e) During 2015, Trinkets Supply received $15,200 in advance for services, 80% of which will be
performed in 2016. The $15,200 was credited to Sales Revenue.

(f) The interest expense account was debited for all interest charges incurred during the year and
shows a balance of $2,300. However, of this amount, $300 represents a discount on a 60-day note
payable, due January 30, 2016.

Instructions:
1. Give the necessary adjusting entries to bring the books up to date.
2. Indicate the net change in income as a result of the foregoing adjustments.
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Analysis of Adjusting Entries
The accountant for Save More Company made the following adjusting entries on December 31, 2015.

(@) Prepaid Rent ... ... ... 1,800

ReNT EXPENSE 1,800
(b) Advertising Materials. ........... ... 1,700

Advertising EXpense . ... 1,700
(Q) ReNTREVENUE . ..o 900

Unearned Revenue ... ... ... i 900
(d) Office Supplies. ... ... 1,000

Office Supplies Expense. ... 1,000
(€) Prepaid INSUIANCE ... .ot 1,050

INSUranCe EXpPense ... ..o 1,050

Further information is provided as follows:

(@) Annual rentis paid in advance every October 1.

(b) Advertising materials are purchased at one time (June 1) and are used evenly throughout the year.
() Annual rent is received in advance every March 1.

(d) Office supplies are purchased every July 1 and used evenly throughout the year.

(e) Yearly insurance premium is payable each August 1.

Instructions: For each adjusting entry, indicate the original transaction entry that was recorded.

Adjusting Entries

The bookkeeper for Joe's Hardware Co. records all revenue and expense items in nominal accounts during
the period. The following balances, among others, are listed on the trial balance at the end of the fiscal
period, December 31, 2015, before accounts have been adjusted:

Dr. (Cr.)
ACCOUNTS ReCeIVaDIE . . oo $123,000
Allowance for Bad Debts . . ..o (2,700)
Interest Receivable . . ..o 3,200
Discount on Notes Payable. ... .. 300
Prepaid Real Estate and Personal Property Tax ..., 1,600
Salaries and Wages Payable ........ .. ... .. (7,600)
Discount on Notes Receivable. ... ... (1,800)
Unearned Rent ReVENUE . .. .o (5,200)

Inspection of the company’s records reveals the following as of December 31, 2015:

(@) Uncollectible accounts are estimated at 4% of the accounts receivable balance.

(b) The accrued interest on investments totals $3,900.

(c) The company borrows cash by discounting its own notes at the bank. Discounts on notes payable at
the end of 2015 are $1,200.

(d) Prepaid real estate and personal property taxes are $1,600, the same as at the end of 2014.

(e) Accrued salaries and wages are $8,300.

(f) The company accepts notes from customers, giving its customers credit for the face of the note less
a charge for interest. At the end of each period, any interest applicable to the succeeding period is
reported as a discount. Discounts on notes receivable at the end of 2015 are $1,300.

(g) Part of the company’s properties had been sublet on September 15, 2014, at a rental of $2,100 per
month. The arrangement was terminated at the end of one year.

Instructions: Give the adjusting entries required to bring the books up to date.
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Cash to Accrual Adjusting Entries and Income Statement
Gee Enterprises records all transactions on the cash basis. Greg Gee, company accountant, prepared the
following income statement at the end of the company’s first year of operations:

Gee Enterprises
Income Statement
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

SalES $252,000
Selling and administrative expenses:

Salanes EXPENSE . . ... $78,000

RN X PN, e 45,000

COMMISSION EXPENSE . . .o\ttt e e e e 37,800

B QU DM N 30,000

ULIltieS EXPENSE . ..t 29,000

INSUIANCE EXPENSE. . o\ttt et e e e e 6,000

INTEreST EXPENSE. .ttt 3,000 228,800
NETINCOME ... $ 23,200

You have been asked to prepare an income statement on the accrual basis. The following information is
given to you to assist in the preparation:

(@) Amounts due from customers at year-end were $28,000. Of this amount, $3,000 will probably not be
collected.

(b) Salaries of $11,000 for December 2015 were paid on January 5, 2016. Ignore payroll taxes.

c) Gee rents its building for $3,000 a month, payable quarterly in advance. The contract was signed on

January 1, 2015.

The bill for December’s utility costs of $2,700 was paid on January 10, 2016.

(e) Equipment of $30,000 was purchased on January 1, 2015. The expected life is five years, no salvage
value. Assume straight-line depreciation.

(f) Commissions of 15% of sales are paid on the same day cash is received from customers.

(g) A one-year insurance policy was issued on company assets on July 1, 2015. Premiums are paid
annually in advance.

(h) Gee borrowed $50,000 for one year on May 1, 2015. Interest payments based on an annual rate of
12% are made quarterly, beginning with the first payment on August 1, 2015.

(i) The income tax rate is 40%. No prepayments of income taxes were made during 2015.

—

—
o
—_ =

Instructions:
1. Prepare adjusting entries to convert the books from a cash to an accrual basis.
2. Prepare the income statement for the year ended December 31, 2015, based on the entries in (1).

Adjusting and Closing Entries
Account balances taken from the ledger of Builders’ Supply Corporation on December 31, 2015, before
adjustment, follow information relating to adjustments on December 31, 2015:

Allowance for Bad Debts is to be increased to a balance of $3,000.
Buildings are depreciated at the rate of 5% per year.

Accrued selling expenses are $3,840.

There are supplies of $780 on hand.

Prepaid insurance relating to 2016 totals $720.

Accrued interest on long-term investments is $240.

Accrued real estate and payroll taxes are $900.

Accrued interest on the mortgage is $480.

Income taxes are estimated to be 20% of the income before income taxes.

zgeoze

- oQe =2
= =2

o~~~ o~~~ o~ —~ —
=
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Cash $ 24,000 Dividends $ 13,400
Accounts Receivable 72,000 Sales 246,000
Allowance for Bad Debts 1,380  Sales Returns 4,360
Inventory 87,570  Sales Discounts 5,400
Long-Term Investments 15400  Cost of Goods Sold 114,370
Land 69,600  Selling Expenses 49 440
Buildings 72,000  Office Expenses 21,680
Accumulated Depreciation—Buildings 19,800  Insurance Expense 1,440
Accounts Payable 35,000  Supplies Expense 5,200
Mortgage Payable 68,800  Taxes—Real Estate and Payroll 7,980
Capital Stock, $10 par 180,000 Interest Revenue 660
Retained Earnings, December 31, 2014 14,840  Interest Expense 2,640

Instructions:

1. Prepare a trial balance.

2. Journalize the adjustments.

3. Journalize the closing entries.

4. Prepare a post-closing trial balance.

(Note: Although not required, the use of a spreadsheet is recommended for the solution of this problem.)

Adjusting and Closing Entries and Post-Closing Trial Balance
Data for adjustments at December 31, 2015, are listed below and the unadjusted trial balance at the top of
the following page.

(@) Taipei International uses a perpetual inventory system.

(b) An analysis of Accounts Receivable reveals that the appropriate year-end balance in Allowance for
Bad Debts is $750.

(c) Equipment depreciation for the year totaled $32,000.

(d) A recheck of the inventory count revealed that goods costing $5,600 were wrongly excluded from
ending inventory. The goods in question were not shipped until January 3, 2016. A related receivable
for $8,200 was also mistakenly recorded.

(e) Interest on the note payable has not been accrued. The note was issued on March 1, 2015, and the
interest rate is 12%.

(f) The balance in Insurance Expense represents $3,000 that was paid for a one-year policy on October 1.
The policy went into effect on October 1.

(g) Dividends totaling $7,800 were declared on December 25. The dividends will not be paid until
January 15, 2016. No entry was made.

Instructions:

1. Journalize the necessary adjusting entries. (Ignore income tax effects.)
2. Journalize the necessary closing entries.

3. Prepare a post-closing trial balance.
4

Can a company pay dividends in a year in which it has a net loss? Can a company owe income taxes
in a year in which it has a net loss?
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Taipei International Corporation
Unadjusted Trial Balance

December 31, 2015
Debit Credit

CaSh o $ 31,500
Accounts Receivable . ... ... ... . 25,000
Allowance for Bad Debts .. ... S 250
VBN OTY e 41,700
EQUIDMENT. 190,000
Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment........................... ... 51,000
Accounts Payable ... ..o 31,000
Notes Payable. ... ... ... .. 70,000
Wages Payable. ... ... ... 8,000
Income Taxes Payable......... ... ... ... ... .. 6,500
CommMON STOCK .« .o 40,000
Retained Earnings. ... 34,100
Sales ReVENUE. .. 310,000
Interest Revenue . ... 12,000
Cost of GOOdS SOIA. .o 205,250
Wages EXPENSE ... 45,000
INterest EXPENSe ... o 3,200
Utilities EXPeNSe. . ... oo 6,000
INSUrANCe EXPENSE ..o 3,000
Advertising EXpense ... 5,000
Income Tax EXPEeNSe ... 7,200

Totals. . $562,850 $562,850

Preparation of Work Sheet

Account balances taken from the ledger of High Flying Logistics Co. on December 31, 2015, follow:

Cash $ 42,000 Dividends
Accounts Receivable 86,000 Sales

Allowance for Bad Debts 2,400 Sales Returns
Inventory 97,000 Sales Discounts
Long-Term Investments 31,500 Cost of Goods Sold
Land 62,300 Selling Expenses
Buildings 142,500 Office Expenses
Accumulated Depreciation—Buildings 32,560 Insurance Expense
Accounts Payable 51,800 Supplies Expense
Mortgage Payable 122,500 Taxes—Real Estate and Payroll
Capital Stock, $5 par 200,000 Interest Revenue

Retained Earnings, December 31,2014 26,950 Interest Expense

Information relating to adjustments on December 31, 2015, follows:

(@) Allowance for Bad Debts is to be increased by $2,200.

$ 40,540
431,000

9,560
8,440

203,420

58,300
44,200
12,000
5,100
15,800
750
9,300

(b) Buildings have a salvage value of $7,500. They are being depreciated at the rate of 10% per year.

() Accrued selling expenses are $9,300.
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(d) There are supplies of $850 on hand.

(e) Prepaid insurance relating to 2016 totals $3,800.

(f) Total interest revenue earned in 2015 is $1,900.

(g) Accrued real estate and payroll taxes are $3,550.

(h) Accrued interest on the mortgage is $1,980.

(i) Income tax is estimated to be 40% of income.

Instructions: Prepare a work sheet showing the net income and balance sheet totals for the year
ending December 31, 2015.

Preparation of Work Sheet and Adjusting and Closing Entries
The following account balances are taken from the general ledger of Whitni Corporation on December 31,
2015, the end of its fiscal year. The corporation was organized in January 2007.

Cash $ 40,250 Common Stock, $100 par $240,000
Notes Receivable 16,500 Retained Earnings 129,125
Accounts Receivable 63,000 Sales 760,000
Allowance for Bad Debts (credit balance) 650 Sales Returns and Allowances 17,000
Inventory, December 31, 2015 94,700 Cost of Goods Sold 465,800
Land 80,000 Utilities Expense 16,700
Buildings 247,600 Property Tax Expense 10,200
Accumulated Depreciation—-Buildings 18,000 Salaries and Wages Expense 89,000
Furniture and Fixtures 15,000 Sales Commissions Expense 73,925
Accumulated Depreciation— Insurance Expense 18,000

Furniture and Fixtures 9,000 Interest Revenue 2,600
Notes Payable 18,000 Interest Expense 2,400
Accounts Payable 72,700

Data for adjustments at December 31, 2015, are as follows:

a) Depreciation (to nearest month for additions): furniture and fixtures, 10%; buildings, 4%.

b) Additions to the buildings costing $150,000 were completed on June 30, 2015.

c) Allowance for Bad Debts is to be increased to a balance of $2,500.

Accrued expenses: sales commissions, $700; interest on notes payable, $45; property taxes, $6,000.

Prepaid expenses: insurance, $3,200.

f) Accrued revenue: interest on notes receivable, $750.

g) The following information is also to be recorded:

(1) On December 30, the board of directors declared a quarterly dividend of $1.50 per share on
common stock, payable on January 25, 2016, to stockholders of record on January 15, 2016.

(2)  Income taxes for 2015 are estimated at $15,000.

(3) The only charges to Retained Earnings during the year resulted from the declaration of the
regular quarterly dividends.

Instructions:

1. Prepare an eight-column spreadsheet. There should be a pair of columns each for trial balance,
adjustments, income statement, and balance sheet.

2. Prepare all the journal entries necessary to record the effects of the foregoing information and to
adjust and close the books of the corporation.

CASES

Where Is Your Cash Box?
Consider the following account of a veterinarian attempting to hire his first bookkeeper:

Miss Harbottle, the prospective bookkeeper, paused at the desk, heaped high with incoming and
outgoing bills and circulars from drug firms with here and there stray boxes of pills and tubes of udder
ointment.
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Stirring distastefully among the mess, she extracted the dog-eared old ledger and held it up between
finger and thumb. “What's this?”

Siegfried trotted forward. “Oh, that's our ledger. We enter the visits into it from our day book, which is
here somewhere.” He scrabbled about on the desk. “Ah, here it is. This is where we write the calls as they
comein/

She studied the two books for a few minutes with an expression of amazement that gave way to grim
humor. She straightened up slowly and spoke patiently. "And where, may | ask, is your cash box?”

“Well, we just stuff it in there, you know! Siegfried pointed to the pint pot on the corner of the
mantelpiece. "Haven't got what youd call a proper cash box, but this does the job all right”

Miss Harbottle looked at the pot with horror. Crumpled cheques and notes peeped over the brim at
her; many of their companions had burst out on the hearth below. “And you mean to say that you go out
and leave that money there day after day?”

“Never seems to come to any harm. Siegfried replied.

‘And how about your petty cash?”

Siegfried gave an uneasy giggle. “All in there, you know. All cash—petty and otherwise”

[Excerpted from James Herriot, All Creatures Great and Small (New York: St. Martin’s Press, 1972) ]

Situations similar to the one described here are not unusual for small businesses. How does a business
survive with such bad bookkeeping?

To Record or Not to Record
Explain why each of the following hypothetical events would not be recorded in a journal entry.

1. Afamous and much-beloved movie star is secretly filmed by an investigative news team using your
company’s product when she in fact has an endorsement contract with your company’s major
competitor.

2. Two of your firm'’s top vice presidents have a bitter argument and will probably never speak to each
other again.

3. Your company’s chief research chemist is killed in a plane crash.

Because of unfavorable economic news, consumer confidence is shaken, and the stock market falls
by 10%.

5. You, a small business owner, buy a sofa for your home. You pay with a check drawn on your per-
sonal, not your business, checking account.

6. Disney decides to build the next Walt Disney World near a large piece of property you own.

Is It Time to Revolutionize the Recording of Business Events?
Jim Price and Elaine Bijard are taking an accounting systems course at their local university. They are intrigued
with the rapid advances in technology and communication that are occurring in the computer world. Today's
lecture was especially thought provoking. Professor Hansen stated that it is no longer necessary or even
desirable to record business events in sequential order as has been traditionally done in accounting journals.
The better approach is to capture all data related to a business event in a computer database, including
accounting, marketing, and production data, and to prepare reports for many different users from a single
source. The database would be a management information database, not just one for accounting reports.
Jim argues that such an approach would make it more difficult for accountants to keep control of input
and ensure the integrity of their financial reports, but Elaine feels that the sooner the accountants recognize
the potential, the better they can serve management’s varied needs. What advantages and disadvantages
do you see coming from a database approach to recording? How can Jim's objections be met?

When Cash Basis Is Different from Accrual Basis

Alice Guth operates a low-impact aerobics studio. Alice has been in business for three years and has always
had her financial statements prepared on a cash basis. This year, Alice’s accountant has suggested that
accrual-based financial statements would give a more accurate picture of the performance of the business.
Alice’s friend Frank Geller tells her that, in his experience, accrual-based financial statements tell pretty
much the same story as cash-basis statements.
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Under what circumstances would the cash basis and the accrual basis of accounting yield quite
different pictures of a firm's operating performance? Under what circumstances would the cash basis and
the accrual basis show approximately the same picture?

The Impact of Computers on Financial Reporting

Computers have drastically altered the way accounting records are maintained. Almost all businesses
now keep the bulk of their accounting records on computers. However, the financial statements are still
prepared methodically on only a quarterly and annual basis (for public companies). What types of changes
in companies'financial statements are likely to occur over the next 10 to 15 years as a result of the increasing
ability to disseminate information online?

But | Need More Timely Information!
Julie is successful in her position as a consultant for Worldwide Enterprises. She has selectively invested
her money in stocks of several companies. She receives the annual reports and faithfully analyzes them as
she was taught in her university accounting class. She is concerned, however, with the impact that events
have on the financial reports between years. Julie understands that quarterly reports are available from the
companies upon request but that they are not audited and thus may not be reliable. She wonders whether
they can be trusted. Even quarterly reports might not be frequent enough. Wouldn't it be useful if she could
use her computer to interrogate the company’s computer and obtain information anytime she wanted it?
She decides to write for advice from the chief accountants of the companies in which she holds stock.
As chief accountant, how would you address Julie’s concerns?

Deciphering Financial Statements (Lockheed Martin Corporation)
Locate the 2011 financial statements for Lockheed Martin Corporation on the Internet. Reconstruct the
company’s adjusted trial balance as of December 31, 2011.

Writing Assignment (I am going to be an accountant—not a bookkeeper!)
Some accounting students feel that the mechanics of accounting (journal entries and T-accounts) are for
bookkeepers. Because these students are training to be accountants, they see no need to spend a great
deal of time studying these mechanics.

In one page, explain why accountants must have a thorough understanding of journal entries and
T-accounts, even though these tools are mostly the domain of bookkeepers.

Ethical Dilemma (The art of making adjusting entries)

Refer back to the section of the chapter entitled “Preparing Adjusting Entries” Who determines how
long buildings and furniture and equipment are to last? Who determines the dollar amount of accounts
receivable that are doubtful?

Suppose we were to change our asset depreciation on the buildings and the furniture and equipment
from 5% and 10% to 4% and 8%, respectively. What would be the effect on net income? Would it increase
or decrease? Likewise, suppose our estimate of the balance in Allowance for Bad Debts was reduced to
$1,000. What would be the effect on net income?

Is the adjusting entry process an exact science where accountants can determine exactly how well a
company has done for a period? Or is accounting an art that requires significant judgment on the part of
the accountant?

What are the dangers for the accountant when making an estimate in an area (like Bad Debts) where
significant judgment is required?

Cumulative Spreadsheet Analysis

Beginning with Chapter 2, each chapter in this text will include a spreadsheet assignment based on the financial
information of a fictitious company named Skywalker Enterprises. The assignments start out simple—in this
chapter you are not asked to do much more than set up financial statement formats and input some numbers.
In succeeding chapters, the spreadsheets will get more complex so that by the end of the course you will have
constructed a spreadsheet that allows you to forecast operating cash flows for five years in the future, adjust your
forecast depending on the operating parameters that you think are most reasonable, and analyze the impact of
a variety of accounting assumptions on the reported numbers.

So, let's get started with the first spreadsheet assignment.
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1. The following numbers are for Skywalker Enterprises for 2015.

Short-Term Loans Payable S 30 Investment Securities (current) S 70
Unearned Revenue 35 Income Tax Expense 12
Interest Expense 27 Retained Earnings (as of

Paid-In Capital 150 January 1,2015) 93
Cash 30 Receivables 81
Other Long-Term Liabilities 253 Long-Term Investments 250
Dividends 0 Sales 2,100
Accumulated Depreciation 27 Accounts Payable 222
Other Long-Term Assets 40 Other Equity 72
Inventory 459 Property, Plant, and Equipment 597
Cost of Goods Sold 1,557 Other Operating Expenses 480
Long-Term Debt 621

Your assignment is to create a spreadsheet containing a balance sheet and an income statement for
Skywalker Enterprises.

2. Skywalker is wondering what its balance sheet and income statement would have looked like if the
following numbers were changed as indicated.

Change
From To
Sales $2,100 $2,190
Cost of Goods Sold 1,557 1,650
Other Operating Expenses 480 495

Create a second spreadsheet with the numbers changed as indicated. (Note: After making these
changes, your balance sheet may no longer balance.) Eliminate any discrepancy by increasing or
decreasing Short-Term Loans Payable as much as necessary.
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The Balance Sheet and Notes
to the Financial Statements

Learning Objectives

Describe the specific elements of the balance sheet (assets,
liabilities, and owners’equity), and prepare a balance sheet
with assets and liabilities properly classified into current and
noncurrent categories.

0 Identify the different formats used to present balance sheet data.

0 Analyze a company’s performance and financial position
through the computation of financial ratios.

“Every man in uniform gets a bottle of Coca-Cola for
5 cents, wherever he is and whatever it costs.” So said
Robert Woodruff, Coca-Cola chairman, as U.S. soldiers
entered the fighting in World War II. By 1941, Coca-Cola
was such a part of U.S. life that Coke also became part of
the war machine. In 1943, General Dwight Eisenhower
requested the necessary equipment and bottles to re-
fill 10 million Coca-Colas for soldiers in the European
theater. Allied Headquarters in North Africa operated
64 bottling plants during the war.

From its beginnings in Atlanta, Georgia, in which
1886 sales averaged 9 drinks per day, to its current
worldwide presence in which 2009 sales averaged
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o Recognize the importance of the notes to the financial
statements, and outline the types of disclosures made in
the notes.

o Understand the major limitations of the balance sheet.

1.6 billion servings per day, Coca-Cola has grown to
the point that it is now the most recognizable trade-
mark on the planet—with sales in over 200 countries
around the world.

Pharmacist Dr. John S. Pemberton mixed the first
kettle of Coca-Cola in his backyard in 1886. Frank Robin-
son, Pemberton’s bookkeeper and partner, named the
drink and came up with the unique script that is Coke’s
signature. Bottled Coke (in contrast to Coca-Cola served
at a soda fountain) was first offered in 1894, and five
years later, Joseph Whitehead and Benjamin Thomas
purchased the exclusive rights to bottle Coca-Cola for
$1. Within 20 years, 1,000 bottlers around the world
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of Financial
Accounting




were bottling Coke. In 1915, the contoured bottle that symbolizes Coca- historic blunder. In April of that year, the company changed its
Cola was developed, and its shape was finally granted a patent in 1977. secret formula, terminated the original Coke, and introduced “new”

With Coca-Cola’s remarkable success, one must wonder what Coke. The public reaction was overwhelmingly negative, with con-
company executives were thinking in 1985 when they made a sumers organizing and calling for the return of the original. After

| Coca-Cola’s Balance Sheet

The Coca-Cola Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31,2011 and 2010
(In millions except par value)

2011 2010
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $12,803 $ 8,517
Short-term investments 1,088 2,682
TOTAL CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 13,891 11,199
Marketable securities 144 138
Trade accounts receivable, less allowances
of $83 and $48, respectively 4,920 4,430
Inventories 3,092 2,650
Prepaid expenses and other assets 3,450 3,162
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 25,497 21,579
EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS 7,233 6,954
OTHER INVESTMENTS, PRINCIPALLY BOTTLING COMPANIES 1,141 631
OTHER ASSETS 3,495 2,121
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT—net 14,939 14,727
TRADEMARKS WITH INDEFINITE LIVES 6,430 6,356
BOTTLERS' FRANCHISE RIGHTS WITH INDEFINITE LIVES 7,770 7,511
GOODWILL 12,219 11,665
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 1,250 1,377
TOTAL ASSETS $79,974 $72,921
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 9,009 $ 8,859

Loans and notes payable 12,871 8,100

Current maturities of long-term debt 2,041 1,276

Accrued income taxes 362 273
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 24,283 18,508
LONG-TERM DEBT 13,656 14,041
OTHER LIABILITIES 5,420 4,794
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 4,694 4,261
THE COCA-COLA COMPANY SHAREOWNERS' EQUITY

Common stock, $0.25 par value; Authorized—5,600 shares;

Issued—3,520 and 3,520 shares, respectively 880 880
Capital surplus 11,212 10,057
Reinvested earnings 53,550 49,278
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (2,703) (1,450)
Treasury stock, at cost—1,257 and 1,228 shares, respectively (31,304) (27,762)

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREOWNERS OF THE COCA-COLA COMPANY 31,635 31,003
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS 286 314
TOTAL EQUITY 31,921 31,317

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $79,974 $72,921

© Cengage Learning 2014
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four months, the company reintroduced the original formula as
Coca-Cola Classic.

Today, over 17,000 soft drink servings from The Coca-Cola
Company are consumed around the world every second of every day.

Owning the most valuable brand name in the world (Interbrand,
an international brand valuation company, estimated the value of the
Coca-Cola brand name in 2011 at $71.861 billion), one might expect
Coca-Cola’s balance sheet to contain a significant amount assigned
to this asset. One look at the company’s balance sheet (see Exhibit
3-1), however, reveals that very little is recorded on Coke’s balance
sheet related to its intangible assets.

As illustrated with the brand name example, Coke’s balance
sheet is interesting as much for what it excludes as for what it
includes. As an additional example, Coke owns between 20% and

30% of a number of bottling companies around the world. These
bottlers all have the words “Coca-Cola” in their company names, but
legally they are structured as companies separate from the Coca-
Cola parent. In total, these Coca-Cola bottlers have $22.2 billion in
liabilities; however, because The Coca-Cola Company does not own
a controlling interest (more than 50%) in these bottlers, none of
these liabilities are reported in Coke’s balance sheet.

Coke’s balance sheet appears relatively simple—deceptively sim-
ple. Although we are each comfortable with accounts such as Cash,
Inventory, Accounts Payable, and Reinvested (or Retained) Earnings, a
firm's balance sheet becomes much more complex as its business gets
more complex. It is important that we understand what the balance
sheet tells us, what it does not tell us, and the role that the financial state-
ment notes play in assisting us in interpreting the financial statements.

1. Asstated above, the Coca-Cola trademark has been estimated to be worth $71.861
billion. The value of this trademark is NOT reported in the Coca-Cola balance sheet
in Exhibit 3-1, but trademarks valued at $6.430 billion are reported in 2011. What
do you think is the difference between these trademarks and the original Coca-Cola
trademark?

2. The liabilities of the Coca-Cola bottlers of which The Coca-Cola Company owns a
significant percentage total $22.2 billion. As stated above, NONE of these liabilities
is included in the balance sheet of The Coca-Cola Company. Look at Exhibit 3-1—
what amount of total liabilities does The Coca-Cola Company report as of December
31,2017

3. Look at Exhibit 3-1. As of December 31, 2011, which amount is greater—total
current assets or total current liabilities? If you were a banker making a short-term
loan to a company, would you prefer that company to have more current assets or
more current liabilities?

Answers to these questions can be found on page 3-34.

oca-Cola’s balance sheet,

like the balance sheet of any company, lists the organiza-

tion’s accounting assets and liabilities. However, this does not mean that the balance

sheet includes complete, up-to-date information about all of the organization’s eco-
nomic resources and obligations. As described in Chapter 1, the choice of how to include
information in the financial statements is often a trade-off between relevance and reliabil-
ity. The balance sheet has been criticized for being too reliable, with too many assets being
recorded at historical cost instead of market value, and with many important economic
assets (such as Microsoft’s installed base of customers or Intel’s market dominance) not
being recorded at all. A characteristic of recent FASB statements is an effort to improve the
relevance of the balance sheet.

Even with its limitations, the balance sheet is still zhe fundamental financial statement.
In fact, the income statement and statement of cash flows can be thought of as simply
providing supplemental information about certain balance sheet accounts: The income
statement gives a detailed description of some of the yearly changes in retained earnings,
and the statement of cash flows details the reasons for the change in the cash balance.

3-3
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WHY identification and mea-
surement of assets and liabilities

is fundamental to the practice of
accounting. Assets and liabilities are
usually separated into current and
noncurrent categories so that a fi-
nancial statement user can assess the
firm’s ability to meet its obligations
as they come due.

HOW Conceptual definitions,
traditional accounting practice, and
in some cases, specific accounting
standards determine when economic
items should be reported as ac-
counting assets or liabilities. Current
items are those expected to be used
or paid within one year. When clas-
sifying assets and liabilities, the key
considerations are how management
intends to use an asset and when it
expects to pay a liability.

P1 | Foundations of Financial Accounting

This chapter focuses on the strengths and limitations of the balance sheet and describes
how companies report their assets, liabilities, and owners’ equity. The chapter also intro-
duces some financial ratios used to analyze the balance sheet and outlines the type of
information contained in the notes to the financial statements.

Elements of the Balance Sheet

0 Describe the specific elements of the balance sheet (assets, liabilities, and owners’ equity), and prepare a balance sheet
with assets and liabilities properly classified into current and noncurrent categories.

Twenty years after his victory at the Battle of Hastings in 1066, William the Conqueror
commissioned a royal survey of all the property in England. The survey was described as
follows by one of the defeated Anglo-Saxons:

He sent his men all over England into every shire and had them find out how many hundred
hides there were in the shire, or what land and cattle the king himself had in the country, or
what dues he ought to have in twelve months from the shire. Also, he had a record made of
how much land his archbishops had, and his bishops and his abbots and his earls, and what
or how much everybody had who was occupying land in England, in land or cattle, and how
much money it was worth.

The survey thoroughly frightened the people of England, and it was called “Domesday [or
Doomsday] Book” because it caused them to think of the final reckoning at the Last Judgment.'

Had the original Doomsday Book also included a listing of all the obligations, or
liabilities, of the people of England, it would have comprised a balance sheet for England
as of the year 1086. A balance sheet is a listing of an organization’s assets and liabilities
as of a certain point in time. The difference between assets and liabilities is called equity.
Equity can be thought of as the amount of the assets that the owners of the organization
can really call their own, the amount that would be left if all the liabilities were paid. The
balance sheet is an expression of the basic accounting equation:?

Assets = Liabilities + Owners’ equity

The three elements found on the balance sheet were precisely defined in Chapter 1.
These definitions are repeated in Exhibit 3-2.
These definitions contain several key words and phrases that are briefly discussed here.

e Probable. Contrary to popular belief, accounting is not an exact science. Business is
full of uncertainty, and this is acknowledged by the inclusion of the word probable in
the definitions of assets and liabilities.

®  Future economic benefit. Although the balance sheet summarizes the results of past
transactions and events, its primary purpose is to help forecast the future. Hence, the
only items included as assets and liabilities are those with implications for the future.

e Obtained or controlled. Accountants have a phrase, “substance over form,” meaning that
financial statements should reflect the underlying economic substance, not the superficial
legal form. If a company economically controls the future economic benefits associated
with an item, that item qualifies as an asset whether it is legally owned or not.

e Obligation. This term includes legal commitments as well as moral, social, and implied
obligations. Again, the phrase “substance over form” applies.

'Elizabeth M. Hallam, Domesday Book Through Nine Centuries (Thomas and Hudson, 1986), pp. 16, 17.

’In abbreviated form, the basic accounting equation can be expressed as A = L + E. This can be rearranged algebraically to yield E = A—L.

Notice the similarity with Einstein’s famous equation: £ = mc”. Researchers thus far have had no luck in finding an underlying connection
that would unify the fields of physics and accounting.
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Exhibit 3-2 | Definitions of Asset, Liability, and Equity

Balance Sheet

Asset: Liability:

Probable future economic benefit Probable future sacrifice of economic
obtained or controlled by a benefit arising from a present
particular entity as a result obligation of a particular entity to

of past transactions or events. transfer assets or provide services to

other entities in the future as a result
of past transactions or events.

Equity:

Residual interest in the assets of
an entity that remains after deducting
its liabilities. In a business enterprise,

the equity is the ownership interest.

Source: Material from FASB Concepts Statement No. 6, Elements of Financial Statements, is copyrighted by the Financial Accounting
Foundation (FAF), 401 Merritt 7, PO Box 5116, Norwalk, CT 06856-5116, USA, and is reproduced with permission. A complete copy of
the document is available from the FAF.

* Transfer assets or provide services. Most liabilities involve an obligation to transfer
assets in the future. However, an obligation to provide a service is also a liability. For
example, having received your tuition check, your college or university now has a li-
ability to you to provide a top-notch education.

®  Past transactions or events. Assets and liabilities arise from transactions or events that
have already happened. Consider a company that promises in April to pay a student
$4,000 for a summer internship starting in June. If the company declares bankruptcy
in May, does the student get to collect the $4,000? No, because the transaction, the
actual summer internship work, has not yet occurred.’

Assets include financial items such as cash, receivables, and investments in finan-
cial instruments. Assets also include costs that are expected to provide future economic
benefits. For example, expenditures made

‘ for inventories, equipment, and patents
Sto are expected to help generate revenues in
‘ future periods. Most assets are measured
in terms of historical cost. As mentioned in
Chapter 1 and outlined later in this chapter,
however, some assets are measured in terms
of replacement cost, market value, net real-
izable value, or discounted present value.
Liabilities include obligations with
amounts denominated in precise monetary
terms, such as accounts payable and long-
term debt. The amounts of other liabilities
must be estimated based on expectations
about future events. These types of liabili-
ties include warranties, pension obliga-
tions, and environmental liabilities.

Alternatively, asset could be defined as everything legally owned by a com-
pany, and fiability defined as all legal obligations. Which ONE of the following
would NOT be a problem of these legalistic definitions?

a) Companies would be tempted to hire teams of lawyers to carefully craft
contracts in order to obtain favorable accounting classification of assets
and liabilities.

b) Companies could use legal technicalities in order to hide their economic
liabilities in legally separate companies.

Q) These law-based definitions of assets and liabilities would put too much
power into the hands of the FASB.

d) The identification of accounting assets and liabilities would be greatly
influenced by changing governmental standards of ownership.

*Whether the transaction has already occurred is sometimes difficult to determine. For example, if the student signs a summer internship
contract guaranteeing payment of $4,000 whether or not any work is done, the contract signing itself might be viewed as creating an asset for
the student and a liability for the company. This exact issue is important in determining the proper accounting treatment for long-term leases.
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The total liability amount measures the amounts of the assets of the company that are
claimed by various creditors. Owners’ equity measures the amounts of the total assets of
the company that remain and are thus claimed by the ownership group. Owners’ equity
equals the net assets of a company, or the difference between total assets and total liabili-
ties. Owners’ equity arises from investment by owners and is increased by net income and
decreased by net losses and distributions to owners. Other items that can impact owners’
equity are outlined later in the chapter.

Classified Balance Sheets

Although no standard categories must be used, the general framework for a balance sheet
shown in Exhibit 3-3 is representative and will be used in this chapter. Balance sheet items
are generally classified as current (or short-term) items and noncurrent (or long-term) items.

Exhibit 3-3 | Categories of a Classified Balance Sheet

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash
Investment securities
Accounts and notes receivable
Inventories
Other current assets, such as prepaid expenses

Noncurrent assets:
Investments
Property, plant, and equipment
Intangible assets
Other noncurrent assets, such as deferred income tax assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts and notes payable
Accrued expenses
Current portion of long-term obligations
Other current liabilities, such as unearned revenues

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt, such as notes, bonds, and mortgages payable
Long-term lease obligations
Deferred income tax liabilities
Other noncurrent liabilities, such as pension obligations

OWNERS’ EQUITY

Contributed capital:
Capital stock
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Other equity, such as treasury stock (a subtraction)
Accumulated other comprehensive income

© Cengage Learning 2014
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How long is current? For most companies, current means one year or less. Accordingly,
assets expected to be used and liabilities expected to be paid or otherwise satisfied within
a year are current items. When assets and liabilities are so classified, the difference between
current assets and current liabilities may be determined. This difference is referred to as the
company’s working capital—the liquid buffer available in meeting financial demands and
contingencies of the near future.

The division of assets and liabilities into just two categories—current and noncurrent—is
in some sense an arbitrary partition. Users of financial statements could desire a different
partition. For example, some users exclude inventory when evaluating a company’s working
capital position. Users are certainly free to recast the balance sheet in whatever manner they
wish. However, although there is some arbitrariness in the current/noncurrent classifications,
its popularity among users as an indication of liquidity suggests that the classification does
meet the test of decision usefulness.

Current Assets

The most common current assets are cash, receivables, and inventories. As depicted in
Exhibit 3-4, the normal operating cycle involves the use of cash to purchase inventories,
the sale of inventories resulting in receivables, and ultimately the cash collection of those
receivables. In some industries, such as lumber and shipbuilding, this normal operating
cycle is longer than one year. When the operating cycle is longer than a year, the length
of the operating cycle should be used in defining current assets and liabilities. In practice,
almost all companies use the one-year period.*

In addition to cash, receivables, and inventories, current assets typically include pre-
paid expenses and investments in certain securities. Prepaid items are a bit different from
other current assets in that they are not expected to be converted into cash within a year.
Instead, their expiration makes it possible to conserve cash that otherwise would have
been required. Prepayments for periods extending beyond a year should be reported as
noncurrent assets.

Debt and equity securities (often called bonds and stocks) that are purchased mainly
with the intent of reselling the securities in the short term are called trading securities. Trad-
ing securities are classified as current assets. Other investments in debt and equity securities

Exhibit 3-4 | Operating Cycle

Cash

N
G GEED

Receivables Inventories

“In classifying items not related to the operating cycle, a one-year period is always used as the basis for current classification. For example,
a note receivable due in 15 months that arose from the sale of land held as an investment would be classified as noncurrent even if the
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normal operating cycle exceeds 15 months.
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are classified as current or noncurrent depending on whether management intends to con-
vert them into cash within one year or one operating cycle, whichever is longer.’

The reported amounts for current assets are measured in a variety of ways. Cash
and receivables are reported at their net realizable values. Thus, current receivable bal-
ances are reduced by allowances for estimated uncollectible accounts. Investments in debt
and equity securities are reported, in most cases, at current market value. Inventories
are reported at cost (FIFO, LIFO, etc.) or on the lower-of-cost-or-market basis. Prepaid
expenses are reported at their historical costs.

Current assets are normally listed on the balance sheet before the noncurrent assets
and in the order of their liquidity, with the most liquid terms (those closest to cash) first.
This ordering is a tradition, not a requirement. Most utilities and insurance companies
reverse the order and report their longer-lived assets first. In addition, as illustrated later,
non-U.S. companies frequently start their balance sheets with their long-term assets.

Some exceptions to the normal classification of assets should be noted. If management
intends to use an asset for a noncurrent purpose, that asset should be classified as noncur-
rent in spite of the usual classification. For example, cash that is restricted to a noncurrent

Caution

ing historical cost.

use (e.g., for the acquisition of noncurrent
assets or for the liquidation of noncurrent
debts) should not be included in current
assets. Similarly, land that is held for resale

As illustrated with current assets, a balance sheet is not restricted to report- within the coming year should be classified

as current. The overriding criterion is man-

agement intent.

Noncurrent Assets

Assets not qualifying for presentation under the current heading are classified under a
number of noncurrent headings. Noncurrent assets may be listed under separate head-
ings, such as Investments; Property, Plant, and Equipment; Intangible Assets; and Other
Noncurrent Assets.

Investments Investments held for such long-term purposes as regular income, ap-
preciation, or ownership control are reported under the heading Investments. Debt and
equity securities purchased as investments that management does not intend to sell in
the coming year are classified as long-term investments. Acquisitions of the stock of
other companies made in order to exert influence or control over the actions of those
companies are accounted for using the equity method, which is explained in Chapter
14. These investments are classified as long-term investments. The Investments heading
also includes other miscellaneous investments not used directly in the operations of the
business, such as land held for investment purposes. Many long-term investments are
reported at cost. However, more and more long-term assets are being reported at current
market values. These deviations from cost will be discussed in later chapters.

Property, Plant, and Equipment Properties of a tangible and relatively permanent
character that are used in the normal business operations are reported under Property, Plant,
and Equipment or other appropriate headings such as Land, Buildings, and Equipment.
Land, buildings, machinery, tools, furniture, fixtures, and vehicles are included in this sec-
tion of the balance sheet. If an asset, such as land, is being held for speculation, it should be

> FASB ASC paragraphs 210-10-45-1(f) and 320-10-45-2.
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classified as an investment rather than un-

FY | der the heading Property, Plant, and Equip-

ment. Tangible properties, except land, are
normally reported at cost less accumulated

When an investment in another company represents majority ownership of depreciation. If the current value of a tangi-
that company, no single investment amount is reported in the balance sheet. ble property is less than its depreciated cost,
Instead, all of the individual assets and liabilities of the other company are the asset is said to be impaired. Guidelines
included, or consolidated, in the balance sheet. for when and how to recognize asset impair-

ments are given in Chapter 11.

Intangible Assets The long-term rights and privileges of a nonphysical nature ac-
quired for use in business operations are often reported under the heading Intangible
Assets. Included in this class are items such as goodwill, patents, trademarks, franchises,
copyrights, formulas, leaseholds, and customer lists. Intangible assets are an increasingly
important part of most companies’ economic value; accordingly, the FASB has placed
more emphasis on the accounting for intangibles. Some intangible assets are depreciated,
or amortized, in the same way as tangible assets. However, many intangible assets, includ-
ing goodwill, are not amortized on a systematic basis. Instead, these intangible assets are
regularly tested to determine whether their value has been impaired. The details of ac-
counting for intangibles are in Chapters 10 and 11.

Other Noncurrent Assets Those noncurrent assets not suitably reported under
any of the previous classifications may be listed under the general heading “Other
Noncurrent Assets” or may be listed separately under special descriptive headings.
Such assets include, for example, long-term advances to officers,
long-term receivables, deposits made with taxing authorities and
utility companies, and deferred income tax assets. Deferred income
tax assets arise when taxable income exceeds reported income
for the period and the difference is expected to “reverse” in fu-
ture periods. One common source of deferred income tax assets is
large restructuring charges (including write-downs in asset values
and recognition of relocation obligations) that are not yet deduct-
ible for income tax purposes; the deferred income tax asset reflects
the expected future tax benefits that will arise when the elements
of the restructuring charge become tax deductible in the future.
The computation and reporting of deferred income tax assets is
somewhat complex as well as interesting (as will be explained in
Chapter 16).

Current Liabilities

Current liabilities are those obligations that are reasonably expected
to be paid using current assets or by creating other current liabilities.
Generally, if a liability is reasonably expected to be paid within
12 months, itis classified as current. As with receivables, payables arising
from the normal operating activities may be classified as current even
if they are not to be paid within 12 months as long as they are to be
Properties used in normal business operations, such as paid within the operating cycle, which may exceed 12 months.

the printing press shown here, are classified as “property, In addition to accounts payable and short-term borrowing, cur-
plant, and equipment” on the balance sheet. rent liabilities also include amounts for accrued expenses. Common
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accruals include salaries and wages, interest, and taxes. The Current Liabilities section also
includes amounts representing the portion of the long-term obligations due to be satisfied
within one year.

The current liability classification generally does not include the following items that
normally would be considered current.

®  Debts to be liquidated from a noncurrent sinking fund. A sinking fund consists of cash
and investment securities that have been accumulated for the stated purpose of repay-
ing a specific loan. If the sinking fund is classified as a noncurrent asset, the associated
loan is also classified as noncurrent.

e Short-term obligations to be refinanced. If a short-term loan is expected to be refi-
nanced (either with a new long-term loan or with the issuance of equity) or paid back
with the proceeds of a replacement loan, the existing short-term loan will not re-

quire the use of current assets even though

FY!

The international standard for classification of short-term obligations to be
refinanced is slightly different. According to IAS 1, for the obligation to be
classified as long term the refinancing must take place by the balance sheet
date, not the later date when the financial statements are finalized. The FASB
is considering adopting this more stringent condition.

it is scheduled to mature within a year.
To reflect the economic substance of this
situation, the existing loan is not classified
as current as long as (1) the intent of the
company is to refinance the loan on a long-
term basis and (2) the company’s intent is
evidenced by an actual refinancing after the
balance sheet date but before the financial
statements are finalized or by the existence

of an explicit refinancing agreement.®

Callable Obligations Classification problems can arise when an obligation is callable
by a creditor because it is difficult to determine exactly when the obligation will be paid.
A callable obligation is one that is payable on demand and thus has no specified due date.
If the terms of an agreement specify that an obligation is due on demand or will become
due on demand within one year from the balance sheet date, the obligation should be clas-
sified as current.”

A loan can become callable because the debtor violates the provisions of the debt agree-
ment. Loan agreement clauses that identify specific deficiencies (e.g., missing two consecu-
tive interest payments) that can cause a loan to be immediately callable are referred to
as objective acceleration clauses. If these specific deficiencies exist as of the balance sheet
date, the associated liability should be classified as current unless the lender has agreed
to waive the right to receive immediate payment or the deficiency has been fixed (e.g., an
interest payment made) by the time the financial statements are issued.

In some cases, the debt agreement does not specifically identify the circumstances under
which a loan will become callable, but it does indicate some general conditions that permit

FY!

the lender to accelerate the due date. This
type of provision is known as a subjective
acceleration clause because the violation of
the conditions cannot be objectively deter-

Large banks have entire “compliance” departments that verify whether bor- mined. Examples of the wording in such
rowers are following the terms of their loan agreements. clauses are “if the debtor fails to maintain

satisfactory operations . ..” or “if a material

6 FASB ASC paragraph 470-10-45-14.
7 FASB ASC paragraph 470-10-45-10.
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adverse change occurs. . . .” If invoking of the clause is deemed probable, the liability should
be classified as a current liability. If invoking of the clause is considered to be reasonably
possible but not probable, only a note disclosure is necessary, and the liability continues to
be classified as noncurrent.®

Noncurrent Liabilities

Obligations not reasonably expected to be paid or otherwise satisfied within 12 months (or
within the operating cycle if it exceeds 12 months) are classified as noncurrent liabilities.
Noncurrent liabilities are generally listed under separate headings, such as Long-Term
Debt, Long-Term Lease Obligations, Deferred Income Tax Liability, and Other Noncurrent
Liabilities.

Long-Term Debt Long-term notes, bonds, mortgages, and similar obligations not re-
quiring the use of current funds for their retirement are generally reported on the balance
sheet under the heading Long-Term Debt.

Long-term debt is reported at its discounted present value, which is initially measured
by the proceeds from the debt issuance. When the amount borrowed is not the same as the
amount ultimately required to be repaid, called the maturity value, a discount or premium
is included as an adjustment to the maturity value to ensure that the debt is reported at its
discounted present value. A discount should be subtracted from the amount reported for
the debt, and a premium should be added to the amount reported for the debt.

When a note, a bond issue, or a mortgage formerly classified as a long-term obligation
becomes payable within a year, it should be reclassified and presented as a current liability
except when the obligation is to be refinanced, as discussed earlier, or is to be paid out of
a fund classified as noncurrent.

Long-Term Lease Obligations Some leases of property, plant, and equipment are
financially structured so that they are essentially debt-financed purchases. The FASB has
established criteria to determine which leases are to be accounted for as purchases, or
capital leases, rather than as ordinary operating leases. In accounting for capital leases, the
present value of the future minimum lease payments is recorded as a long-term liability.
That portion of the present value due within the next year is classified as a current liability.
The long-term lease obligation reported by some firms is often more interesting for what
it doesn’t include than for what it does include. For example, as of May 31, 2011, the
present value of future minimum lease payments for capital leases for FedEx was $146
million. At the same time, the present value of future minimum lease payments for operat-
ing leases (an amount ot reported in the balance sheet) was approximately $10 billion.
Be patient; in Chapter 15, you will learn more about leases than you ever wanted to know.

Deferred Income Tax Liability Almost all large companies include a deferred
income tax liability in their balance sheets. This liability can be thought of as the income
tax expected to be paid in future years on income that has already been reported in the
income statement but which, because of the tax law, has not yet been taxed. The liability
is valued using the enacted income tax rates expected to prevail in the future when the
income is taxed. However, because the liability is not reported at its present (discounted)
value, some analysts disregard it when evaluating a company’s debt position. The account-
ing for deferred income taxes is very complex and controversial and has been the subject
of considerable debate.

8 FASB ASC paragraph 470-10-45-2.
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Other Noncurrent Liabilities Those noncurrent liabilities not suitably reported un-
der the separate headings outlined earlier may be listed under this general heading or may
be listed separately under special descriptive headings. Examples of such long-term li-
abilities are pension plans and obligations resulting from advance collections on long-term
contracts.

Contingent Liabilities Past activities or circumstances may give rise to possible fu-
ture liabilities although obligations do not exist on the date of the balance sheet. These
possible claims are known as contingent liabilities. They are potential obligations involv-
ing uncertainty as to possible losses. As future events occur or fail to occur, this uncertain-
ty will be resolved. A good example of a contingent liability is the cosigner’s obligation on
a co-signed loan. The cosigner has no existing obligation but may have one in the future,
depending on whether the borrower defaults on the loan.

Contingent liabilities are accounted for

Caution

according to the judgment of management
about the probability of the contingent
obligation’s becoming an actual obligation.

This description makes it sound as if accounting for contingencies is cook- If a future payment is considered probable,
book simple, but the words “probable” and “possible” represent very complex the liability should be recorded by a debit
concepts. For example, when exactly does a future event (such as a thunder- to a loss account and a credit to a liability
storm tomorrow) stop being possible and start being probable? account. If future payment is possible, the

contingent nature of the loss is disclosed in

a note to the financial statements. If future

payment is remote, no accounting action is necessary.’
A contingent liability is distinguishable from an estimated liability. An estimated
liability is a definite obligation with only the amount of the obligation in question
and subject to estimation at the balance sheet date. Examples of estimated liabilities

Stop &

business

ket value of a company?

b) Used in the primary line of business and used in secondary lines of

¢) Measured at current fair value and measured on some other basis

are pensions, warranties, and deferred
taxes. Some liabilities combine the char-
acteristics of contingent and estimated
liabilities. A good example is a company’s

The current/noncurrent classification scheme is only one way to split assets obligation for environmental cleanup
and liabilities into two groups. Below are three alternate two-way classifica- costs. In many cases, a company is not
tion schemes. Which one would be most useful for: (1) A financial analyst certain if it is liable for environmental
trying to compare the company’s core business with the core businesses of damage until the obligation is confirmed
similar companies? (2) A US. congressperson concerned about the reloca- in the courts. However, even after the
tion of operations overseas? (3) An analyst trying to estimate the current mar- cleanup obligation is verified, estimating

its amount is quite difficult; the cleanup

a) Located in the United States and located in a non-U.S. country typically extends over several years, the

amount of the cost to be shared by other
polluting companies is uncertain, and
governmental environmental regulations
can change at any time. If no reasonable
estimate of an obligation can be made,

it is not recognized as a liability in the
balance sheet, but the nature of the obligation is disclosed in the financial statement
notes. Chapter 19 contains more details on the accounting for contingent and esti-
mated liabilities.

9 FASB ASC paragraphs 450-20-25-2, 450-20-50-3, and 460-10-50-2.
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Owners’ Equity

The method of reporting the owners’ equity varies with the form of the business unit.
Business units are typically divided into three categories: proprietorships, partnerships, and
corporations.'® In the case of a proprietorship, the owner’s equity in assets is reported by
means of a single capital account. The balance in this account is the cumulative result of
the owner’s investments and withdrawals as well as past earnings and losses. In a partner-
ship, capital accounts are established for each partner. Capital account balances summarize
the investments and withdrawals and shares of past earnings and losses of each partner
and thus measure the partners’ individual equities in the partnership assets.

In a corporation, the difference between assets and liabilities is referred to as
stockholders’ (shareholders’) equity or owners’ equity. In presenting the owners’ equity
on the balance sheet, a distinction is made between the equity originating from the stock-
holders’ investments, referred to as contributed capital or paid-in capital, and the equity
originating from earnings, referred to as retained earnings.

Most financial statement analysis calculations use total stockholders’ equity and do
not distinguish between contributed capital and retained earnings. However, for some
purposes the distinction can be very important. Historically, companies could legally pay
cash dividends only in an amount not exceeding the retained earnings balance. This legal
restriction has been relaxed in most states, but the retained earnings amount is still viewed
as an informal limit to cash dividend payments.

Contributed Capital Contributed (or paid-in) capital is generally reported in two
parts: (1) capital stock and (2) additional paid-in capital. The amount reported on the
balance sheet as capital stock usually reflects the number of shares issued multiplied by
the par value or stated value per share. Historically, par value was the market value of
the shares at the time of their issue. In cases where shareholders invested less than the
par value of the stock, courts sometimes held that the shareholders were contingently
liable for the difference if corporate resources were insufficient to satisfy creditors. To-
day, most stocks are issued with low or no par values; par value no longer has much
significance.

The two types of capital stock are preferred stock and common stock. In general,
preferred stockholders are paid a fixed annual cash dividend and have a higher likelihood
of recovering their investment if the company goes bankrupt.!! Common stockholders
are the real owners of the corporation; they vote for the board of directors and have legal
ownership of the corporate assets after the claims of all creditors and preferred stockhold-
ers have been satisfied. For accounting purposes, when a corporation has issued more than
one class of stock, the stock of each class is reported separately.

Additional paid-in capital represents investments by stockholders in excess of the par
or stated value of the capital stock. Additional paid-in capital is also affected by a whole
host of diverse transactions such as stock repurchases, stock dividends, share retirements,
and stock conversions. In a sense, additional paid-in capital is the “dumping ground” of
the Equity section.

10 In addition to these three general categories, there are many hybrids. Some of these are limited partnerships, S corporations, and limited
liability companies (LLCs). In general, these organizations are taxed as partnerships but have some of the limited liability advantages of a
corporation. All of the large accounting firms are organized as limited liability partnerships (LLP) to insulate uninvolved partners from cli-
ent lawsuits directed at individual partners. According to IRS records, about 70% of U.S. businesses are organized as sole proprietorships.
11 In essence, preferred stock is an investment that has some of the characteristics of a loan: fixed periodic payment, no vote for the board
of directors, and higher priority than common stock in case of bankruptcy liquidation. Increasingly, finance wizards are creating securities
that combine characteristics of both debt and equity. The accounting question is where to put these creations. Distinguishing between
debt and equity is addressed more fully in Chapter 13.
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Retained Earnings The amount of undistributed earnings of past periods is reported
as retained earnings. An excess of dividends and losses over earnings results in a negative
retained earnings balance called a deficit. As detailed in Chapter 13, retained earnings
can also be reduced as a result of stock retirements and the issuance of stock dividends.
A sample of large positive and negative retained earnings balances for U.S. companies is
given in Exhibit 3-5.

Portions of retained earnings are sometimes reported as restricted and unavailable as a
basis for cash dividends. This ensures that a company does not distribute cash dividends to
shareholders to the extent that the ability to repay creditors or make other planned expen-
ditures comes into question. Retained earnings restrictions can be part of a loan agreement
or can be voluntarily adopted by a company (called an appropriation). These restrictions
are usually disclosed in a financial statement note.

Other Equity In addition to the two major categories of contributed capital and re-
tained earnings, the Equity section can include a couple of other items: treasury stock and
accumulated other comprehensive income. These are described in detail in later chapters,
but they are briefly discussed here.

Treasury Stock When a company buys back its own shares, accountants call the repur-
chased shares treasury stock. Treasury shares can be retired, or they can be retained and
reissued later. When the shares are retained, the amount paid to repurchase the treasury
stock is usually shown as a subtraction from total stockholders’ equity. In essence, a trea-
sury stock purchase returns funds to shareholders.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Beginning in 1998, the FASB required
companies to summarize changes in owners’ equity exclusive of net income and contribu-
tions by and distributions to owners. This summary, termed other comprehensive income,
is typically provided by companies as part of their statement of stockholders’ equity. The
corresponding balance sheet item reflecting the cumulative total of these items over the
years is titled Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. The three most common compo-
nents are certain unrealized gains and losses on investments, foreign currency adjustments,

and certain unrealized gains and losses on

FY!

derivative contracts.

Unrealized Gains and Losses on
Available-for-Sale Securities Available-

For those interested in stock tips, buy the stocks of companies that announce for-sale securities are those that were not
treasury stock purchases. Those companies tend to outperform the market in purchased with the immediate intention to
the three to four years following the announcement. resell but also are not meant to be held per-

manently. These securities are reported in

Exhibit 3-5 | Large Positive and Negative Retained Earnings Balances
for the Year 2011 (in millions)

Company Name Retained Earnings

ExxonMobil $330,939

General Electric 137,786

] Citigroup 90,520
/7 JDS Uniphase (68,609)
} Time Warner (21,671)

Source: Standard and Poor’'s COMPUSTAT.
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the balance sheet at their current market values. The unrealized gains and losses from mar-
ket value fluctuations are not included in the income statement but are instead shown as a
separate equity item.'?

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments Almost every U.S. multinational corpora-
tion has a foreign currency translation adjustment in its Equity section. This adjustment
arises from the change in the equity of foreign subsidiaries (as measured in terms of U.S.
dollars) that occurs during the year as a result of changes in foreign currency exchange
rates. These adjustments are discussed in Chapter 22.

Unrealized Gains and Losses on Derivatives A derivative is a financial instrument,
such as an option or a future, that derives its value from the movement of a price, an ex-
change rate, or an interest rate associated with some other item. For example, an option
to purchase a stock becomes more valuable as the price of the stock increases, and the
right to purchase foreign currency at a fixed exchange rate becomes more valuable as that
foreign currency becomes more expensive. As will be discussed in Chapter 19, companies
often use derivatives in order to manage their exposure to risk stemming from changes in
prices and rates. Some of the unrealized gains and losses from the fluctuations in the value
of derivatives are reported as part of accumulated other comprehensive income.

Minority Interest When one company owns controlling interest (more than 50%) of
the common stock of one or more other companies, the financial results of this group of
companies are combined into a set of consolidated financial statements. The objective of
consolidated financial statements is to reflect in one set of financial statements the results
of all companies owned or controlled by the parent corporation. In the consolidated bal-
ance sheet, minority (or noncontrolling) interest is the amount of equity investment made
by outside shareholders to consolidated subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by the par-
ent. For example, if the parent owns 80% of the subsidiary, then the minority interest is
the amount of financing provided by the outside shareholders who own the other 20% of
the subsidiary. This minority interest is reported as part of owners’ equity, but it is clearly
listed separately from the parent’s owners’ equity.'3

International Reserves The first thing one notices about the Equity portion of the bal-
ance sheets of many foreign companies, particularly those from countries influenced by
the British accounting tradition, is the extended description of the company’s “reserves.”
In familiar terms, reserves are merely different equity categories similar in nature, depend-
ing on the reserve, to additional paid-in capital or to restricted retained earnings. Reserve
accounting is very important because in many foreign countries the legal ability to pay
cash dividends is strictly tied to the balances in various reserve accounts. Common reserve
category titles are revaluation reserve and capital redemption reserve. Reserves are dis-
cussed in more detail in Chapter 13, which is devoted to the Equity section.

Offsets on the Balance Sheet

As illustrated in the preceding discussion, a number of balance sheet items are reported at
gross amounts not reflecting their actual values, thus requiring the recognition of offset bal-
ances in arriving at proper valuations. In the case of assets, for example, an allowance for
bad debts is subtracted from the sum of the customer accounts in reporting the net amount

12 One never knows where controversy and compromise will rear their ugly heads. Accounting purists hoped to include these unrealized
gains and losses in the income statement. Companies (particularly banks) fearful of the volatility that this would add to the income state-
ment opposed the treatment. This equity item is the FASB's compromise.

13 FASB ASC paragraph 810-10-45-16.
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WHY the arrangement of items
within the balance sheet is meant
to emphasize certain items and to
highlight important relationships.

HOW In most industries, assets
and liabilities are listed in order
of their liquidity with cash first,

followed by the other current items.

For some industries, particularly
those with large investments in
long-term assets, property, plant,

and equipment items are listed first.

P1 | Foundations of Financial Accounting

FASB CODIFICATION

The Issue: You have just started working as a business manager for a local medical
practice. As one of your first tasks, you have been asked to get the financial state-
ments in shape to take to the bank to request a $500,000 loan for the practice. You
have been examining the most recent balance sheet and noticed that there are
no reported long-term liabilities. You are surprised to see this because you know
that the practice has an existing five-year loan for $350,000. You asked one of the
doctors about this and were told that the $350,000 loan was omitted because the
doctors know that they have sufficient cash, in their personal savings, to pay the
loan if needed. Thus, instead of going to the trouble of putting their personal cash
in the business balance sheet, along with the $350,000 loan amount, they have just
offset the two. Voila.

The Question: Is there any accounting rule that specifically states that assets and
liabilities shouldn't be offset in the way the doctors are doing? Are there any
exceptions to the no-offset rule?

Searching the Codification: This issue relates to balance sheet presentation, so we
should start with the Presentation group of topics in the FASB's Codification. One
of the topics in that group is Topic 210—Balance Sheet. If we are lucky, “Offset-
ting"is one of the subtopics in the Balance Sheet topic.

The Answer: The correct treatment is described on page 3-35.

estimated as collectible; accumulated depreciation is subtracted from the related buildings
and equipment balances in reporting the costs of the assets still assignable to future revenues.
In the case of liabilities, a loan discount is subtracted from the maturity value of the loan in
reporting the loan at its discounted present value. In the Stockholders’ Equity section of the
balance sheet, treasury stock is deducted in reporting total stockholders’ equity.

The types of offsets described here, utilizing contra accounts, are required for proper
reporting of particular balance sheet items. In addition, accounting rules require some assets
and liabilities to be offset against one another, resulting in just one net amount being reported
in the balance sheet. For example, a company’s pension obligation is offset against the assets
in the pension fund, and only the net number goes into the balance sheet. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are also offset against each other.

The cases just described are the exceptions. The general rule is that assets, liabilities,
and equities should not be offset when compiling the balance sheet. Offsetting, or net-
ting, can significantly reduce the information value of the balance sheet. If offsetting were
taken to its extreme, the balance sheet would be just one line, total equity, embodying total
liabilities offset against total assets.

Format of the Balance Sheet

a Identify the different formats used to present balance sheet data.

When preparing a balance sheet, the order of asset and liability classifications may vary,
but most businesses emphasize working capital position and liquidity, with assets and

Copyright 2013 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s).
Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.



@3 | The Balance Sheet and Notes to the Financial Statements 3-17

liabilities presented in the order of their liquidity. An exception to this order is generally
found in the Property, Plant, and Equipment section where the more permanent assets with
longer useful lives are listed first. The balance sheet of The Coca-Cola Company, repro-
duced in Exhibit 3-1, is an example of current assets and current liabilities being listed first.

As mentioned earlier, in some industries, such as the utility industry, the investment
in plant assets is so significant that these assets are placed first on the balance sheet. Also,
because long-term financing is so important in these industries, the equity capital and
long-term debt obtained to finance plant assets are listed before current liabilities. To illus-
trate this type of presentation, the 2008 balance sheet for Consolidated Edison is given in
Exhibit 3-6. Consolidated Edison, established in 1884, provides electric service to almost
all of New York City."

As seen in the Consolidated Edison illustration in Exhibit 3-6, balance sheets are gen-
erally presented in comparative form. With comparative reports for two or more dates,
information is made available concerning the nature and trend of financial changes tak-
ing place within the periods between balance sheet dates. Currently, a minimum of two
years of balance sheets and three years of income statements and cash flow statements are
required by the SEC to be included in the annual report to shareholders.

| Consolidated Edison, Inc.

Consolidated Edison, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2008 and 2007

At December 31,

(Millions of Dollars) 2008 2007
Assets
Utility Plant, at Original Cost (Note A)
Electric .... .. $17,483 $15,979
LT 1 PP 3,696 3,403
1] =T P 1,849 1,755
(7= 0 1=T - P 1,795 1,732
o - P 24,823 22,869
Less: Accumulated depreciation . 5,079 4,784
L= 19,744 18,085
Construction work in progress 1,109 1,028
Net Utility PIant. . .. ... ot ettt et et e e e e e 20,853 19,113
Non-Utility Plant (Note A)
Non-utility property, less accumulated depreciation of $40
and $36in 2008 and 2007, rESPECHIVEIY. . . .« ..ttt ettt ettt e et e e e 20 18
Non-utility property held for sale (NOtE V) . ....oouu ittt et enes — 778
Construction work in progress .. 1 5
L =T B ] - T P 20,874 19,914
Current Assets
Cash and temporary cash investments (NOtE A) . ... .ot e 74 210
Accounts receivable—customers, less allowance for uncollectible accounts of
$58 and $47 in 2008 and 2007, respectively 952 970
Accrued unbilled revenue (Note A) .................. 131 149
Other receivables, less allowance for uncollectible accounts of $6 in 2008 and 2007 339 288
Fuel 0il, @t @VEIage COST . .ottt et et e e e e e e e e 37 44
Gas in StOrage, @t @VErage COST . ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e e et e e e e e e 325 215
Materials and sUPPlies, at AVEIrage COSE . ... vttt ettt et ettt e et e et e e e e 154 146
LR =] 0 ) 1= P 697 119
Fair value of deriVativVe @SSets. . . . ...ttt ettt e e e ettt e e e e e 162 98

14 In 2009, Consolidated Edison reordered its balance sheet and began using the more common sequencing with current assets first, then
long-term assets, and so forth.
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| Consolidated Edison, Inc. (Continued)

Consolidated Edison, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2008 and 2007

At December 31,
(Millions of Dollars) 2008 2007
Recoverable energy costs (NOtes Aand B) .......ueuniiinttit it $ 172 $ 213
Deferred derivative [0SSeS . . .. ...ttt e e 260 45
Current assets held for sale (NOTE V) ... ..ottt et et eaaes — 40
Other CUITENT @SSETS. . . . . ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e ettt e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e eeenes 16 13
TOtal CUITENE ASSEES . ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e e e e e e et et ettt e et e e e e 3,319 2,550
INvestMents (NOTE A) . ... ...ttt e ettt e e e e 356 378
Deferred Charges, Regulatory Assets and Noncurrent Assets
GOOAWIll (NOTE K) . . e ettt ettt ettt e e et et e e 411 408
Intangible assets, less accumulated amortization of $2 and $1
in 2008 and 2007, respectively 5 2
Regulatory assets (NOte B). . ......ueuiuene ittt eeeeennes 8,105 4,511
Noncurrent assets held for sale (Note V) .........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii . — 88
Other deferred charges and noncurrent assets. . ............oveveineunennenn... 428 411
Total Deferred Charges, Regulatory Assets and Noncurrent Assets .......... 8,949 5,420
TOtAl ASSEES. . .ottt ettt ettt et e e e e e e e $33,498 $28,262
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Capitalization and Liabilities
Capitalization
Common shareholders’ equity (See Statement of Common Shareholders’ Equity).................... $ 9,698 $ 9,076
Preferred stock of subsidiary (See Statement of Capitalization) ............coooiviiiiiiiiiiinienn... 213 213
Long-term debt (See Statement of Capitalization)............couvuniiniinin i, 9,232 7,611
Total Capitalization . .. ..ottt ettt 19,143 16,900
MINOKItY INTEIESES. . . ...ttt e e ettt et e e e — 43
Noncurrent Liabilities
Obligations under capital 1eases (NOtE J). . ... cu ettt et e eanes 17 22
Provision for injuries and damages (NOte G) ..........ovviiininninnnnnnnnnn. 169 161
Pensions and retiree benefits. ....... ...t 4,511 938
Superfund and other environmental costs (NOte G) .........covvvviniennan.. 250 327
UNncertain iNCOME TaXES .. ..o v vttt et ettt eeeeaenens 118 155
Asset retirement obligations (Note R). ... 115 110
Fair value of derivative liabilities. .............coo i 120 15
Noncurrent liabilities held for sale (Note V) ........coooviiiiiiiiiiininen.... — 61
Other noncurrent liabilities. . ........ov it 79 95
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 5,379 1,884
Current Liabilities
Long-term debt due within one year ... ...ttt e 482 809
NOtES PAYADIE . ..ottt 363 840
Accounts payable. ...t e 1,161 1,187
(@I (o] 33 YT e [=] 0o 1 1 {3 265 249
Vel (V=T i = =T 57 26
ACCrUEd INTEIESE ..ottt ettt et e e e 139 149
el (=T Y7 o 1< 88 82
Fair value of derivative liabilities. ..o, 192 76
Deferred derivative gains (NOt€ B) .......ouveneieii et 23 10
Deferred income taxes—recoverable energy costs (Note L) ................. 70 86
Current liabilities held for sale (Note V) .........ooiiiiiiii it — 28
Other current liabilities 365 309
Total Current Liabilities. .. ... .. ..o e 3,205 3,851
Deferred Credits and Regulatory Liabilities
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits (Notes Aand L) ..........cooeuiiiiniininennn... 4,999 4,465
Regulatory liabilities (NOte B) . . ... .ottt ettt e e e e 737 1,097
Other deferred Credits. . ... .c..u i et 35 22
Total Deferred Credits and Regulatory Liabilities .............. ..o i 5,771 5,584
Total Capitalization and Liabilities. ............ ... it i ieaannns $33,498 $28,262

Consolidated Edison, Inc., 2008, 10K Report
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Format of Foreign Balance Sheets

Foreign balance sheets are frequently presented with property, plant, and equipment and
intangibles listed first. In addition, foreign balance sheets frequently list the current assets and
the current liabilities together and label the difference between the two as net current assets or
working capital. This manner of reporting the current items reflects the business reality that a
person starting a company needs to get long-

Stop

From the information in Exhibit 3-7, compute total assets for British Telecom-
munications as of March 31, 201

O

) £23,540 million
£24,540 million

@)

a) £18,559 million
)

o

) £21,052 million
) £32,630 million

D

1.

term financing (long-term debt and equity)
to finance the acquisition of long-term assets
as well as to finance the portion of current
assets that can’t be acquired by incurring
current liabilities. For example, if a company
can acquire all of its inventory through credit
purchases (accounts payable) and if the sup-
plier will wait for payment until the inventory
is sold and the cash collected, no long-term
financing is needed to purchase the initial
stock of inventory.

An example of a typical foreign balance
sheet is provided in Exhibit 3-7, which contains the March 31, 2011, balance sheet of British
Telecommunications. In addition to the format difference already mentioned, this balance sheet
also reflects several other differences between a U.S. balance sheet and the balance sheet of a
foreign company. The most obvious of these differences is in terminology. However, with some
thought and a little accounting intuition, one can deduce that the item “ordinary shares” is
what we would call “common stock,” “share premium” is “additional paid-in capital,” and so
forth. Of course, there is more to accounting than formatting and terminology. Because British
Telecommunications reports using International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), there
are some slight differences in the company’s reported numbers compared to what would be
reported if British Telecommunications was a U.S. company reporting according to U.S. GAAP.
Those U.S. GAAP-IFRS differences will be addressed throughout this textbook.

Exhibit 3-7 | 2011 Balance Sheet of British Telecommunications

British Telecommunications
Balance Sheet
At 31 March 2011

Non-current assets

Intangible assets................
Property, plant and equipment. .

Derivative financial instruments

Investments ....................
Associates and joint ventures. . ..
Trade and other receivables. .. ..
Deferred tax assets..............

Current assets

Inventories .....................
Trade and other receivables. .. ..

Derivative financial instruments

Investments ....................
Cash and cash equivalents ......

2011
(In millions of
British pounds)

.......................................................................... £ 3,389
.......................................................................... 14,623
.......................................................................... 625
.......................................................................... 61
.......................................................................... 164
.......................................................................... 286
.......................................................................... 461

19,609

.......................................................................... 121
.......................................................................... 3,332
.......................................................................... 108
.......................................................................... 19
.......................................................................... 351

3,931
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| 2011 Balance Sheet of British Telecommunications (Continued)

British Telecommunications
Balance Sheet
At 31 March 2011

2011
(In millions of
British pounds)
Current liabilities

Loans and Other BOrTOWINGS . ... ..ttt ettt ettt ettt et ettt e e e e eaeaens £ 485
Derivative financial INStrUMENTS . . . ...ttt ittt ettt ettt ettt ettt e 62
Trade and other payables . .. ... e e 6,114
CUrrent tax abIlTIES . . .ottt et et e e e e e 221
PrOV IS ONS .ot 149

7,031
Total assets less current liabilities . ....... ... i et £16,509

Non-current liabilities

Loans and Other BOIrOWINGS ... ...ttt ettt et et ettt e et e e e enenens £ 9,371
Derivative financial INSTIUMENTS . .« ..o .ttt et ettt e ettt et e et e e e e e e e e 507
Retirement benefit obligations . . ... ... .t 1,830
Other Payables . .. ... e 831
Deferred tax labilities. . . . ... .ottt et e et e e e e e 1,212
PrOVISIONS .. .ottt ettt e ettt e e 807
14,558

Equity
(0] (o 11 T 1 V] - 1= P 408
1) T TN o (=Y 005 2 S 62
Capital redemMPLiON TESEIVE ... ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e 27
OB TESEIVES . . . et ettt ettt e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 658
Retained arnings (I0SS) . . . . .. u ettt ettt et e e e e e e e e 770
Total parent shareholders’ equity (deficit) ............ oottt i 1,925
NON-CONTIOIING INTEIESTS. . o ettt ettt ettt et ettt e e e e et et et et e e e e e e e e e et e e e e enenens 26
Total eqUity (AefiCit). ... ...o. ittt ettt e ettt e et e e e e 1,951
£16,509

British Telecommunications, 2011, 10K Report

WHY A financial statement num-
ber, in isolation, tells you very little.
To really understand the financial

statements, you must look at rela-
tionships among the numbers.

Balance Sheet Analysis

Analyze a company’s performance and financial position through the computation of financial ratios.
HOW Computing a financial ratio is o Y panysp P g P

simply a matter of dividing one financial

statement number by another. Ratios
of balance sheet numbers reveal
information about financing choices
and liquidity. Ratios of a balance sheet

The purpose of classifying and ordering balance sheet items is to make the balance sheet
easier to use. Look at Exhibit 3-8 and compare the two balance sheets for the fictitious
B e fement number tel Teclflt-ron.ics Corporgtion. The k?alancg sheet on the left i.s just a list of assets, liabilities, ?nd
youabout how efficently an assetis equities in alphabetical order, like a simple account listing. The balance sheet on the right
being managed. uses the classification and ordering format described in the previous section. You decide
which is easier to interpret.

The Techtronics numbers will be used to illustrate standard balance sheet analysis
techniques. The simple techniques described in this overview will probably not help you to
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| Techtronics'Balance Sheet, With and Without Classification

Techtronics Corporation
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2015
WITHOUT CLASSIFICATION WITH CLASSIFICATION
Assets Assets
Buildings and equipment Current assets:
(net of accumulated depreciation Cash. .o $ 52,650
0f $228,600) ......viiiiiiie e $ 732,900 Investment securities ................oo... 67,350
Cash ..o 52,650 Receivables (less allowance for
Intangible assets ...t 165,000 baddebts) ........ooiiiiiii 363,700
Inventories. ...l 296,000 Inventories ..o 296,000
Investments. ...t 128,000 Prepaid expenses..........veiiiiiiiiiiiinanns 32,900
Investment securities ................ ...l 67,350 Total currentassets ..........ooooviiiiiiiiiinn $ 812,600
Land ..o 76,300 Noncurrent assets:
Other noncurrentassets ..................... 37,800 Investments .........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiian $ 128,000
Prepaid expenses. .........c..ooiiiiiiiiiiiin.. 32,900 Land ..o 76,300
Receivables (less allowance for................ Buildings and equipment
baddebts)........oooiiiiiiiiii 363,700 (net of accumulated depreciation
0f $228,600). . ..o evueeie e 732,900
Intangible assets. ..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiin 165,000
Other noncurrentassets ..........c....coocvue... 37,800
Total noncurrentassets ...........cooeeiinenn.. $1,140,000
Total @ssets.......oveueiiniiiiii i $1,952,600 Total @ssets .....ovuviriii i $1,952,600
Liabilities Liabilities
Accounts payable ...........c.ooiiiiiiiiiin... $ 312,700 Current liabilities:
Accrued eXPENSES ..o vu e ee e 46,200 Notes payable .............ccciiiiiiiiiiiil $ 50,000
Bonds payable ..., 165,000 Accounts payable ..., 312,700
Current portion of long-term debt............ 62,000 Accrued EXPENSES .. .viiiii e 46,200
Deferred tax liability...............cooeennt.t. 126,700 Current portion of long-term debt ............. 62,000
Long-term lease obligations .................. 135,000 Other current liabilities ........................ 28,600
Notes payable—current...................... 50,000 Total current liabilities ...................... $ 499,500
Notes payable—noncurrent.................. 100,000 Noncurrent liabilities:
Other current liabilities ....................... 28,600 Notes payable ...........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiinnn. $ 100,000
Other noncurrent liabilities ................... 72,500 Bonds payable ...t 165,000
Long-term lease obligations ................... 135,000
Deferred tax liability ................coooiiit 126,700
Other noncurrent liabilities .................... 72,500
Total noncurrent liabilities .................. $ 599,200
Total liabilities ...t $1,098,700 Total liabilities ..........ccooiiiiiiiii i $1,098,700
Stockholders’ Equity Stockholders’ Equity
Additional paid-in capital .................... $ 375,000 Contributed capital:
Common StOCK .....ouiiiiiiii i 170,000 CommON StOCK ... vveee et $ 170,000
Additional paid-in capital ...................... 375,000
$ 545,000
Retained earnings .............ccooiiiiiiin.. 308,900 Retained earnings ...........covviiiininiinennn. 308,900
Total stockholders’ equity .................... $ 853,900 Total stockholders’ equity ..........cooovvivnnn.. $ 853,900
Total liabilities and stockholders’ ............. Total liabilities and stockholders’
EQUILY « vt $1,952,600 EQUITY oottt $1,952,600

© Cengage Learning 2014

pick “winning” stocks and become a millionaire, but they are a start. It is said that Warren
Buffett (worth about $44 billion at last count) picks his investments only after “a careful
balance sheet analysis.”!®

15 Robert Lenzner and David S. Fondiller, “The Not-So-Silent Partner,” Forbes, January 22, 1996, p. 78.
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Balance sheet information is analyzed in two major ways:

1. Relationships between balance sheet amounts

2. Relationships between balance sheet and income statement amounts

In general, relationships between financial statement amounts are called financial ratios.

Relationships Between Balance Sheet Amounts

Financial ratios comparing one balance sheet amount to another yield information about
the operating and financial structure of a business. Three examples, which are discussed
here, are liquidity, overall leverage, and asset mix.

Liquidity The relationship between current assets and current liabilities can be used to
evaluate the liquidity of a company. Liquidity is the ability of a firm to satisfy its short-
term obligations. Many companies with fantastic long-run potential have been killed by
short-run liquidity problems.

A common indicator of the overall liquidity of a company is the current ratio. The
current ratio is computed by dividing total current assets by total current liabilities. For
Techtronics, the current ratio is computed as follows:

Current assets ~ $812,600
Current liabilities — $499,500

Current ratio: =1.63

Historically, the rule of thumb has been that a current ratio below 2.0 suggests the pos-
sibility of liquidity problems. However, advances in information technology have enabled
companies to be much more effective in minimizing the need to hold cash, inventories, and
other current assets. As a result, current ratios for successful companies these days are fre-
quently less than 1.0. Note that this is just a rule of thumb; proper evaluation of a company’s
liquidity involves comparing the current year’s current ratio to current ratios in prior years
and comparing the company’s current ratio to those for other companies in the same industry.

Minimum current ratio requirements are frequently included in loan agreements. A typi-
cal agreement might state that if the current ratio falls below a certain level, the lender can
declare the loan in default and require immediate repayment. This type of minimum current
ratio restriction forces the borrower to maintain its liquidity and gives the lender an increased
assurance that the loan will be repaid. When loan covenant restrictions are violated, the
lender usually waives the right to immediate repayment, sometimes in exchange for a rene-
gotiation of the loan at a higher interest rate. Exhibit 3-9 contains the 2011 current ratios
for selected companies. Note that eBay and Microsoft have higher current ratios relative to
the other companies. This is an indication of the need for liquidity in technology industries.
As technology changes, companies in that industry need to be able to quickly adapt, and
that ability requires liquidity. Note also the low current ratio of Disney, for example. At first
glance you might think that 1.14 is dangerously low. Before jumping to that conclusion,
think about what Disney’s current assets are. Disney has cash and accounts receivable but
very little inventory. It makes movies, and it runs theme parks, and these ventures require
very little inventory. Therefore, the “secret” for Disney’s low current ratio is its ability to col-
lect its receivables quickly and reinvest the money into long-term productive assets.

Another ratio used to measure a firm’s liquidity is the quick ratio, also known as the
acid-test ratio. This ratio is computed as total quick assets divided by total current liabili-
ties, where quick assets are defined as cash, investment securities, and net receivables. For
Techtronics, the quick ratio is computed as follows:

Cash + Securities + Receivables _ $483,700

uick ratio: =
Q Current liabilities $499,500

=0.97

Copyright 2013 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s).
Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.



Exhibit 3-9 | Selected 2011 Ratios

Coca-Cola Disney McDonald’s Microsoft  eBay
Current ratio 1.05 1.14 1.25 2.60 1.88
Debt ratio 60.09% 45.30% 56.38%  47.49% 34.37%

Asset turnover 0.58 0.57 0.82 0.64 0.43

@3 | The Balance Sheet and Notes to the Financial Statements 3-23

Asset mix—PP&E*  18.68% 33.35% 69.22% 7.51% 7.27% \H

é Return on assets 10.72% 6.66% 16.68% 21.30% 11.82%
\ll[/ Return on equity ~ 27.10% 12.86% 38.24%  40.55% 18.01% %}

* PP&E = property, plant, and equipment

© Cengage Learning 2014

The quick ratio indicates how well a firm can satisfy existing short-term obligations
with assets that can be converted into cash without difficulty. For a bank considering a
three-month loan or for a supplier considering selling to a company on short-term credit,
the quick ratio yields information about the likelihood it will be repaid. Techtronics’ quick
ratio indicates it has $0.97 in quick assets for every $1.00 in current liabilities.

A lender wants to lend on a short-term basis to a company with high current and
quick ratios, thus ensuring repayment. However, maintaining an excessively high current
ratio is an inefficient use of company resources. Having excess investment securities will
increase a company’s current and quick ratios, giving comfort to lenders, but the resources
used to buy those excess securities might be better utilized by buying trucks or buildings,
paying off debts, or if nothing else, returning the cash to the owners for their personal use.
A common characteristic of almost all financial ratios is that a ratio that deviates too much
from the norm, either above or below, indicates a possible problem.'¢

Caution

current asset levels low.

A current ratio that is too high can also indicate trouble. Excess current assets,
resulting in a high current ratio, can represent an inefficient use of resources.
Cash management and just-in-time inventory systems are designed to keep

Overall Leverage Comparing the
amount of liabilities to the amount of as-
sets held by a business indicates the extent
to which borrowed funds have been used
to leverage the owners’ investments and in-
crease the size of the firm. One frequently
used measure of leverage is the debt ratio,
computed as total liabilities divided by total

assets. The debt ratio is frequently used as
an indicator of the overall ability of a company to repay its debts. An intuitive interpretation
of the debt ratio is that it represents the proportion of borrowed funds used to acquire the
company’s assets. For Techtronics, the debt ratio is computed as follows:

Total liabilities  $1,098,700
Total assets ~— $1,952,600

Debt ratio: = 0.56

In other words, Techtronics borrowed 56% of the money it needed to buy its assets. The
higher the debt ratio, the higher the likelihood that some of the debt might not be repaid. The
general rule of thumb is that debt ratios should be below 50%. Again, this varies widely from
one industry to the next. A bank, for example, could easily have a debt ratio in excess of 95%.

16 Working capital management involves making sure a company does not have excess resources tied up in the form of cash, receivables,
and inventory. An example is a just-in-time inventory system. An excess $1 million in working capital implicitly increases finance charges
by $100,000 per year if the interest rate on borrowing is 10%.
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See Exhibit 3-9; eBay has the lowest debt ratio, with each of the other companies
having a debt ratio above 45%. As a general rule, companies in mature industries have a
higher amount of debt than in newer industries because the proven track records of the
companies make lenders willing to provide more debt financing.

Asset Mix A large fraction of a bank’s assets is in financial investments, either loans
receivable or securities. Property, plant, and equipment (PP&E) composes only a small frac-
tion of a bank’s assets. By comparison, the bulk of the assets of an electric utility is property,
plant, and equipment. A company’s asset mix, the proportion of total assets in each asset
category, is determined to a large degree by the industry in which the company operates.

Asset mix is calculated by dividing each asset amount by the sum of total assets. For
example, to determine what fraction of Techtronics’ assets is buildings and equipment,
perform the following calculation:

Buildings and equipment  $732,900 038
Total assets T $1,952,600

Techtronics holds 38% of its assets in the form of buildings and equipment. To determine
whether this proportion is appropriate requires looking at the comparable number for other
firms in Techtronics’ industry. We can tell, for example, that Techtronics is probably not an elec-
tric utility, since property, plant, and equipment is 62% ($20,874,000,000/$33,498,000,000)
of the total assets of Consolidated Edison in 2008 (see Exhibit 3-6). Similar computations
and comparisons can be done with any of the asset categories.

Not surprisingly, McDonald’s has a large amount of its assets invested in property,
plant, and equipment, as shown in Exhibit 3-9. It is also not surprising that Microsoft and
eBay have very little invested in these long-term assets. What is somewhat surprising is
Coca-Cola’s low level of investment in PP&E. As mentioned at the beginning of the chap-
ter, however, many of Coca-Cola’s bottling facilities are owned by subsidiaries and are not
reported on Coca-Cola’s balance sheet.

Relationships Between Balance Sheet and
Income Statement Amounts

Financial ratios comparing balance sheet and income statement amounts reveal informa-
tion about a firm’s overall profitability and about how efficiently the assets are being used.
For this discussion, the following income statement data will be assumed for Techtronics:
sales, $4,000,000; net income, $150,000.

Efficiency Techtronics’ balance sheet reveals that it has $1,952,600 in assets. Are those
assets being used efficiently? A financial ratio that gives an overall measure of company
efficiency is called asset turnover and is computed as follows:

Sales _$4,000,000
Total assets ~  $1,952,600

Asset turnover: =2.05

Techtronics’ asset turnover ratio of 2.05 means that for each dollar of assets, Techtron-
ics is able to generate $2.05 in sales. The higher the asset turnover ratio, the more efficient
the company is at using its assets to generate sales.

As indicated in Exhibit 3-9, McDonald’s is the most efficient of the five companies in using
assets to generate sales. Every dollar of McDonald’s assets generates $0.82 in annual revenue.

Similar computations can be made for specific assets. The general principle is that in
measuring whether a company has too much or too little of an asset, the amount of that
asset is compared to an income statement item indicating the amount of business activity
related to that asset. For example, evaluating the level of inventory involves comparing
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the inventory level to cost of goods sold for the year. Specific efficiency ratios for accounts
receivable, inventory, and fixed assets will be described in the appropriate chapters later
in the text.

Overall Profitability Techtronics’ net income was $150,000. Is that a lot? It depends.
If Techtronics is a small, garage computer-repair business, net income of $150,000 is a lot.
If Techtronics is a multinational consumer electronics firm, net income of only $150,000
is terrible. To appropriately measure profitability, net income must be compared to some
measure of the size of the investment. Two financial ratios used to assess a firm’s overall
profitability are return on assets and return on equity. Companies purchase assets with
the intent of using them to generate profits. Return on assets is computed as follows:
Net income $150,000

Return on assets: Total assets ~ $1,952,600 =7.7%

Techtronics’ return on assets of 7.7% means that one dollar of assets generated 7.7
cents in net income. As with all ratios, this number must be evaluated in light of Techtron-
ics’ return on assets in previous years and the ratios for other firms in the same industry.

Note from Exhibit 3-9 that Microsoft stands out in terms of profitability, with Disney
bringing up the rear. The 21.3% return on assets earned by Microsoft is unusually high.

One important factor not included when using return on assets to evaluate profit-
ability is the effect of leverage. The stockholders of Techtronics did not have to invest the
entire $1,952,600 needed to purchase the assets; they leveraged their investment through
borrowing. Return on equity (ROE) measures the percentage return on the actual invest-
ment made by stockholders and is computed as follows:

Return on equity: Net income __$150,000 —17.6%
AU “Stockholders’ equity — $853,900  17:0%

Techtronics stockholders earned 17.6
cents for each dollar of equity investment.

Caution

Computing return on equity is like taking
a child’s temperature: This one number is a
summary indicator of the health of the entity.

A low ROE tells you only that a company is sick. Other financial ratios are the As a rule of thumb, companies with return
diagnostic tools used to pinpoint the exact nature of the illness. on equity significantly below 15% are doing

poorly. Companies with return on equity con-
sistently above 15% are doing well.

Coca-Cola demonstrates how the effective use of debt can be of benefit to sharehold-
ers. Coca-Cola’s shareholders earned a 27.1% return on their investment in 2011 (Exhibit
3-9). Contrast that with eBay’s return of 18.01%. Also note that because eBay has a small
debt ratio, there is a relatively small difference between the company’s return on assets
and its return on equity.

Proposed New Balance Sheet Format

The FASB and the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) are currently engaged in a
long-term project to restructure the way information is presented in the financial statements.'”
The focus of this effort is to clearly separate financial statement items that are related to a
company’s business activities from items that are related to other activities such as income taxes
or financing. To give you an idea of what a restructured balance sheet might look like under
this new proposal, the Techtronics balance sheet in Exhibit 3-8 has been reformatted and now
appears in Exhibit 3-10.

17 "Preliminary Views on Financial Statement Presentation” (Norwalk, CT: Financial Accounting Standards Board, October 16, 2008), and
"STAFF DRAFT of an Exposure Draft on Financial Statement Presentation” (Norwalk, CT: Financial Accounting Standards Board, July 1, 2010).
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Techtronics Corporation
Balance Sheet (restructured according to FASB-IASB proposal)

December 31, 2015

BUSINESS
Operating
Current assets:

Receivables (less allowance for bad debts)..................coooiiiit $ 363,700

N2 (o [ 296,000

Prepaid eXPENSES ..\ttt 32,900
Total ShOrt-term assets . .........c.euniuein et eaennes $ 692,600

5T Vo $ 76,300

Buildings and equipment

(net of accumulated depreciation
Of $228,600) . ..ottt et 732,900

INtanNgible assets . ...t 165,000

Other [oNg-term assetsS. . ... vttt aaans 37,800
Total loNg-termM @SSELS . ..o\ttt e ettt e 1,012,000

Accounts payable . .......oo it $(312,700)

el (U [T =)o T=] 1Y (46,200)

Other current liabilities. . .....oooi i e (28,600)
Total short-term liabilities. . ......oonei e (387,500)

Other long-term liabilities ...........coo it (72,500)
Net Operating @ssets. ..........ouiurneeirietieeeie et eeieeaeniaaenns $1,244,600
Investing

Investment securities (short-term)..........cocoiiiiiiiiiiiii ... $ 67,350

Investments (IoNg-term). .. .....oueuii ittt 128,000
Total investing @ssets . ..........o.iuiniii it 195,350
NET BUSINESS ASSETS . ...\ttt ettt e e e e e $1,439,950
FINANCING
FINANCING @SSETS. vttt e et e e

LT o $ 52,650
Financing liabilities. . ........oouiiie e

NOtes PayabIe .. ...ttt S (50,000)

Current portion of long-termdebt............. ... L. (62,000)
Total short-term financing liabilities.................ccooiiii ... (112,000)

Notes payable . .......ooniuii i e $(100,000)

Bonds payable . ........oiuii e (165,000)

Long-term lease obligations........... ... (135,000)
Total long-term financing liabilities ................cooi ... (400,000)
Total financing liabilities . . ........oouiii e $ (512,000)
NET FINANCING LIABILITIES. . . .. ..ottt e e e e e e ene e (459,350)
INCOME TAXES

Deferred tax liability ........ ... i (126,700)
L 3 $ 853,900
EQUITY
COMMON STOCK . .+ ettt et ettt e e et e eeans $(170,000)
Additional paid-in capital...........coi it (375,000)
Retained arnings ... ..o.ueiei ettt (308,900)
TOTAL EQUITY ..ottt ettt ettt e et e e et e e e e eans $ (853,900)

© Cengage Learning 2014
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WHY The notes to the financial
statements contain information
relating to assumptions made,
accounting methods applied, and
other information relevant to those
using the financial statements. Users
must understand this information

in order to properly interpret the
numbers contained in the financial
statements.

HOW the following important
information is included in the finan-
cial statement notes: A description
of the accounting policies, details

of summary totals, disclosure of
significant items that fail to meet the
recognition criteria, and supplemen-
tal information required by FASB and
SEC standards.
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Take a look at Exhibit 3-10 and note the following.

e The balance sheet contains four major sections: business, financing, income taxes,
and equity. For a company that has decided to cease some of its operations, a fifth
section would include the assets and liabilities related to “discontinued operations.”

e Items related to activities associated with a company’s financial operations (making
investments and borrowing money) are reported separately from items related to the
actual day-to-day function of the business. Responsibility for these items belongs to
the treasury and financial people in the company, not to the people conducting the
actual business operations.

e Items related to income taxes are also highlighted and reported separately. One way to
think of this is that the people who run the business on a daily basis don’t have anything to
do with filing the income tax returns, planning income tax strategy, and so forth.

e This format makes it a little difficult to add up the traditional measures of total as-
sets and total liabilities. The proposed restructuring would also require supplemental
disclosure of these traditional numbers.

Under the current plan (as of June 2012), this proposed restructuring of the financial
statements, which will also impact the income statement and the statement of cash flows,
is expected to be discussed by the two accounting standards boards in 2012 and 2013
after other, more urgent issues (such as revenue recognition and the accounting for leases)
are completed. Of course, lots could happen between now and then. But there is a strong
sentiment for restructuring the financial statements to highlight a company’s core business.
So, take a good look at Exhibit 3-10: It could be your first look at the future.

Notes to the Financial Statements

e Recognize the importance of the notes to the financial statements, and outline the types of disclosures made
in the notes.

The basic financial statements do not provide all of the information desired by users.
Among other things, creditors and investors need to know what methods of accounting
were used by the company to arrive at the balances in the accounts. Sometimes the addi-
tional information desired is descriptive and is reported in narrative form. In other cases,
additional numerical data are reported. To interpret the numbers contained in the financial
statements and make useful comparisons with other companies, one must be able to read
the notes and understand the assumptions applied.

The following types of notes are typically included by management as support to the
basic financial statements.

e Summary of significant accounting policies.

¢ Additional information (both numerical and descriptive) to support summary totals
found on the financial statements, usually the balance sheet. This is the most common
type of note used.

¢ Information about items that are not reported on the basic statements because the
items fail to meet the recognition criteria but are still considered to be significant to
users in their decision making.

¢ Supplementary information required by the FASB or the SEC to fulfill the full disclo-
sure principle.
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These notes are considered to be an integral part of the financial statements and, unless
specifically excluded, are covered by the auditor’s opinion.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

GAAP requires that information about the accounting principles and policies followed
in arriving at the amounts in the financial statements be disclosed to the users. The FASB
Accounting Standards Codification contains the following statement:

Information about the accounting policies adopted by an entity is essential for financial state-
ment users. When financial statements that are issued . . . purport to present fairly financial
position, cash flows, and results of operations in accordance with generally accepted account-
ing principles (GAAP), a description of all significant accounting policies of the entity shall be
included as an integral part of the financial statements.'®

Examples of the required disclosures of accounting policies include those relating
to subsidiaries that have been included in the consolidated statements, depreciation
methods (is straight-line used?), inventory valuation method (FIFO, LIFO, or something
else?), implementation of any accounting changes, and special revenue recognition prac-
tices. This information is usually included as the initial note or as a separate summary
preceding the notes to the financial statements. The summary of significant accounting
policies for The Walt Disney Company is presented in Notes 2 and 3 to the company’s
2011 financial statements. Much of the discussion is devoted to new accounting stand-
ards released by the FASB during the preceding year. Companies are required to outline
the new standards that they are adopting for the first time. For example, in 2011 Disney
reported that it had implemented a new FASB rule regarding the timing of the reporting
of revenue from contracts that contain multiple elements. Companies are required to
outline what impact, if any, the future adoption of new accounting standards will have
on their financial statements.

Additional Information to Support Summary Totals

In order to prepare a balance sheet that is brief enough to be understandable but com-
plete enough to meet the needs of users, notes are added that provide either quantita-
tive or narrative information to support the postretirement amounts. For example, only
summary totals for property, plant, and equipment and long-term debt are given in the
balance sheet itself; the breakdown of these two items by category is usually given in
the notes. Most large firms also have extended notes relating to leases, income taxes,
and postemployment benefits. If a firm has entered into long-term leases, the length of
the leases and the required future payments are outlined in a note. The income tax note

FY!

identifies the major areas of difference
between a company’s financial account-
ing and tax accounting records. The tax
note is also the place one has to look to

Financial statements in the United Kingdom are usually much more con- find out what a company’s actual income
densed than U.S. financial statements. For example, all current assets and
current liabilities are often summed and reported as one net number. The
details are given in the notes.

tax bill is. The postretirement benefit note
describes a company’s pension plan and
plan for coverage of retiree medical ben-
efits. Examination of this note reveals the

18 FASB ASC paragraph 235-10-50-1.
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large amount of information that underlies the single summary numbers recognized in
the balance sheet. Examples of these are Note 10 (income taxes) and Note 11 (pensions)
to Disney’s 2011 financial statements. Disney also includes notes detailing the summary
totals for other assets (Note 14) and borrowings (Note 9).

Information About Items Not Included in
Financial Statements

As discussed in Chapter 1, items included in the financial statements must meet certain
recognition criteria. Even though an item might not meet the criteria for recognition in the
statements, information concerning the item might be relevant to users. Loss contingencies
are good examples of this type of item. As discussed earlier, if the probability of paying
a contingent liability is estimated as “possible” or if the contingent liability is “probable
but not reasonably estimable,” the contingency should not be recognized but should be
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The information provided should include
as much data as possible to assist the user in evaluating the risk of the loss contingency.
Along these lines, most large companies have an interesting note describing the lawsuits
outstanding against them.

Conceptually, disclosure should not be an alternative to recognition. In other words,
if an item meets the recognition criteria given in Chapter 1, it should be included in the
financial statements themselves, not just disclosed in a note. However, recall that the
FASB’s standard-setting process has been described as a “balancing act” between concep-
tual purity and business practicality. One of the tools in this balancing act is disclosure.
Two examples are the accounting for stock-based compensation and for derivative finan-
cial instruments.

e In 1993, the FASB tentatively decided to require firms to recognize as compensation
expense the value of stock options given to employees. This decision caused an angry
uproar in the business community. After deliberation, the FASB decided to use note
disclosure as a compromise; recognition of the stock option values was not required;

the values needed only be disclosed in a

Stop &

note. After this experience with disclosure,
in 2004 the FASB again decided to require
firms to recognize a stock option expense
(starting in 2006)."

Inanalyzing a company, do users care whether they get the information from

the financial statements themselves or from the notes? The answer to this

question is “yes, in some circumstances.’ To understand this better, identify

in which ONE of the following circumstances the financial analyst would be

MOST LIKELY to prefer recognition over disclosure.

a) The analyst is performing a detailed financial statement analysis on a
single company.

b) The analyst is performing a detailed financial statement comparison of
two companies.

c) The analyst is performing a summary analysis of 50 different companies
in 12 different industries.

°

With derivative financial instruments
(e.g., options, futures, swaps, and other
exotic financial contracts), the FASB re-
sponded to a public demand (backed by
requests from the SEC) for more infor-
mation about derivatives by requiring
extensive disclosure.?’ This disclosure
standard was a stopgap measure while
the FASB studied the issue further with
the view of establishing a recognition

standard (which was accomplished in
1998).

19 FASB ASC Topic 218—Compensation-Stock Compensation, originally found in pre-Codification Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No. 123 and No. 123(R).

20 FASB ASC Section 815-10-50, originally found in pre-Codification Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 119.
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One of the accounting controversies involved in the Enron scandal that exploded in
2001 and 2002 was the inadequacy of the disclosure in the notes to Enron’s financial
statements. For example, the existence of the controversial LJM2 investment partnerships,
which were used to “hedge” (some would say “hide”) $1 billion in Enron investment
losses, was not disclosed anywhere in Enron’s financial statements notes and was outlined
in just three brief paragraphs in the company’s proxy statement (which is sent to all share-
holders in advance of the annual shareholder meeting).

Supplementary Information

The FASB and SEC require that supplementary information must be reported in separate
schedules. For example, the FASB requires the disclosure of quarterly information for certain
companies. While the information in these notes is important to the users, it may not be cov-
ered by the auditors’ opinion. A note that is not covered by the opinion is marked “unaudited.”

Another category of supplementary information is business segment information. For
companies with geographically dispersed operations, this segment information outlines
the results for the different geographic segments. For example, Coca-Cola reports that
only 44.2% (2011) of its net operating revenues come from North America. For firms
with diverse product lines (such as PepsiCo, with substantial operations in soft drinks
and snack foods), segment information for the different product lines is presented.?!

In addition to FASB requirements, the SEC also requires the disclosure of supple-
mental information about financial statement information for those publicly traded firms
falling under the SEC’s jurisdiction. For example, if the level of property, plant, and equip-
ment is significant, the SEC requires a firm to provide details about changes in gross prop-
erty, plant, and equipment and about changes in accumulated depreciation. The SEC also
requires disclosure of the details of the changes in short-term borrowing and the average
interest rate on short-term loans during the period.

Subsequent Events

Although a balance sheet is prepared as of a given date, it is usually between one
and three months before the financial statements are issued and made available to
external users. For example, the SEC requires large publicly traded companies to file
their financial statements within 60 days of the fiscal year-end. During this time, the
accounts are analyzed, adjusting entries are prepared, and for most companies, an
independent audit is completed. During this “subsequent period,” business doesn’t
shut down while the accountants huddle over the books. Business continues, and
events could take place that have an impact upon the balance sheet and the other basic
financial statements for the preceding year. Some of these events could even affect the
amounts reported in the statements. These events are referred to in the accounting
literature as subsequent events or post-balance sheet events. This subsequent period is
illustrated in Exhibit 3-11.

Two different types of subsequent events require consideration by management and
evaluation by the independent auditor.??

e Those that require retroactive recognition and thus affect the amounts to be reported
in the financial statements for the preceding accounting period.
e Those that do not require recognition but should be disclosed in the notes to the fi-

nancial statements.

21 FASB ASC Topic 280—Segment Reporting.
22 FASB ASC Topic 855—Subsequent Events.
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Exhibit 3-11 | Subsequent Event Interval

Balance Date Statements
Sheet Date Issued
Financial Statement Period Subsequent
Period

© Cengage Learning 2014

The first type of subsequent event usually provides additional information that
affects the amounts included in the financial statements. The reported amounts in sev-
eral accounts, such as Allowance for Bad Debts, Warranty Liability, and Income Taxes
Payable, reflect estimates of the expected value. These estimates are based on informa-
tion available as of a given date. If a subsequent event provides new information that
shows that the conditions existing as of the balance sheet date were different from those
assumed when making the estimate, a change in the amount to be reported in the finan-
cial statements is required.

To illustrate this type of event, assume that a month after the balance sheet date, the com-
pany learns that a major customer has filed for bankruptcy. This information was not known
as of the balance sheet date, and only ordinary provisions were made in determining the Allow-
ance for Bad Debts. In all likelihood, the customer was already in financial difficulty at the
balance sheet date, but it was not general knowledge. The filing of bankruptcy reveals that the
conditions at the balance sheet date were different than those assumed in preparing the state-
ments, and a further adjustment to both the balance sheet and income statement is indicated.

The second type of subsequent event does not reveal a difference in the conditions as
of the balance sheet date but involves an event that is considered so significant that its dis-
closure is highly relevant to readers of the financial statements. These events usually affect
the subsequent year’s financial statements and thus may affect decisions currently being
made by users. Examples of such events include a catastrophe that destroys material por-
tions of a company’s assets, acquisition of a major subsidiary, sale of significant amounts
of bonds or capital stock, and losses on receivables when the cause of the loss occurred
subsequent to the balance sheet date. Information about this type of event is included in
the notes to the financial statements and serves to notify the reader that the subsequent
event could affect the predictive value of the statements.

The most common types of subsequent events reported by companies include events
associated with debt refinancing, debt reduction, or incurring significant amounts of new
debt; post-balance sheet developments associated with litigation; and changes in the status
of a proposed merger or acquisition. Of course, many business events that occur during
this subsequent period are related only to the subsequent year and therefore have no
impact on the preceding year’s financial statements.

As an example of the types of disclosure associated with subsequent events, the follow-
ing items were discussed in Note 35 to the financial statements of General Motors dated
December 31, 2009:

e A discussion of the financial statement impact of currency revaluations conducted by
the Venezuelan government in early 2010

e The February 2010 sale of 1% of a joint venture (reducing GM’s ownership to 49%)
to a Hong Kong subsidiary of Shanghai Automotive Industry Corp (SAIC)—in es-
sence, GM gave up joint control in exchange for some cash
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WHY Before users can appropri-
ately use the information contained
in the balance sheet, they must
understand what the information
implies and, just as importantly,
what it does not imply.

HOW The balance sheet often
does not provide an accurate reflec-
tion of the value of a business.
Reasons for this include the use of
historical cost instead of current
values, omission of some economic
assets from the balance sheet, and
failure to make adjustments for infla-
tion. The difference between balance
sheet value and market value is
captured in the book-to-market
ratio (book value of equity divided
by market value of equity), which is
usually less than 1.0.

P1 | Foundations of Financial Accounting

e The February 2010 failure to complete a deal to sell HUMMER to a Chinese company
e The successful February 2010 sale of Saab to a Dutch company
e The progress of talks with the German government about the future of Opel

e The March 2010 partial repayment of loans received from the U.S. and Canadian
governments

As you can see from these subsequent events notes, the period from the balance sheet date
of December 31, 2009, to the financial statement issuance date on April 7, 2010, was a
busy one for General Motors. (Note: Because of the company’s ongoing restructuring,
it was allowed to delay its financial statement issuance beyond the usual requirement of
60 days for companies publicly traded in the United States.)

International Accounting for Subsequent Events The IASB has released a stan-
dard, IAS 10, dealing specifically with the accounting for subsequent events. This stan-
dard, which was originally issued in September 1974 and was revised in December 2003,
is essentially the same as the accounting employed in the United States. Specifically, IAS
10 requires that companies adjust the reported amounts of assets and liabilities if events
occurring after the balance sheet date provide additional information about conditions
that existed at the balance sheet date. In addition, IAS 10 requires that disclosure be made
of significant subsequent events even if those events do not impact the valuations reported
in the balance sheet.

Limitations of the Balance Sheet

e Understand the major limitations of the balance sheet.

Notwithstanding its usefulness, the balance sheet has some serious limitations. External
users often need to know a company’s worth. The balance sheet, however, does not gener-
ally reflect the current value of a business. A favorite ratio among followers of the stock
market is the book-to-market ratio, computed as total book value of common equity
divided by total market value of common equity. The book-to-market ratio reflects the
difference between the balance sheet value of a company and the company’s actual market
value.?> A company’s book-to-market ratio is almost always less than 1.0 because many
assets are reported at historical cost, which is usually less than market value, and other
assets are not included in the balance sheet at all. In addition, many intangible economic
assets, such as a reputation for superior products or customer service, are not recognized
in the balance sheet. Accordingly, the balance sheet numbers often very poorly reflect what
a company is worth.

The graph in Exhibit 3-12 shows the average book-to-market ratio, from 1924 through
2008, of the 30 companies making up the Dow Jones Industrial Average. Note the fairly
steady decrease from an average book-to-market ratio of about 1.0 in 1980 to about 0.3
in 2008. This means that, in 2008, the accounting book value of the equity of the average
company included in the Dow Jones Industrial Average was just 30% as large as the mar-
ket value of the equity of that company. This low book-to-market ratio reflects the increas-

23 Research into the behavior of stock prices has found that firms with high book-to-market ratios tend to outperform the market in future
years. See Eugene F. Fama and Kenneth R. French, “The Cross-Section of Expected Stock Returns,” The Journal of Finance, June 1992, p. 427.
No one is sure why high book-to-market-ratio firms outperform the market. One suggestion is that the accounting numbers partially reflect
fundamental underlying value, and a high book-to-market ratio indicates that the market is currently undervaluing a company.
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Exhibit 3-12 | Average Book-to-Market Ratio of Companies Listed in the Dow Jones Industrial Average: 1924-2008
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ing importance of unreported, intangible assets as service and technology companies have
become a more significant part of the U.S. economy.

A related problem with the balance sheet is the instability of the dollar, the standard
accounting measuring unit in the United States. Because of general price changes in the
economy, the dollar does not maintain a constant purchasing power, yet the historical
costs of resources and equities shown on the balance sheet are not adjusted for changes
in the purchasing power of the measuring unit. The result is a balance sheet that reflects
assets, liabilities, and equities in terms of unequal purchasing power units. Some elements,
for example, may be stated in terms of 1980 dollars and some in terms of current-year
dollars. The variations in purchasing power of the amounts reported in the balance sheet
make comparisons among companies, and even within a single company, less meaningful.

An additional limitation of the balance sheet, also related to the need for comparabil-
ity, is that all companies do not classify and report all like items similarly. For example,
titles and account classifications vary; some companies provide considerably more detail
than others; and some companies with apparently similar transactions report them dif-
ferently. Such differences make comparisons difficult and diminish the potential value of
balance sheet analysis.

As mentioned, some entity resources and obligations are not reported on the bal-
ance sheet. For example, as mentioned at the beginning of the chapter in connection with
Coca-Cola, the company’s reputation and worldwide market presence are among its most
valuable resources, yet those economic assets are not shown on the balance sheet because
measuring them in monetary terms is quite difficult. The assumptions of the traditional
accounting model identified in Chapter 1, specifically the requirements of arm’s-length
transactions or events measurable in monetary terms, add to the objectivity of balance
sheet disclosures but at the same time cause some information to be omitted that is likely
to be relevant to certain users’ decisions.

One other limitation of the balance sheet is the increasing use of off-balance-sheet financ-
ing. In fact, a key aspect of the famous Enron accounting scandal was Enron’s creative use of
financing arrangements (with exotic names such as Rhythms and Raptor) to avoid report-
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ing large amounts of debt in the company’s balance sheet. In an off-balance-sheet financing
arrangement, a company borrows money to purchase an asset or to fund an activity (such as
research) but is able to take advantage of the accounting rules to avoid reporting a balance
sheet obligation for the borrowed funds. For example, a section in Chapter 12 describes how
companies use joint ventures to achieve off-balance-sheet financing. In addition, Chapter 15
demonstrates how companies can use leases to finance asset purchases through borrowing but
avoid showing the associated debt on the balance sheet.

OSOLUTIONS TO OPENING SCENARIO QUESTIONS

Stop &

1.

The original Coca-Cola trademark is a"homegrown’intangible
asset. Traditional accounting in the United States does not
report an estimated value for homegrown intangibles in the
balance sheet. The trademark values that are reported in
the balance sheet of The Coca-Cola Company are values for
trademarks that the company has purchased over the years,
such as Minute Maid.

Total liabilities as of December 31, 2011, are $48.053 billion
($24.283 billion for current liabilities + $13.656 billion for
long-term debt + $5.420 billion for other liabilities + $4.694
billion for deferred income taxes). Note that this amount

of reported liabilities does not reflect the amount of unre-
ported liabilities of the Coca-Cola bottlers of which The
Coca-Cola Company owns a substantial percentage.

SOLUTIONS

(Page 3-5) The correct answer is C. Actually, defining assets
and liabilities in terms of legal statutes would severely limit the
FASB's influence. One of the key roles of the FASB is to apply
the definitions in the conceptual framework to determine
when assets and liabilities should be recognized. Legalistic
definitions would take this exercise out of the FASB's hands
and transfer it to the lawmakers responsible for contract law.

(Page 3-12)

(1) Afinancial analyst trying to compare the company’s core
business with the core businesses of similar compa-
nies—Classification (b). This classification allows the
analyst to compare the assets and liabilities associated
with the primary lines of business of various companies.

(2)  AUS. congressperson concerned about the relocation of
operations overseas—Classification (a). This classification
allows the congressperson to see how much of a com-
pany’s assets and liabilities are located outside the United
States. The congressperson would also be able to see the
trend over time.

(3)  Ananalyst trying to estimate the current market value of
a company—_Classification (). This classification allows
the analyst to see what fraction of a company’s assets is

3. Asof December 31,2011, current assets total $25.497 bil-

lion, and current liabilities total $24.283 billion. All other
things being equal, a banker making a short-term loan to
a company would prefer current assets of that company
to be much more than current liabilities. The historical
rule of thumb has been that the desired level of current
assets is twice as much as current liabilities. If this were
the case, the banker would have a greater likelihood of
having the short-term loan repaid because the borrow-
ing company already has enough current assets to be
able to repay all of its existing current liabilities. In the
case of Coca-Cola, with a long history of generating cash
from operations, a banker would take some comfort from
its track record.

not reported at current fair value. This gives the analyst
an idea of how much the company’s market value might
vary from its reported balance sheet value.

(Page 3-19) The correct answer is B. Total assets is the sum

of current assets and long-term (fixed) assets. For British
Telecommunications as of March 31, 2011, the amount of
total assets is £23,540 million (£19,609 million 4+ £3,931 mil-
lion). Note that this is not the same total amount shown in
the balance sheet—the balance sheet amount is total assets
minus current liabilities.

(Page 3-29) The correct answer is C. When the analyst is doing

a detailed analysis of one or two companies, then he or she
can make any desired financial statement adjustments using
note disclosure. Such adjustments might be necessary to make
a company comparable to some benchmark or to make the
financial statements of two different companies comparable.
However, these detailed adjustments using note disclosure
become expensive and time consuming when many compa-
nies are involved. In such a case, the analyst prefers to have all of
the relevant data summarized and recognized in the financial
statements themselves.
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SOLUTION TO USING THE FASB'S CODIFICATION

In FASB ASC 210-20-05-1, we read the following: “This Sub- This “right of setoff” doesn't describe the situation with the doc-
topic provides criteria for offsetting amounts related to certain tors and their $350,000 bank loan. The “right of setoff” would
contracts and provides guidance on presentation. It is a general  exist if | owe you $1,000, and you owe me $1,000, and my
principle of accounting that the offsetting of assets and liabilities  contract with you allowed me to cancel my debt to you by “set-
in the balance sheet is improper except if a right of setoff exists”  ting off”the amount you owe to me. | could then offset those

The “right of setoff"is defined as follows: “A right of setoffisa ~ @mounts and eliminate both from my balance sheet.

debtor’s legal right, by contract or otherwise, to discharge all ~ To make a proper balance sheet for the medical practice, you

or a portion of the debt owed to another party by applying need to include the existing $350,000 loan ... unless the doctors
against the debt an amount that the other party owes to the  want to pull some of that cash out of their personal accounts and
debtor” repay the loan.

Review Cha pter 3 Learning Objectives

Describe the specific elements of the balance sheet (assets, Identify the different formats used to present balance
liabilities, and owners’ equity), and prepare a balance sheet sheet data.
with assets and liabilities properly classified into current

. In most industries in the United States, assets and liabili-
and noncurrent categories.

ties are listed in order of their liquidity with current items
A balance sheet is a listing of a company’s assets, liabili- first. For some industries, particularly those with large
ties, and equities as of a certain point in time. investments in long-term assets, current items are not
listed first. In addition, in other countries, the format of the

Assets are probable future economic benefits ob- :
balance sheet can vary widely.

tained or controlled as a result of past transactions or
events. Analyze a company’s performance and financial position

o : : through the computation of financial ratios.
Liabilities are probable future sacrifices of economic . .

benefits arising from present obligations to transfer Balance sheet information is most often analyzed by
assets or provide services in the future as a result of looking at relationships between different balance sheet
past transactions or events. amounts and relationships between balance sheet and

income statement amounts. Relationships between

Equity is the net assets of an entity, that is, the amount X ) ) ) :
quity Y financial statement amounts are called financial ratios.

that remains after total liabilities have been deducted
from total assets. Recognize the importance of the notes to the financial

. L statements, and outline the types of disclosures made in
For balance sheet reporting, assets and liabilities are yp

often separated into current and noncurrent categories. the notes.

Current items are those expected to be used or paid within The information in the financial statements is supported by
one year or within the normal operating cycle, whichever is explanatory notes. The notes include a description of the
longer. accounting policies, details of summary totals, disclosure

When classifying assets and liabilities, the key consid- of significant items that fail to meet the recognition criteria,
erations are how management intends to use an asset and and supplemental information required by FASB and SEC
when it expects to pay a liability. standards.

Equity arises from owner investment, is increased by net Note disclosure also sometimes relates to subse-
income, and is decreased by losses and by distributions to quent events. Subsequent events are significant events
owners. Equity is also impacted by stock repurchases, unre- occurring between the balance sheet date and the date
alized security gains and losses, and foreign exchange rate the financial statements are issued. Subsequent events
fluctuations. come in two varieties: those requiring immediate retro-
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sion of some assets from the balance sheet, and failure to
make adjustments for inflation. The balance sheet does not
measure the market value of a company. The difference
between balance sheet value and market value is captured
in the book-to-market ratio (book value of equity divided by
market value of equity), which is usually less than 1.0.

active recognition in the financial statements and those
requiring only note disclosure.

e Understand the major limitations of the balance sheet.

The balance sheet often does not provide an accurate
reflection of the value of a business. Reasons for this include
the use of historical cost instead of current values, omis-

FASB-IASB CODIFICATION SUMMARY

Topic

FASB Accounting
Standards Codification

Original FASB
Standard

Corresponding IASB
Standard

Differences Between U.S. GAAP
and IFRS

Classified balance sheet

Section 210-10-05 par. 4
Section 210-10-45 par. 1
through 12

ARB 43 Ch., 3A par. 4-8

IAS 1 par. 60-61

No substantial differences in the
descriptions and definitions
of current assets and current
liabilities

Classification of short-term | Section 470-10-45 par. 14 SFAS No. 6 par. 10-11 IAS 1 par. 72 Under IFRS, for a short-term obli-
obligations to gation to be classified as long
be refinanced term, the refinancing must take

place by the balance sheet
date

Subsequent events Topic 855 SFAS No. 165 IAS 10 No substantial differences

Acid-test ratio 3-22 Current assets 3-7 Liquidity 3-22 Quick ratio 3-22

Additional paid-in capital 3-13
Asset mix 3-24

Assets 3-4

Asset turnover 3-24
Balance sheet 3-4
Book-to-market ratio 3-32
Callable obligation 3-10
Capital stock 3-13
Common stock 3-13
Contingent liabilities 3-12
Contributed capital 3-13
Corporations 3-13

Current liabilities 3-9

Current ratio 3-22

Debt ratio 3-23

Deferred income tax assets 3-9
Deferred income tax liability 3-11
Deficit 3-14

Derivative 3-15

Equity 3-4

Estimated liability 3-12
Financial ratios 3-22

Leverage 3-23

Liabilities 3-4

Loan covenant 3-22

Minority (noncontrolling)
interest 3-15

Objective acceleration
clause 3-10

Other comprehensive
income 3-14

Paid-in capital 3-13

Partnerships 3-13

Post-balance sheet events 3-30

Preferred stock 3-13

Proprietorships 3-13

Tutorial Activities

Tutorial Activities with author-written, content-specific feedback,

available on CengageNOW for Stice & Stice.

Retained earnings 3-13
Return on assets 3-25
Return on equity 3-25
Sinking fund 3-10
Stockholders’ (shareholders’)
equity 3-13
Subjective acceleration
clause 3-10
Subsequent events 3-30
Trading securities 3-7
Treasury stock 3-14
Working capital 3-7
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QUESTIONS

What three elements are contained in a balance sheet?

11.

12.

13.
14.
15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

2. What is the importance of the term probable in the defini-
tion of an asset?

3. ’Liabilities are obligations denominated in precise monetary
terms.” Do you agree or disagree? Explain.

4. What does the difference between current assets and cur-
rent liabilities measure?

5. What criteria are generally used (a) in classifying assets as
current? (b) in classifying liabilities as current?

6. Indicate under what circumstances each of the following
can be considered noncurrent: (a) cash and (b) receivables.

7. How can expected refinancing impact the classification of a
liability?

8. (a) Whatis a subjective acceleration clause?
(b) What is an objective acceleration clause?
(c) How do these clauses in debt instruments affect the

classification of a liability?

9. Distinguish between contingent liabilities and estimated
liabilities.

10. How do the Equity sections of proprietorships, partnerships,
and corporations differ from one another?

Practice 3-1 Balance Sheet Relationships

(0] 16 T 1= 4 A= Y= 6
Long-term labilities. .. ... o
Paid-in capital. ... .

Total assets

Current Habilities . ...

E0C 3-37

What are the three major categories in a corporation’s
Equity section?

Under what circumstances may offset balances be properly
recognized on the balance sheet?

In what order are assets usually listed in the balance sheet?
What are financial ratios?

Explain how the asset turnover ratio provides a measure of a
company’s overall efficiency.

What one financial ratio summarizes everything about the
performance of a company? How is it computed?

What are the major types of notes attached to the financial
statements?

How has the FASB used note disclosure as a tool of
compromise?

What are some examples of supplementary information
included in the notes to financial statements?

Under what circumstances does a subsequent event lead to
a journal entry for the previous reporting period?

“The balance sheet does not reflect the value of a business.”
Do you agree or disagree? Explain.

The company has assembled the following partial balance sheet data.

$30,000
15,000
4,000
40,000
8,000

Use these data to compute the following quantities:

a) Current assets
b) Total liabilities
c) Total equity

o~ o~ o~ —

d) Retained earnings
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Practice 3-2 Working Capital

a Using the following information, compute working capital:
Cost of GOOAS SOI. . ..o $ 9,000
Accounts Payable . .. ... 2,400
Paid-In Capital . ... 1,950
CaSh L 700
Sl . 10,000
Accrued Wages Payable. .. .. oo 150
DIVIdENAS . 500
Retained Earnings (beginning) ............ oo 1,000
I Oy e 2,500

Practice 3-3 Current Assets

0 Using the following information, compute total current assets:
GOOAWIll o $ 9,000
Prepaid EXPENSES « .o 1,100
Paid-In Capital .. ... 1,750
[T 400
Property, Plant, and EQUIDMENt .. ... o 10,000
Investment Securities (trading) . ... 250
Accounts Receivable . ... .. 700
Retained Barnings. . ..o 1,000
I B0y e 4,000

Practice 3-4 Current Liabilities

° Using the following information, compute total current liabilities:
Accrued Income Taxes Payable. ... $ 9,000
Notes Payable (due in 14 months). ... 1,100
Paid-In Capital ... ..o 1,750
Treasury STOCK ... 400
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt .......... ... . 10,000
Unearned ReVENUE. . . ... o 250
Accounts Payable . ... .. 700
Retained Earnings. ... ... 1,000
Additional Paid-In Capital ... 4,000

Practice 3-5 Classification of Short-Term Loans to Be Refinanced

a The company has the following three loans payable scheduled to be repaid in June of next year. As of

December 31 of this year, identify which of the three should be classified as current and which should be
classified as noncurrent.

(@) The company intends to repay Loan A when it comes due in June. In September, the company intends
to get a new loan of equal amount from the same bank.

(b) The company intends to refinance Loan B when it comes due. The refinancing contract will be signed in
May after the financial statements for this year have been released.

(0) The company intends to refinance Loan C when it comes due. The refinancing contract will be
signed in January before the financial statements for this year have been released.
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Practice 3-6

Practice 3-7

Practice 3-8

Practice 3-9
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Callable Obligations
The company has the following three loans. As of December 31 of this year, identify which of the three should be
classified as current and which should be classified as noncurrent.

(@) OnJuly 15 of next year, Loan A will become payable on demand.

(b) Loan B is scheduled to be repaid in three years. In addition, the loan agreement specifies that if the
company’s current ratio falls below 1.5, the loan becomes payable on demand. On December 31, the
current ratio is 1.8.

() Loan Cis scheduled to be repaid in three years. In addition, the loan agreement specifies that if

the company’s “‘general financial condition deteriorates significantly, the loan becomes payable on
demand. As of December 31, it is reasonably possible that this clause will be invoked.

Contingent Liabilities
The company has the following three potential obligations. Describe how each will be reported in the
financial statements.

(@) The company has promised to make fixed pension payments to employees after they retire. The
company is not certain how long the employees will work or how long they will live after they retire.

(b) The company has been sued by a group of shareholders who claim that they were deceived by the
company’s financial reporting practices. It is possible that the company will lose this lawsuit.

(c) The company is involved in litigation over who must clean up a toxic waste site near one of the
company’s factories. It is probable, but not certain, that the company will be required to pay for the
cleanup.

Stockholders’ Equity
Using the following information, compute: (a) total contributed capital, (b) ending retained earnings, and
(c) total stockholders’ equity:

Additional Paid-In Capital, Common. ... .. $8,200
ACCOUNTS Payable . .. ... 1,300
TOtal EXPENSES . 5,650
Preferred StOCK, at Par. .. ... oo 3,450
CommON STOCK, @t Par ... 300
Sl 9,700
Treasury STOCK . ..o 375
DIVIdENAS . 950
Retained Earnings (beginning) ............ oo 6,500
Additional Paid-In Capital, Preferred .......... ... ... . 150
Stockholders’ Equity

Using the following information, compute (a) total contributed capital, (b) total accumulated other com-
prehensive income, and (c) total stockholders’ equity:

Additional Paid-In Capital, Common. . ... $9,000
CommMON STOCK, @t Par . ... 400
Cumulative Translation Adjustment (equity reduction), ending......................... 2,000
Treasury STOCK ... 700
Retained Earnings (post closing, or ending) ... 1,500
Cumulative Unrealized Gain on Available-for-Sale Securities, ending.................... 1,100
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Practice 3-10

Practice 3-11

Practice 3-12

Practice 3-13

P1 | Foundations of Financial Accounting

Format of Foreign Balance Sheet

Following is a balance sheet presented in standard U.S. format. Rearrange this balance sheet to be in stan-
dard British format. Don't worry about differences in terminology; use the U.S. labels, but present the infor-
mation in the British format.

Current Assets:

Cash. $ 500
L7 01 (0] V2 2,000
Total CUIMTENT ASSETS ..ottt $ 2,500
Noncurrent Assets:
Property, plant, and eqUIPMENT. ... oo $ 8,000
LONG-TEIM INVESTMENTS. ottt ettt e e et 1,700
Total NONCUIMENT @SSETS .\ttt $ 9,700
TOTAl BSSOTS oot $12,200
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable ... ... $ 300
Short-term loans payable. ... ... 1,100
Total current iabilities. .. ..o $ 1,400
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Long-term debt .. ... o $ 3,000
Stockholders’ Equity:
CommOoN StOCK, @t Par ... ... S 50
Additional paid-in capital.......... ... 2,000
Retained  arnings . ... ..o 5,750
Total stockholders’ equity .. ... .o S 7,800
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ............ i $12,200

Current Ratio
Use the following information to compute the current ratio:

Accounts Payable . ... $3,700
Paid-In Capital ... ... o 3,650
Cash L 750
Sl 9,500
Accrued Wages Payable. . ... .. 150
I O Y e 6,300
Quick Ratio

Use the following information to compute the quick ratio:

Long-Term Loan Payable. . ... ... $ 1,100
ACCOUNTS RECRIVADIE . oo 1,750
QAN 400
Cost Of GOOAS SOIA. . vt 10,000
Accrued Wages Payable. ... .. .. 315
I N Oy e 4,000
Debt Ratio

Use the information in Practice 3-4 to compute the debt ratio. Assume that the list includes all liability and
equity items.
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Practice 3-14

Practice 3-15

Practice 3-16

Practice 3-17

Practice 3-18

Practice 3-19

Practice 3-20

Practice 3-21

Practice 3-22

Exercise 3-23

@3 | The Balance Sheet and Notes to the Financial Statements E0OC 3-41

Debt Ratio
Use the information in Practice 3-8 to compute the debt ratio. Assume that the list includes all liability and
equity items.

Asset Mix
Use the information in Practice 3-10 to compute the proportion of total assets in each of the following as-
set categories.

(@) Inventory
(b) Property, Plant, and Equipment

Asset Mix
Use the information in Practice 3-3 to compute the proportion of total assets in each of the following asset
categories. Assume that the list contains all the asset items.

(@) Inventory
(b) Property, Plant, and Equipment

Measure of Efficiency
Refer to Practice 3-10. Sales for the year totaled $50,000. Compute asset turnover.

Return on Assets
Refer to Practice 3-10. Net income for the year totaled $3,600. Compute return on assets.

Return on Equity
Refer to Practice 3-10. Net income for the year totaled $2,000. Compute return on equity.

Accounting for Subsequent Events

On December 31, the warranty liability was estimated to be $100,000. On January 16 of the following
year, results of a study done before December 31 were received. These study results indicate that prod-
ucts would require a much larger amount of warranty repairs than expected; total warranty repairs will
be $175,000 instead of the estimated $100,000. The financial statements were issued on February 20.
What amount should be reported as warranty liability in the December 31 balance sheet?

Accounting for Subsequent Events

On December 31, the warranty liability was estimated to be $100,000. On January 16 of the following
year, it was learned that one week before, on January 9, poor-quality materials were introduced into the
production process. This mistake is expected to create an additional $87,000 in warranty repairs. The finan-
cial statements were issued on February 20. What amount should be reported as warranty liability in the
December 31 balance sheet?

Book-to-Market Ratio
Refer to Practice 3-10. As of the end of the year, the total market value of shares outstanding was $10,000.
Compute the book-to-market ratio.

EXERCISES

Balance Sheet Classification
A balance sheet contains the following classifications:

a) Current assets g) Long-term debt

(
b) Investments (h) Other noncurrent liabilities
c) Property, plant, and equipment (i) Capital stock
(j) Additional paid-in capital
e) Other noncurrent assets (

f) Current liabilities

(

(

(

(d) Intangible assets
( k) Retained earnings
(
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Exercise 3-24

Exercise 3-25

Exercise 3-26

P1 | Foundations of Financial Accounting

Indicate by letter how each of the following accounts would be classified. Place a minus sign (=) for all ac-
counts representing offset or contra balances.

1. Discount on Bonds Payable 10. Long-Term Advances to Officers

2. Stock of Subsidiary Corporation 11. Interest Receivable

3. 12% Bonds Payable (due in six 12. Preferred Stock Retirement Fund
months) 13. Trademarks

4. US. Treasury Bills 14. Allowance for Bad Debts

5. Income Taxes Payable 15. Dividends Payable

6. Sales Taxes Payable 16. Accumulated Depreciation

7. Estimated Claims under Warranties for 17. Trading Securities
Service and Replacements 18. Prepaid Rent

8. Par Value of Stock Issued and Qutstanding 19. Prepaid Insurance
9. Unearned Rent Revenue (six months in 20. Deferred Income Tax Asset
advance)

Balance Sheet Classification
State how each of the following accounts should be classified on the balance sheet.

(@) Treasury Stock () Advances to Salespersons

(b) Retained Earnings (m) Premium on Bonds Payable
(c) Vacation Pay Payable (n) Inventory

(d) Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment (o) Patents

(e) Allowance for Bad Debts (p) Unclaimed Payroll Checks

(f) Liability for Pension Payments (@) Income Taxes Payable

(g) Investment Securities (Trading) () Subscription Revenue Received in Advance
(h) Paid-In Capital in Excess of Stated Value (s) Interest Payable

() Leasehold Improvements (t) Deferred Income Tax Asset
() Goodwill (u) Tools

(k) Receivables—U.S. Government Contracts (v) Deferred Income Tax Liability

Asset Definition
Using the definition of an asset from FASB Concepts Statement No. 6, indicate whether each of the following
should be listed as an asset by Ingalls Company.

(@@ Ingalls has legal title to a coal mine in a remote location. Historically, the mine has yielded more than
$25 million in coal. Engineering estimates suggest that no additional coal is economically extractable
from the mine.

(b) Ingalls employs a team of five geologists who are widely recognized as worldwide leaders in their
field.

(c) Several years ago, Ingalls purchased a large meteor crater on the advice of a geologist who had
developed a theory claiming that vast deposits of iron ore lay underneath the crater. The crater has
no other economic use. No ore has been found, and the geologist's theory is not generally accepted.

(d) Ingalls claims ownership of a large piece of real estate in a foreign country. The real estate has a cur-
rent market value of over $225 million. The country expropriated the land 35 years ago, and no rep-
resentative of Ingalls has been allowed on the property since.

(e) Ingalls is currently negotiating the purchase of an oil field with proven oil reserves totaling 5 billion
barrels.

Liability Definition

Using the definition of a liability from FASB Concepts Statement No. 6, indicate whether each of the following

should be listed as a liability by Pauli Company.

(@) Pauli was involved in a highly publicized lawsuit last year. Pauli lost and was ordered to pay damages
of $125 million. The payment has been made.
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(b) In exchange for television advertising services that Pauli received last month, Pauli is obligated to
provide the television station with building maintenance service for the next four months.

(c) Pauli contractually guarantees to replace any of its stain-resistant carpets if they are stained and can't

be cleaned.

(d) Pauli estimates that its total payroll for the coming year will exceed $35 million.

(e) Inthe past, Pauli has suffered frequent vandalism at its storage warehouses. Pauli estimates that losses
due to vandalism during the coming year will total $3 million.

Balance Sheet Preparation

From the following list of accounts, prepare a balance sheet showing all balance sheet items properly clas-

sified. (No monetary amounts are to be recognized.)

Accounts Payable

Accounts Receivable

Accumulated Depreciation—Buildings
Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment
Advertising Expense

Allowance for Bad Debts

Bad Debt Expense

Bonds Payable

Buildings

Cash

Common Stock

Cost of Goods Sold

Deferred Income Tax Liability
Depreciation Expense—Buildings
Dividends

Equipment

Estimated Warranty Expense Payable (current)
Gain on Sale of Investment Securities
Gain on Sale of Land

Goodwill

Income Tax Expense

Income Taxes Payable

Interest Receivable

Computation of Working Capital

Interest Revenue

Inventory

Investment in Subsidiary
Investment Securities (Trading)
Land

Loss on Purchase Commitments
Miscellaneous General Expense
Net Pension Asset

Notes Payable (current)

Paid-In Capital from Sale of Treasury Stock
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Stated Value
Patents

Premium on Bonds Payable
Prepaid Insurance

Property Tax Expense

Purchase Discounts

Purchases

Retained Earnings

Salaries Payable

Sales

Sales Salaries

Travel Expense

From the following data, compute the working capital for Hales Shipping Co. at December 31, 2015.

Cash in general checking account $ 34,000
Cash in fund to be used to retire

bonds in 2019 59,000
Cash held to pay sales taxes 18,000
Notes receivable—due

February 2017 113,000
Accounts receivable 113,000
Inventory 81,000
Prepaid insurance—for 2016 15,000
Vacant land held as investment 350,000

Used equipment to be sold $ 9,000
Deferred tax asset—to be

recovered in 2017 12,000
Accounts payable 79,000
Note payable—due July 2016 27,000
Note payable—due January 2017 18,000
Bonds payable—maturity date 2019 219,000
Salaries payable 11,000
Sales taxes payable 23,000
Goodwill 54,000

Copyright 2013 Cengage Learning. All Rights Reserved. May not be copied, scanned, or duplicated, in whole or in part. Due to electronic rights, some third party content may be suppressed from the eBook and/or eChapter(s).
Editorial review has deemed that any suppressed content does not materially affect the overall learning experience. Cengage Learning reserves the right to remove additional content at any time if subsequent rights restrictions require it.




3-44 EO0C P1 | Foundations of Financial Accounting

Exercise 3-29 Preparation of Corrected Balance Sheet

c o The following balance sheet was prepared for Jared Corporation as of December 31, 2015.

Jared Corporation
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2015
Assets Liabilities and Owners’ Equity
Current assets: Current liabilities:
Cash $ 12,500 Accounts payable $ 3,400
Investment securities 8,000 Other current liabilities 2,000
Accounts receivable, net 21,350 Total current liabilities $ 5,400
Inventory 31,000 Long-term liabilities 32,750
Other current assets 14,200 Total liabilities $ 38,150
Total current assets $ 87,050
Noncurrent assets: Owners’ equity:
Property, plant, and equipment, net $ 64,800 Common stock $ 50,000
Treasury stock 4,500 Retained earnings 81,800
Other noncurrent assets 13,600 Total owners’ equity $131,800
Total noncurrent assets $ 82,900
Total assets $169,950  Total liabilities and owners’ equity $169,950

The following additional information relates to the December 31, 2015, balance sheet.
(a) Cashincludes $4,000 that has been restricted to the purchase of manufacturing equipment (a non-
current asset).

(b) Investment securities include $2,750 of stock that was purchased in order to give the company sig-
nificant ownership and a seat on the board of directors of a major supplier.

(c) Other current assets include a $4,000 advance to the president of the company. No due date has
been set.

(d) Long-term liabilities include bonds payable of $10,000. Of this amount, $2,500 represents bonds
scheduled to be redeemed in 2076.

(e) Long-term liabilities also include a $7,000 bank loan. On May 15, the loan will become due on
demand.

() On December 21, dividends in the amount of $15,000 were declared to be paid to shareholders of
record on January 25. These dividends have not been reflected in the financial statements.

(g) Cashin the amount of $19,000 has been placed in a restricted fund for the redemption of preferred
stock in 2016. Both the cash and the stock have been removed from the balance sheet.

(h) Property, plant, and equipment includes land costing $8,000 that is being held for investment pur-
poses and that is scheduled to be sold in 2016.

Based on the information provided, prepare a corrected balance sheet.
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Balance Sheet Relationships
On the Clark and Company Inc. balance sheet, indicate the amount that should appear for each of the
items (a) through (n) on the balance sheet.

Clark and Company Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheet

December 31, 2015
Assets
Current assets:
CaSh. S 24,250
INVESTMENT SECUTITIES . ..o (@)
Accounts and notes receivable .............. ... .. S (b)
Allowance for doubtful accounts and notes receivable .......... 7,851 121,664
INVENTOMIES o e 197,682
Other CUMMENT @SSeTS . ..ot 14,227
Total CUMTeNTt @SSETS ... ... oo S (0
Noncurrent assets:
Property, plant, and equipment. ..., $694,604
Accumulated depreciation ........... ... (d) $398,832
Other NONCUMeNT assets. . ... ..ot 13,217
Total NONCUIMeNt assets . ...t 412,049
TOtal @SSETS .ot $792,514
Liabilities and Owners’ Equity -
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable ... S (e)
Payable tobanks ...... ... .o 34,236
Income taxes payable .......... ... 9,211
Current installments of long-termdebt.......................... 6,341
ACCIUEd EXPENSES . . .ottt 7,100
Total current liabilities. . . ... S 0
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-termdebt ... ... ... ... ) (9)
Deferred income tax liability..................................... 41,218
Minority interest in subsidiaries...................... ... ..., 4201
Total noncurrent liabilities. ... 205,410
Total labilities. ... ... $350,782
Contributed capital:
Preferred stock, no par value (authorized
1,618 shares; issued 1,115 shares) ..., $ 12,392
Common stock, $1 par value per share S (h)
(authorized 60,000 shares; issued 21,842 shares)...............
Additional paid-in capital ............ ... (i) 0)
Total contributed capital. ... S (k)
Retained earnings. .........ooo it 390,625
Total contributed capital and retained earnings .................... S (1)
Less: Treasury stock, at cost (1,229 shares) .......................... 27,038
Total OWNErs' €QUILY. ... S (m)
Total liabilities and owners’ equity.....................coiiieia. S (n)
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Exercise 3-31 Balance Sheet Schedules
a e In its annual report to stockholders, Hakobe Inc. presents a condensed balance sheet with detailed data
provided in supplementary schedules.

1. From the adjusted trial balance of Hakobe, prepare the following sections of the balance sheet,
properly classifying all accounts as to balance sheet categories:

(a) Current assets (e) Current liabilities

(b) Property, plant, and equipment () Noncurrent liabilities

(c) Intangible assets (g) Owners’ equity

(d) Total assets (h) Total liabilities and owners’ equity

2. Compute the current ratio and debt ratio for Hakobe.

Hakobe Inc.
Adjusted Trial Balance

December 31, 2015
Debit Credit

Cash o $ 43,700

Investment securities (trading) ............ooo i 15,000

Notes receivable—trade debtors.............. ... ... ... 22,000

Accrued interest on notes receivable.................. ... ... 2,100

Accounts receivable. . ... 79,500

Allowance for doubtful accounts. ... S 4600
INVENTOTY L. 59,300

Prepaid eXPeNSES ... 8,200

Accounts payable. ... .. 57,600
Notes payable—trade creditors ... 11,000
Accrued interest on notes payable ......... ... ... 950
LaNd . 103,000

BUIINGS. . 192,000

Accumulated depreciation—buildings. ... 21,000
EQUIDIMENT. 37,000

Accumulated depreciation—equipment ..., 5,900
PN, o 85,000

FraNCNISES 82,110

Bonds payable, 8%—issue 1 (mature 12/31/17) ..., 65,000
Bonds payable, 129 —issue 2 (mature 12/31/19) ....................... 125,000
Accrued interest on bonds payable ... 7,500
Premium on bonds payable—issue T ... 2,500
Discount on bonds payable—issue 2........... ... ... 12,500

Mortgage payable ... ... ... 72,000
Accrued interest on mortgage payable................ 4,320
Capital stock, par value $1; 10,000 shares authorized;

5,000 shares issued . ... ... 5,000
Additional paid-in capital. ............ 123,700
Retained earnings. .. ... 251,340
Treasury stock—at cost (500 Shares). ... 16,000

TOtalS. . $757,410 $757,410
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Exercise 3-33

Exercise 3-34

Exercise 3-35
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Computation of Financial Ratios
The following data are from the financial statements of Riverton Company.

Current assets $ 55,000 Total liabilities $ 95,000
Total assets 125,000 Net income 18,000
Current liabilities 25,000 Sales 275,000

Compute Riverton's current ratio, debt ratio, asset turnover, return on assets, and return on equity.

Computation of Financial Ratios
Schlofman Company has the following assets.

Cash o $ 20,000
Accounts receivable. . ... .. 60,000
VN O Y ettt 105,000
Property, plant, and equUipmeNt . ... i 220,000

TOtal @SSOUS . . ot $405,000

Companies in Schlofman’s industry typically have the following asset mix: cash, 7%; accounts receivable,
15%; inventory, 18%; property, plant, and equipment, 60%.

Compared to other companies in its industry, Schlofman has too much of one asset. Which one? Show
your computations.

Classification of Subsequent Events

The following events occurred after the end of the company’s fiscal year but before the annual audit was
completed. Classify each event as to its impact on the financial statements, that is: (1) reported by changing
the amounts in the financial statements, (2) reported in notes to the financial statements, or (3) does not
require reporting. Include support for your classification.

a) A major customer went bankrupt due to a deteriorating financial condition.
b

(
(
(c
(
(
(

Nl

Company sustained extensive hurricane damage to one of its plants.

~—

Company lost a major lawsuit that had been pending for two years.
d
e

Increasing U.S. trade deficit may have impact on company’s overseas sales.

— =

Company sold a large block of preferred stock.

=

Preparation of current year's income tax return disclosed that an additional $25,000 is due on last
year's return.

(@) Company's controller resigned and was replaced by an audit manager from the company’s audit firm.

Reporting Financial Information

For each of the following items, indicate whether the item should be reflected in the 2015 financial state-
ments for Tindall Company. If the item should be reflected, indicate whether it should be reported in the
financial statements themselves or by note disclosure.

(@ As of December 31,2015, the company holds $12.1 million of its own stock that it purchased in the
open market and is holding for possible reissuance.

(b) As of December 31, 2015, the company was in violation of certain loan covenants. The violation does
not cause the loans to be callable immediately but does increase the interest charge by 2.0%.

(c) The company’s reported Provision for Income Taxes includes $4.2 million in current taxes and $7.8
million in deferred taxes.

(d) As of December 31, 2015, accounts receivable in the amount of $7.1 million are estimated to be
uncollectible.
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Exercise 3-36

Exercise 3-37

Problem 3-38
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(e) The Environmental Protection Agency is investigating the company’s procedures for disposing of toxic
waste. Outside consultants have estimated that the company may be liable for fines of up to $10 million.

(f) During 2015, the company had a gain on the sale of manufacturing assets.

() During 2015, a long-term insurance agreement was signed. The company paid five years of insur-
ance premiums in advance.

(h) The company uses straight-line depreciation for all tangible, long-term assets.
i) During 2015, the company hired three prominent research chemists away from its chief competitor.
)

Reported long-term debt is composed of senior subordinated bonds payable, convertible bonds
payable, junior subordinated bonds payable, and capital lease obligations.

(k) Early in 2016, a significant drop in raw material prices caused the company’s stock price to rise in
anticipation of sharply increased profits for the year.

Preparation of Notes to Financial Statements
The following information was used to prepare the financial statements for Delta Chemical Company. Pre-
pare the necessary notes to accompany the statements.

Delta uses the LIFO inventory method on its financial statements. If the FIFO method were used, the
ending inventory balance would be reduced by $50,000 and net income for the year would be reduced by
$35,000 after taxes. Delta depreciates its equipment using the straight-line method. Revenue is generally
recognized when inventory is shipped unless it is sold on a consignment basis. The current value of the
equipment is $525,000, as contrasted to its depreciated cost of $375,000.

Delta has borrowed $350,000 on a 10-year note at 14% interest. The note is due on July 1,2022. Delta’s
equipment has been pledged as collateral for the loan. The terms of the note prohibit additional long-term
borrowing without the express permission of the holder of the note. Delta is planning to request such
permission during the next fiscal year.

The board of directors of Delta is currently discussing a merger with another chemical company.
No public announcement has yet been made, but it is anticipated that additional shares of stock will be
issued as part of the merger. Delta’s balance sheet will report receivables of $126,000. Included in this
figure is a $25,000 advance to the president of Delta, $30,000 of notes receivable from customers, $10,000
in advances to sales representatives, and $70,000 of accounts receivable from customers. The reported
balance reflects a deduction for anticipated collection losses.

Book-to-Market Ratio

The following information relates to two companies, designated Company A and Company B. One of the
companies is a traditional steel manufacturer. The other is a successful Internet retailer. Using the following
information, identify which is which, and explain your answer.

Reported
Stockholders’ Total Market
Equity Value of Equity
ComMPany A ... $15,000 $82,000
Company B ..o 15,000 11,000

PROBLEMS

Computing Balance Sheet Components
Denton Equipment Inc. furnishes you with the following list of accounts.
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Accounts Payable
Accounts Receivable
Accumulated Depreciation
Advances to Salespersons
Advertising Expense
Allowance for Bad Debts
Bonds Payable

Cash

Certificates of Deposit
Common Stock (par)
Deferred Income Tax Liability
Equipment

Inventory

Instructions:

$ 66,000
40,000
44,000
10,000
72,000
10,000
80,000
22,000
16,000

100,000
46,000
215,500
55,000

Investment in Rowe Oil Co. Stock
(40% of outstanding stock owned
for control purposes)

Investment in Siebert Co. Stock
(trading securities)

Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par

Premium on Bonds Payable

Prepaid Insurance

Rent Revenue

Rent Revenue Received in Advance
(four months)

Retained Earnings
Taxes Payable
Tools

EO0C 3-49

$76,500

21,000
42,500
6,000
6,000
37,000

12,000
97,500
10,000
52,000

1. From the preceding list of accounts, determine working capital, total assets, total liabilities, and own-
ers' equity per share of stock (75,000 shares outstanding).

2. Assume net income of $20,000. Compute current ratio, debt ratio, and return on equity.

Classified Balance Sheet

Following is a list of account titles and balances for Pennington Investment Corporation as of January 31,

2015.

Accounts Payable

Accounts Receivable

Accumulated Depreciation—
Buildings

Accumulated Depreciation—
Machinery and Equipment

Additional Paid-In Capital—Common
Stock

Allowance for Doubtful Notes and
Accounts Receivable

Buildings

Cash Fund for Stock Redemption
Cash in Banks

Cash on Hand

Claim for Income Tax Refund
Common Stock, $1 par
Employees’ Income Taxes Payable

Instructions:

$ 92,400
158,200

139,500
116,300
605,000

24,700
320,000
17,500
8,320
96,250
4,000
55,000
4,360

1. Prepare a properly classified balance sheet.
2. Assume net income of $300,000 and sales of $7,000,000. Compute the current ratio, debt ratio, and

asset turnover.

Income Taxes Payable

Interest Payable

Interest Receivable

Inventory

Investment Securities (trading)

Investments in Undeveloped
Properties

Land

Machinery and Equipment
Miscellaneous Supplies Inventory
Notes Payable (current)

Notes Payable (due in 2018)
Notes Receivable (current)
Preferred Stock, $5 par

Prepaid Insurance

Retained Earnings

Salaries and Wages Payable

$ 18,000
5,790
2,700

201,500
83,750

193,500
213,000
165,500
4,200
68,320
63,800
32,960
285,000
3,900
11,410
15,700
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Problem 3-40 Classified Balance Sheet—Including Notes

a 0 Adjusted account balances and supplemental information for Brockbank Research Corp. as of December
31,2015, are as follows:
Accounts Payable $ 32,160 Insurance Claims Receivable $120,000
Accounts Receivable—Trade 57,731  Inventories 201,620
Accumulated Depreciation—Leasehold Investment in Unconsolidated

Improvements and Equipment 579,472 Subsidiary 80,000

Additional Paid-In Capital 265,000 Land 6,000
Allowance for Bad Debts 1,731 Leasehold Improvements 65,800
Automotive Equipment 132,800  7¥2%-12% Mortgage Notes Payable 200,000
Cash 25600  Notes Payable—Banks (due in 2016) 12,000
Cash Fund for Bond Retirement 3,600 Notes Payable—Trade 63,540
Common Stock 35,000 Patent Licenses 57,402
Deferred Income Tax Liability 45,000  Prepaid Insurance 5,500
Dividends Payable 37,500  Profit Sharing, Payroll, and Vacation
Franchises 12,150 Payable 40,000
Furniture, Fixtures, and Store Equipment 769,000  Retained Earnings 225,800

Supplemental information is as follows:

(@) Depreciation is provided by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
(b) Common stockis $1 par, and 35,000 of the 100,000 authorized shares were issued and are outstanding.

(c) The cost of an exclusive franchise to import a foreign company's ball bearings and a related patent
license are being amortized on the straight-line method over their remaining lives: franchise,
10 years; patents, 15 years.

(d) Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market; cost was determined by the specific identifica-
tion method.

(e) Insurance claims based on the opinion of an independent insurance adjustor are for property
damages at the central warehouse. These claims are estimated to be two-thirds collectible in the
following year and one-third collectible thereafter.

() The company leases all of its buildings from various lessors. Estimated fixed-lease obligations are
$50,000 per year for the next 10 years. The leases do not meet the criteria for capitalization.

(@) The company is currently in litigation over a claimed overpayment of income tax of $13,000. In the opinion
of counsel, the claim is valid. The company is contingently liable on guaranteed notes worth $12,000.

Instructions: Prepare a properly classified balance sheet. Include all notes and parenthetical notations
necessary to properly disclose the essential financial data.

Problem 3-41 Classification of Liabilities
a e The accountant for Sierra Corp. prepared the following schedule of liabilities as of December 31, 2015.
Accounts payable. .. ... $ 65,000
Notes payable—trade. ... ... 19,000
Notes payable—bank. ... ... ... 80,000
Wages and salaries payable ... ... 1,500
Interest payable. .. ..o 14,300
Mortgage note payable—T10% ... ...ttt 60,000
Mortgage note payable—12% .......... ... 150,000
Bonds payable . ... . o 200,000
O Al o $589,800
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The following additional information pertains to these liabilities.

(@) All trade notes payable are due within six months of the balance sheet date.
(b) Bank notes payable include two separate notes payable to First Interstate Bank.
1. A $30,000, 8% note issued March 1, 2013, payable on demand. Interest is payable every six months.
2. A one-year, $50,000, 11%9% note issued January 2, 2015. On December 30, 2015, Sierra negotiated
a written agreement with First Interstate Bank to replace the note with a two-year, $50,000, 10%
note to be issued January 2, 2016.

(c) The 10% mortgage note was issued October 1, 2012, with a term of 10 years. Terms of the note give
the holder the right to demand immediate payment if the company fails to make a monthly inter-
est payment within 10 days of the date the payment is due. As of December 31, 2015, Sierra is three
months behind in paying its required interest payment.

(d) The 12% mortgage note was issued May 1, 2009, with a term of 20 years. The current principal
amount due is $150,000. Principal and interest are payable annually on April 30. A payment of
$22,000 is due April 30, 2016. The payment includes interest of $18,000.

(e) The bonds payable are 10-year, 8% bonds, issued June 30, 2006.

Instructions: Prepare the Liabilities section of the December 31, 2015, classified balance sheet for Sierra
Corp. Include notes as appropriate. Assume the interest payable accrual has been computed correctly.

Corrected Balance Sheet
The following balance sheet was prepared by the accountant for Midway Company.

Midway Company
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2015
Assets

CaS S 44,500
Investment securities—Trading (includes long-term investment

of $275,000 in stock of Bahen BUilders). .. ... 328,700
Inventories (net of amount still due suppliers of $50,000)............. ... ... 585,100
Prepaid expenses (includes a deposit of $25,000 made on inventories to

be delivered in 18 MONTNS) . ... . 66,000
Property, plant, and equipment (excluding $60,000 of equipment still in use

but fully deprediated) .. ... ... 270,000
Goodwill (based on estimate by the president of Midway Company)..................... 85,000

TOTAl ASSETS . . v vt $1,379,300
Liabilities and Owners’ Equity
Notes payable (595,000 due in 2017) ... ..ot $ 150,000
Accounts payable (not including amount due to suppliers of inventory—see above)... .. ..... 190,000
Long-term liability under pension plan. ... ... 49,000
Retained earnings restricted for building expansion ..., 112,000
Accumulated depreciation .. ... 90,000
TaXxes PaYable . . 37,000
Bonds payable (net of discount of $25,000). ..........cooiii 300,000
Deferred income tax liability ... ... ... 71,000
Common stock (15,000 shares, ST Par) ... 15,000
Additional paid-in capital. . ... 227,200
Unrestricted retained €arnings .. ... ..o oo 138,100
Total liabilities and owners equity ............ooi it $1,379,300

Instructions: Prepare a corrected classified balance sheet using appropriate account titles.
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Problem 3-43 Classified Balance Sheet
“ The financial position of St. Charles Ranch is summarized in the following letter to the corporation’s ac-
countant.
Dear Dallas:

The following information should be of value to you in preparing the balance sheet for St. Charles
Ranch as of December 31, 2015. The balance of cash as of December 31 as reported on the bank state-
ment was $43,825. There were still outstanding checks of $9,320 that had not cleared the bank, and
cash on hand of $10,640 was not deposited until January 4, 2016.

Customers owed the company $40,500 at December 31. We estimated 6% of this amount will
never be collected. We owe suppliers $37,000 for poultry feed purchased in November and December.
About 75% of this feed was used before December 31.

Because we think the price of grain will rise in 2016, we are holding 10,000 bushels of wheat and
5,000 bushels of oats until spring. The market value at December 31 was $3.50 per bushel of wheat
and $1.50 per bushel of oats. We estimate that both prices will increase 15% by selling time. We are
not able to estimate the cost of raising this product.

St. Charles Ranch owns 1,850 acres of land. Two separate purchases of land were made as follows:
1,250 acres at $200 per acre in 1991 and 600 acres at $400 per acre in 1996. Similar land is currently sell-
ing for $800 per acre. The balance of the mortgage on the two parcels of land is $250,000 at December
31; 10% of this mortgage must be paid in 2016.

Our farm buildings and equipment cost us $176,400 and on the average are 40% depreciated.
If we were to replace these buildings and equipment at today's prices, we believe we would be
conservative in estimating a cost of $300,000.

We have not paid property taxes of $5,500 for 2016 billed to us in late November. Our estimated
income tax for 2015 is $18,500. A refund claim for $2,800 has been filed relative to the 2013 income
tax return. The claim arose because of an error made on the 2013 return.

The operator of the ranch will receive a bonus of $9,000 for 2015 operations. It will be paid when
the entire grain crop has been sold.

As you may recall, we issued 14,000 shares of $1 par stock upon incorporation. The ranch received
$290,000 as net proceeds from the stock issue. Dividends of $30,000 were declared last month and
will be paid on February 1, 2016.

The new year appears to hold great promise. Thanks for your help in preparing this statement.

Sincerely,

Frank K. Santiago
President, St. Charles Ranch

Instructions: Based on this information, prepare a properly classified balance sheet as of December 31, 2015.

Problem 3-44 Corrected Balance Sheet

n The bookkeeper for Chordwise Music, Inc,, reports the following balance sheet amounts as of June 30,
2015.
CUITENT @SSOTS .« e e et e $295,300
OtNr ASSTS. ettt 630,600
CUrrent abilities . oo 167,420
Other labilities. ... ..o 200,000
OWNETS EQUITY . . oottt et e e e e 558,480
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A review of account balances reveals the following data.

(@) An analysis of current assets discloses the following:

CaSN o $ 59,500
Investment securities—trading. . ... 40,000
ACCOUNTS TeCRIVADIE. . 68,300
Inventories, including advertising supplies of $3,500 ................. i 127,500

$295,300

(b) Other assets include the following:

Property, plant, and equipment:

Depreciated book value (cost, $775,000) . . ... ... $554,500
Deposit with a supplier for merchandise ordered for August delivery....................... 10,700
Goodwill recorded on the books to cancel losses incurred by the company in prior years. . ... ... 65,400

$630,600

(c) Current liabilities include the following:

Payroll payable. . ... ... $ 12,550
Taxes payable. . ... 8,870
Rent payable. ... o 7,700
Accounts payable:
Total owed to suppliers oN aCcCoUNt . .......vir i $111,300
Less: Six-month note received from a supplier who purchased
some used equipment on June 29,2015 ......... ... 5,000 106,300
Notes payable. ... .. 32,000
$167,420

(d) Other liabilities include the following:

10% mortgage on property, plant, and equipment, payable in semiannual
installments of $20,000 through June 30,2020, ..............ooiiiiii i $200,000

(e) Owners' equity includes the following:

Preferred stock: 15,000 shares outstanding (520 parvalue) .............................. $300,000
Common stock: 175,000 shares at $1 stated value. ... . 175,000
Additional paid-in capital. . ... 83,480

$558,480

() Common shares were originally issued for $495,000, but the losses of the company for the past years
were charged against additional paid-in capital.

Instructions: Using the account balances and related data, prepare a corrected balance sheet showing
individual asset, liability, and owners’ equity balances properly classified.
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Problem 3-45 Corrected Balance Sheet
“ The following balance sheet is submitted to you for inspection and review.
Appalachian Freight Company
Balance Sheet
December 31,2015
Assets
CaSh $ 45,050
Accounts receivable. ... ... 112,500
I N Oy e 204,000
Prepaid INSUMANCE . ... e 8,300
Property, plant, and equipment ....... ... 376,800
TOTAl BSSETS . . . . $747,150
Liabilities and Owners’ Equity -
Miscellaneous liabilities .. ... ..o $ 3,600
Loan payable ... o 76,200
Accounts payable. ... . 75,250
Capital StOCK . ..o 134,000
Paid-in capital. . ... 458,100
Total liabilities and owners equity ...... ... $747,150

In the course of the review, you find the following data:

(@) The possibility of uncollectible accounts on accounts receivable has not been considered. It is esti-
mated that uncollectible accounts will total $4,800.

(b) The amount of $45,000 representing the cost of a large-scale newspaper advertising campaign
completed in 2015 has been added to the inventories because it is believed that this campaign will
benefit sales of 2016. It is also found that inventories include merchandise of $16,250 received on
December 31 that has not yet been recorded as a purchase.

(©) The books show that property, plant, and equipment have a cost of $556,800 with depreciation of
$180,000 recognized in prior years. However, these balances include fully depreciated equipment of
$85,000 that has been scrapped and is no longer on hand.

(d) Miscellaneous liabilities of $3,600 represent salaries payable of $9,500, less noncurrent advances of
$5,900 made to company officials.

(e) Loan payable represents a loan from the bank that is payable in regular quarterly installments of
$6,250.

(f) Tax liabilities not shown are estimated at $18,250.

(g) Deferred income tax liability arising from temporary differences totals $44,550. This liability was not
included in the balance sheet.

(h) Capital stock consists of 6,250 shares of preferred 6% stock, par $20, and 9,000 shares of common
stock, stated value $1.

(i) Capital stock had been issued for a total consideration of $283,600; the amount received in excess

of the par and stated values of the stock has been reported as paid-in capital. Net income and divi-
dends were recorded in Paid-In Capital.

Instructions: Prepare a corrected balance sheet with accounts properly classified.
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Problem 3-46 Corrected Balance Sheet
a The accountant for Delicious Bakery prepares the following condensed balance sheet.
Delicious Bakery
Condensed Balance Sheet
December 31, 2015
CUITENT @SSETS . . oo et e e $53,415
Less: Current liabilities. . ..o 29,000
Working capital ... ... $24,415
Add: OTNer @SSETS .t 75,120
$99,535
Less: Other Habilities. . ..o 3,600
INVeSTMENT IN DUSINGSS. . ... oo $95,935
A review of the account balances disclosed the following data.
(@) Ananalysis of the current asset grouping revealed the following:
Cash L $10,600
Accounts receivable (fully collectible) ............. ... ... . 12,500
Notes receivable (notes of customer who has been declared bankrupt and
is unable to pay anything on the obligations). ..., 1,000
Investment securities—trading, at cost (market value $2,575) ........................ 4250
I O Y et 20,965
Cash surrender value of insurance on officers' lives. ... i, 4,100
TOtal CUIENT ASSETS . v vttt e e $53,415

The inventory account was found to include supplies costing $425, a delivery truck acquired at the end of
2015 at a cost of $2,100, and fixtures at a depreciated value of $10,400. The fixtures had been acquired in
2007 at a cost of $12,500.

(b) The total for other assets was determined as follows.

Land and buildings at cost of acquisition, July 1,2013.................................... $92,000

Less balance due on mortgage, $16,000, and accrued interest on mortgage, $880
(mortgage is payable in annual installments of $4,000 on July 1 of each year
together with interest for the year at that time at 119%) ...................ooiiioi. .. 16,880

Total OtNET @SSETS. . . vttt e $75,120

It was estimated that the land at the time of the purchase was worth $30,000. Buildings as of December 31,
2015, were estimated to have a remaining life of 17% years.

(c) Current liabilities represented balances that were payable to trade creditors.

(d) Other liabilities consisted of withholdin